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Honor, and ask you for more time because we're not done. I
don't want to -- I don't want to do that again.

THE COURT: Yeah. But I've got to get this done --

MR. PEEK: I agree.

THE COURT: ~-- because when the Supreme Court issues
a writ and says, do this hearing, and then you guys need to do
discovery and then we have problems getting it done, you know,
I can't be just hanging out there. I've got to get it done.

MR, PEEK: And, Your Honor, we want to get it done,
too. Mr. Jones —- and there will be other new counsel who
will be helpful to him, as well, who have offices in the Far
Bast. We will be going to Macau to begin that review as to
whether or not there are any documents over in Macau. You've
got to get there to be able to find that out.

THE COURT: I'm going to stay out of it till
somebody brings a motion, because scheduling -- you've told me
what your schedule is. I'm taking you at your word. And Mr.
Bice says he thinks you can be done in February, you say you
think March-April, but there's the Suen trial in the middle,
which throws us off. So --

MR, PEEK: It does, Your Honor., And I --

THE COURT: =-- I'll see where I can find a place.

MR, PEEK: I apologize. When I was thinking of the
time I wasn't thinking of Suen, either. But --

THE CQURT: We'll figure it out.
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MR. PEEK: Thank you, Your Honor.the

THE COURT: So I will hopefully find a time. If I
am able to identify a time before I next see you, I will have
Max arrange a conference call so we can discuss scheduling
igssues. And then if you have any serious conflicts, like kids
graduating or marrying or something like that, we can try and
work around those issues. ‘

MR. PEEK: Mine are not there, Your Honor, yet.

THE COURT: Some of yours are there, Mr. Peek.

MR. PEEK: Well, they're already married and have
kids.

MR. BICE: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE CCURT: Have a nice day.

MR, JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:20 A.M.

* kK k Kk %
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1} implemented.

2 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I've allowed all of that

3] examination already.

4 THE COURT: There have been some issues.

5 MR. BICE: Well, I disagree that he has, but we'll
6| address --

7 THE COURT: And I am not going to limit the

8| depositions of the four executives to the one day that has

9| been asked. However, if the depositions become harassing
101 because people are trying to get into the substance of the

11| decision of the termination or the substance of any of the

12| settlement negotiations, those would be inappropriate under
13} the stay that I currently have in place.

14 Any other questions on that motion before I go to
15| the administrative action issue?

16 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I do have some more

17| questions. When you say you're not going to permit the

18| harassment, you're going to allow them to come back?

19 THE COURT: 1 am,
20 MR, PEEK: 1Is there any limitation at all? Because,
211 Your Honor, with 200,000 pages of documents, one full day for
22| each of them, and this sort of minutia because they want to
23| say "the magnitude” of the contacts, if you will, is important
24| to them, could extend well beyond two days, three days, and

25| four days. I've already been in one day with Mr. Pisanelli
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1} and two other days with Mr. Bice on the other depositions, and
2] I know where it's going.

3 THE COURT: I don't think they could ever in any

4| case finish a deposition in a day.

5 MR. PEEK: I know that, Your Honor. And that's what
6| concerns me. I don‘t want to bring senior executives --

7 THE COURT: I'm not saying that they're not

8] competent, I'm saying they're very thorough, and this is an

91 issue that as a result of the writ that's been taken has a lot
10| of attention that's going to be paid to it. So I'm not going
11] to limit them. However, if you believe under Rule 37 that the
12| deposition is becoming -~ is it 37 or 267

13 MR. PEEK: It be 37, Your Honor, if =--

14 THE COURT: 37 «=

15 MR. PEEK: 1It's been 26. But I already believe it

16| is that way.

17 THE COURT: I disagree --

18 MR. PEEK: But yvou've toldme I -~

i9 THE COURT: ~- at this point.

20 MR. PEEK: You told me that I'm wrong.

21 THE COURT: Well, so far. I did agree with you once

22| this wesk. So -~ but if it gets to a point, Mr. Peaks and Mr.
23] Joneses, that you believe that the depositions are becomes
24 ] harassing, you may suspend the deposition and, you know ~-- you

25| know what happens then.
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1 MR. PEEK: I know what happens, Your Honor.

2 THE COURT: You'll come over here.

3 MR. PEEK: I don't want to put myself at that kind

4| of risk., That's why I'm asking the Court --

5 THE COURT: 1I'm not going to limit the time.

6 MR. PEEK: -~ to limit them just like we do in a

71| trial, Your Honor.

8 THE COURT: I'm not going to limit the time.

9 MR. PEEK: To limit that.

10 THE COURT: I understand. However, if they're still

11| going and they've gone for three days, I might think it's too

12| many.

13 MR. PEEK: That's a -- that, Your Honor, sort of

14] tells me something I really frankly didn't want to hear, that

15| they should be allowed to even go three days. Even allowed to

161 go two days, Your Honor, is rather excessive.

17 THE COURT: Two days is not of concern to me.

18 MR. PEEK: Pardon?

19 THE COURT: Two days is not of concern to me.

20 MR. PEEK: And I don't know how we're ever going to

21| get to an evidentiary hearing, Your Honor, that we want to

22} have right away.

23 THE CQURT: I have a note right there.
24 MR. PEEK: I know.
25 THE COURT: I'm getting there.
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Okay. If I could go to the administrative action in
Florida. Let me make a statement. I'm not the judge in
Florida. Now do you want to make your motion?

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I don't think there's a whole

lot more to say, because that really is the theme, is that

ch Wt B W N

this is going to be heard on the 13th of this month in Florida
71 by the judge in Florida as to what the scope of the
8| depositions will be that are being requested to be taken here.
9| And there are actually six. I only represent three of the
101 individuals. And we don't want to get into a debate here, as
11| they want to, about the merits of the Adelson action and what
12| he does in Florida versus what happened here in Nevada. We
13| don't want to get into the issue of whether there are merits
14| -- that they're allowed merits discovery here. That's an
15] issue for the Florida courts. If they didn't like the
16] questions in the deposition of Mr. Jacobs about merits, they
17 ] could have suspended that deposition and gone to a Florida
18| judge and said, there is a stay in place in Nevada and these
19| folks are trying to violate that stay. These are issues, Your
20| Honoxr, for the Florida court, and let's let the Florida court
21| make these decisions, as opposed this court make those
22| decisions. And that Florida court will tell all of us what
23] the scope ought to be, because there's no coordination between
24| this case and the Florida case.

25 THEE COURT: I can't coordinate with another state
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1] court judge unless the state court judge wants to.
2 MR. PEEK: Yeah. So, Your Honor, I think -~ I think
3] that really -- you know, I certainly -- we have set forth the
41| request for production, we have that already. They have a
51 motion to compel on that.
6 With respect to those documents, Your Honor, again,
71 the custodian is Las Vegas Sands Corporation, not these
8| individuals who are being sought -- from whom they're seeking
91| documents. If they have that, they should seek those from Las
10| Vegas Sands.
11 Your Honor, the subpoenas and the guestioning of
12| Leven and Goldstein should be limited to the issue of -~
13| that's framed by the complaint and not in the entire merits,
141 because they want to try to get to merits of the termination.
15} And certainly, Your Honor, we hope to get to the merits
16| ourselves very soon.
17 And then with respect to the subpcoena to Mr. Reese,
18] as we've said, that ought not to be ~-- that deposition ought
19| not go forward at all. Mr. Reese said, I know nothing about
20| prostitution in Macau or the issue or the statements made by
21| Mr, Jacobs in his declaration to this Court in June of this
22| year about the so-called prostitution strategy. Thank vyou.
23 THE COURT: Thank vou.
24 Mr. Bice.
25 MR, BICE: Your Honor, I'm a little confused because
32
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1] it's their motion, but apparently they don't want you to

2| really address their motion. It seems like let's have the
Florida judge decide the motion. They didn't make this motion
-~ these employees didn't make this motion in Florida. There
were six. Only three of them have filed a motion, and, of
course, it's the three that currently work there, because this
ig, again, Mr. Adelson directing the litigation relative to

claims that he has asserted in the state of Florida that grow

LR - RS T I A

out of this lawsuit and this Nevada proceeding.

10 So I don't need to spend a lot of time on this,

11| because you can just simply look at the gentleman's complaint,
12] look at his own lawyer's acknowledgements in Florida, and they
13| contradict everything that now Mr. Adelson through these three
14| employees has submitted relative to the current motion before
15| this Court.

16 What they have tried to claim is that the stay in

17| this action or the stay in your action that you are the judge
18] on stays or insulates Mr. Adelson and these executives from

19} discovery relative to the Florida action. Now, one only has
20| to look at the caselaw to know that simply isn't the law, and
21| in fact Mr. Adelson’'s lawyer acknowledged that quite gleefully
22| when he was deposing Mr. Jacobs. Unremarkably in our

23| experience with Mr., Adelson and his litigation tactics, that
241 tune quickly changed, of course, once we started seeking

25| discovery from Mr. Adelson and Mr. Adelson's executives. Now
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all of a sudden this stay has great impact upon the Florida
proceedings.
The reason that I think -- and the reason that we

sought coordination to have this in front of you is in no

Ut o W N

small part because I think it is important that the Nevada
court does address whether or not its stay order impacts or
has any extension into that Florida proceeding. We've cited

the caselaw to you. It does not. Aand we don't believe that

o oW - o

it's appropriate for a litigant -~

10 Let's also remember something. You know, Mr.

11| Adelson is out of the Nevada action. He obtained 54(b)

12| certification. He's not even a party in terms of his personal
13| capacity to that stay. So where he gets off trying to now

14| invoke it to insulate his employees from questions about a

15] lawsuit he brought I think is a bit much.

16 Our point here, Your Honor, is a party has asserted
17} defamation in another court. They have asserted in that

18| defamation claim as the malice and the motive that Mr. Jacobs
19| brought this lawsuit, the Nevada action, and filed the

20| affidavit in the Nevada action as supposed retaliation in

21| order to earn an unearned windfall because he was terminated
22] for cause. That's their explanation to the Florida court

23] about what the lawsuit is about. All right, Mr. Jacobs is
24| entitled to disprove that supposed motive. He is entitled to

25| conduct discovery to challenge that supposed malice. And that
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includes the facts and circumstances surrounding his
termination, the facts and circumstances surrounding the
declaration that he filed in this action, and why he has

brought this action, as opposed to the story that Mr. Adelson

N o e b ks

and company now wants to tell -- or wants to claim in the
6] Florida lawsuit, that somehow Mr. Jacobs brought this
71 litigation solely as a means of trying to earn an unearned
8] windfall, as opposed to a legitimate attempt by Mr. Jacobs to
31 recover what he believes he's rightfully owed for being
10| wrongfully terminated by someone who was insistent upon taking
11] a course of unethical and illegal business activities. And
12| that, of course, is all fair game when someone opens up and
13| files a defamation lawsuit and says, neo, none of that was true
14| and you were just trying to extort me for money. Having
15] elected to file that cause of action, Mr. Adelson has opened
16| the door for that discovery, properly so, and Mr. Jacobs is
171 entitled to defend himself.
18 And, Your Honor, we have pointed out in this
19| proceeding -- and when I say this proceeding, the proceeding
201 in which you are the judge, you know, I don't need to go back
21| into the whole history of what was going on relative to
22| document production and the withholding of evidence and the
23| attempt to prejudice Mr. Jacobs through that maneuver. This
24| is simply -~ this present motion is simply an extension of

251 that same strategy, and that is let's obstruct whenever we can
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1! as much as we can.

2 And I'm asking this Court -- that happened already

3] in the proceeding in front of you by Mr. Adelson's companies.
4] I'm asking that it not be allowed to extend elsewhere. And so
5| therefore this motion should be denied in its entirety, Your

6| Honor.

7 The story about Mr. Reese not knowing anything,

8| well, perhaps they didn't bother to look at Mr. Adelson's

9| deposition when he says he specifically discussed this issue
10| with Mr. Reese and in fact Mr. Reese is the one who went and
11] issued the press release about it. And Mr. Reese is the one
12| who has tremendous knowledge about all the other issues that
13| are impacting Mr. Adelson's reputation, the ongoing criminal
14 ] investigation by the Department of Justice and the Securities
15| and Exchange Commission, as well as the U.S. Attorney's Office
16| out of Los Angeles, which is conducting a money laundering

17| investigation, and there are newspaper articles with Mr.

18| Adelson's picture painted all over headlines about a money
191 laundering investigation.
20 This individual's reputation is being impacted not
21| because of an affidavit that references prostitution in Macau
221 casinos, of which there are also newspaper articles where the
23| Macau Government raided cne of his casinos after Mr. Jacobs
24 | was gone and arrested 120 prostitutes and pimps on the casino

25| floor while Mr. Adelson was present at the property. So to
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sit there and say, well, his reputation is being harmed by
this prostitution issue, we're entitled to demonstrate and to
conduct discovery to show, no, no, no, no, your reputation is
being harmed by all of the other investigations that the
government and all of the other nefarious activities that were
going on and that you were supervising and directing., And

that is all an appropriate subject matter for a defamation

[»: BRSO Y T R\ S

lawsuit on an individual who claims that his reputation has

9| been harmed, especially considering -- and this is where we

10| had attached the New York pleadings -- when he claims that his
11)] reputation in Nevada law governs and it primarily all occurred
12| in Nevada. And that's why we are entitled to that discovery,
13} and the motion should be denied.

14 With respect to the documents, Your Honor, we've
15| cited you the caselaw. These are high-ranking corporate

16| executives. Mr. Leven is the president and CO0 of Las Vegas
171 Sands. By definition he has control over those documents, and
18] the courts -- the Federal Courts -- and, again, we have the

19| parallel rules in Nevada, the Nevada Supreme Court hasn't
20| addressed it, but the Federal Courts have addressed it, and
21} they say high-ranking executives have control over the

22| documents and you can subpcoena them -~ the documents from them
23| directly, you do not have to issue a separate subpoena tc the
24| company itself.

25 THE COURT: B8So why haven't you issuved a separate
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subpoena to the company itself?

MR. BICE: We haven't issued because, Your Honor, we
have -~ we have difficulty, unremarkably, getting subpoenas,
getting cooperation out of Mr. Adelson's Florida counsel about
getting these depositions set. So we issued a subpoena for

the individuals, to take their depositions and issued with

e Y N - - . A - R o

that subpoena a request for the documents, which we are

entitled to do. Could we -- could we go through the same

ACe R« ¢

rigmarcle and get a whole separate subpoena and issue it and
10| bring it back here? Well, that'd take a bunch of time. And
11| are they going to, of course, obstruct us in the Florida

12 ] proceedings to do that? Of course they are.

13 So the gquestion is -~ and I appreclate your

14| question, Your Honor, but I would pose the point to the Court
15| why should I have to do that when the law doesn’'t say that we

16} have to do that.

17 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you.
18 MR. BICE: Thank you, Your Honor.
19 THE COURT: The stay order that has been issued by

201! the Nevada Supreme Court in their Case Number 58294 does not
21| apply to this administrative action. However, I disagree with
22| Mr. Bice with respect to the scope of the document requests

23| that are attached to the subpoenas and believe that it would
24| be more appropriate for the subpoena for almost all of the

25| documents requests to be directed to the Las Vegas Sands, as
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1| opposed to the individuals. However, with certain exceptions,
2] which are those documents, for instance, Number 25 and 26 --

31 24, 25, and 26 with respect to Mr. Leven's document requests,
4} those clearly relate to documents that are personally in his

5| possession or information that is personally maintained by

6] him, and those are fair subject of this -~

7 MR. PEEK: 24 through 26 of the subpoena.

8 THE COURT: Well, as examples. As examples.

9 MR. PEEK: Well -~

10 THE COURT: All the others appear to me to be items
11§ that are corporate in nature.

12 MR, PEEK: Okay.

13 THE COURT: However, if Mr. Leven has his own

14| personal file that he keeps at home, then that's fair game.

15 MR, PEEK: And, Your Honor, I agree with that. I

16| have not disputed that.

17 THE COURT: So -- but with respect to those

18| documents which are being sought in his position as the
19| president of the Las Vegas Sands it would be more appropriate
20| to direct the subpoena to the Las Vegas Sands.
21 1 am not going to limit the scope of any examination
22| of these gentlemen. That determination, if one is going to be
23| made, needs to be made by the judge in Florida. But my stay
241 that I'm subject to does not apply to these. But if the
25| Florida judge decides it does, that's his problem or her
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problem.

MR. PEEK: That's sort of a point of clarification.
There's going to be a hearing in Florida on the 13th, TIt's
going to address this very same issue. So I don't know
whether you're saying, I'm ordering them to go forward, or

you're saying, I'm going to defer and be bound by the ruling

~ U b W N e

in Florida of the Florida judge.
8 THE COURT: I am ordering them to go forward unless
9] a judge in Florida makes a different decision.
10 MR. PEEK: So you're taking -- because, you know --
11 THE COURT: I'm not ruling on the scope. I don't
12| know what the scope of the Florida litigation is going to be,
13| because that's the Florida judge's job. If the Florida judge
14} makes a determination like I did in my Maxcﬁ 8, 2012, order
15| the limit the scope of discovery, that would clearly apply to
16} these depositions, because they're being taken in that case.
17| T don't know that that's going to happen. But if it does
18| happen, I'm going to defer to that.
19 MR. PEEK: That's really what I was asking you, is
20| to defer now, Your Honor, to that --
21 THE COURT: I'm not going to defer now, because I
22} have no idea when or ever -~ I've deferred to judges and I got
23| stuck waiting for six months for somebody in South Carolina.
241 And so I'm not doing it again.

25 MR. PEEK: And I've been in here when you've had
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1] that issue, Your Honor. But what Mr. Bice says to you is, I
should be allowed to do all of these things about defamation
3] and the scope of the defamation action should allow me to do
all of these things. That's -- Florida law is different than
Nevada law. And I didn't want to brief that, because I
thought it was more appropriate that a Florida judge make
those decisions, as opposed to a Nevada judge make those

decisions.

W0 N oy e

THE COURT: And I don't disagree. But in the
10 absence of a Florida judge having made that decision I am
11] permitting the depositions to forward, but limiting the

12| document responses as I said.

13 MR. PEEK: Thank you, Your Honor.
14 THE COURT: All right. Anything else?
15 Let's go to the request for additional discovery

16| related to your sanctions motion that is currently pending for
17| December 27th and whether you really want to have any

18| additional stuff or you just want to talk to me about

19 attorneyé' fees based on the findings I've already made.

20 MR. BICE: ©No, I do want to talk to you about

21| additional stuff, Your Honor. You have made findings. But,
221 as you will recall from the -- both the discovery that you

23| permitted preceding the evidentiary hearing on your sanctions
24| motion -~ oOr not your -— yeah, it was really the Court's

251 sanctions motion.
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THE COURT: It was.
MR, BICE: It was.
THE COURT: It was sua sponte.

MR. BICE: It was sua sponte.

As you will recall, there were a lot of issues that
had come up in that discovery, both in the discovery and at
the evidentiary hearing itself, relative to the scope of
questions and our ability to determine the involvement of
executives at Las Vegas Sands and at Sands China in the
involvement in the concealing of evidence from us and from the
Court. And the Court had indicated to us that it wasn't --
that was beyond the scope of its particular hearing and
therefore would address that at a subsequent point in time
relative to a Rule 37 motion to be brought by us, which is
what we have brought, in part not just because of the past
conduct, but because we believe that that conduct has
continued even past the evidentiary hearing that you have
directed, and that's what's on the -- that's what's part of
our motion that is set at the end of the month.

THE COURT: So let me ask you a question, Mr.

Bice --

MR. BICE: Yeah.

THE CQURT: -~ because I am clearly confused.

MR. BICE: All right,

THE COQURT: My brief review -~ because, understand
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1] I'm in a different trial, so I'm looking at stuff, but I may
2| not be paving as much attention to things that are on the end

3| of December as I would usually.

4 It looks like what you're asking in that motion is

5| largely duplicative of the substantive issues that I've

6| already made determinations on.

7 MR. BICE: Part is true. Not completely.

8 THE COURT: Okay. What part are you trying to carve
9| out that's different than what I've already had a hearing on?

10 MR. BICE: Relative to -- well, there's two parts, I

11| would say. Part of that motion that is going to be heard at
12] the end of the month is the ongoing -- what we believe is the
13| ongoing noncompliance with your directive and instructions to
14] them to review the documents in Macau, which we do not believe
15| -- again, we were here a month ago, and we seem to be getting
16| very conflicting stories about what has transpired. After Mr.
171 Weissman was here, as vyou will recall, from Munger Tolles, we
18| had a hearing in front of you where Mr. Weissman had indicated
191 they wanted to do the sequencing, and you shut that down

20| immediately. We were led to believe then that the review was
21| going on in Macau and we were going to either get a log of

22| some sort that told us what it is that they claimed to have

23| there relevant to the jurisdictional discovery or not.

24 We were here about a month ago, and Mr. Peek and Mr.

25| Jones were here and told you they were going to be going to
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Macau to review documents. After that hearing Ms. Spinelli
and I were a little bit confused, because it didn‘t sound like

anybody had been there, and we wanted to confirm that process

o W b e

had been underway.

Wwell, then we get a response that we believe just
indicated that they had done nothing. And now we get a motion
that was ~-- I guess it's on today, another motion that was ~=-

there's an 0ST signed for it, ves, that -~

e o 9~ 4\

THE COURT: Max is handing it to me.

10 MR. BICE: -- which was given to us the day before
11| yesterday at about 4:30. Which is really an attempt to

12| preempt that issue. And we find that motion to be

13} fascinating, Your Honor, in many respects, because now there
141 are documents that are from back in August that they refused
15| to give to us, but now they're giving them to the Court.

16 THE COURT: =~=- the O8T. Did I?

17 MR. PEEK: You did, Your Honor. We were actually
18| surprised that you did.

19 MR. BICE: Not as surprised as I was.

20 MR. PEEK: I was ~-- I was -- Your Honor, I have to
21} say I was surprised that you signed it for today, because we
22] did submit it to you at about 4:30 in the afternoon.

23 THE COURT: Okay. Keep going, Mr. Bice.

24 MR. BICE: Well, I haven't had a chance to address

25| that motion. Obviously --
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THE COURT: We're going to move it, because I didn't
take this one home last night.

MR, BICE: Understood, Your Honor. So the point
being here we've got a lot going on relative to documents in
Macau and whether they reviewed those documents and whether
they have been reviewing them since I believe it was sometime
in May when they led -- when you told them the sequencing
story wasn't going -- or attempt wasn't going to work. They
never came back to you, they never sought any form of relief
from you on that.

Then we get an email from Mr. Jones, who was new to
the case, which gave us a firm belief that nothing has
transpired in terms of review. And then we get this motion
which we have only preliminarily reviewed, Your Honor, and it
seems to confirm that story, because now they're basically
asking you for a protective order that says that they don't
have to -~

THE CQURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: -- some six months later.

THE COURT: So let's talk for just a second about
that motion for protective order related to the search of the
ESI that's in Macau. When will you all be ready to talk to
me, understanding for some reason I didn't take this one home
last night?

MR. PEEK: 1I'll let the Jones brothers handle that,
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1] Your Honor, even though it's my motion. Mark's the one that's
2] been to Macau.
3 MR. BICE: And we are obviously, Your Honor, going

to want to respond to it.

5 THE COQURT: I know.

6 MR. BICE: It's very extensive.

7 THE COURT: I'm trying to find a time for us to talk
8| about it.

9 MR. BICE: Understocd.

10 THE COURT: Scheduling.

11 MR. MARK JONES: Your Honor, we have been the

12| process throughout this, and since [inaudible] and before that
13| the short version is that we believe that if everything goes
14| according to plan [inaudible] the documents should make their
15| way out of Macau to the Court and to counsel, and we're still
16| confirming that we captured all of the Jacobs ESI, and we

17| don*t know the volume as of yet, and that's the only --

18 THE COURT: So my question is do you want the

19| December 13th or December 18th is really my guestion.

20 MR. MARK JONES: I'm sorry, Your Honor?
21 THE COURT: December 13th or 18th for the hearing?
22 MR. PEEK: 18th would be better for me.
23 MR. BICE: <C(an we move it to the 27th, which we're

24| goeing to be here anyway, or theoretically we're going to be

25| here anyway.
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1 THE COURT: Because somebody's going to tell me

2| they're having Christmas with their kids. I don't know which
3| one of the people in the room's going to say that. OQkay. I
4| had a volunteer to say it.

MR. PEEK: I'm going to be with my two teenage
daughters in Reno, Your Honor. And one of my -~ we'll just be

home that week.

[e - HENES B « A # 1]

THE COURT: Well, let's -- I'm going to talk about
9| scheduling in a minute. But do you want to move the motion
10} for protective order on whether you have to search the
11} information in Macau to the 13th or the 18th?
1z MR. MARK JONES: The 18th, Your Honor.
13 THE COURT: Okay. S0 we're going to start with that
14| on the 18th.
15 Now let's go back to your motion that you want to do
16} -~ it sounds like this is really a motion to compel, Mr. Bice,
17| because I've had representations made to me in court that
18| certain discovery obligations were going to be done --
19 MR. BICE: Yes.
10 THE COURT: ~- and maybe we haven't met that
21] schedule.
22 MR. BICE: Well, it is ~- it is in addition to that.
23] And I don't disagree with you that --
24 THE COURT: Well, what's the in addition? I'm

25} trying to get to what's really the subject of the Rule 37
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1] motion so I can determine if there's anything I should let you
do discovery on, because I'm not inclined to do so.

MR. BICE: Okay. Well, you shouldn't give me that

Y

warning, because now I'm going to try and persuade you
otherwise. But I'm going to do so briefly.
THE COURT: I know. That's why I gave you the hint.
MR. BICE: Your Honor, as you will recall, you had

indicated at the hearing and both during the discovery process

w1y

-~ they were refusing to provide information because the

10| testimony was principally coming from lawyers, and so they

11| were refusing to provide a whole host of information about

12 | what executives were involved, when they were involved, who

13| reviewed the documents, where they sent them to, et cetera,

141 all of -~

15 THE COURT: I had the IT guy tell me it was a

16| decision made by management. That's the guy who sat on the

171 stand, and he told me management made that decision.

18 MR, BICE: And we tried to get into more detail with
191 him in his deposition on that, and they claimed either

20| privilege or he hadn't been prepared on those subject matters.
21| That's why we had ~- and as vou'll recall, at the evidentiary

22| hearing itself we asked the lawyers these specific questions,

23| did Mr. Leven -- was Mr. Leven involved in that decision, was

24| Mr. Adelson involved.

25 THE COURT: We got attorney-client. That's why I
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1| had Ssam Lionel here,

2 MR. BICE: Privilege, privilege, privilege,

3| privilege. And you had indicated to us at that point in time
41 it was because we were asking the lawyers.

5 THE COURT: That's right.

6 MR. BICE: So what we're entitled to do is we're

7] entitled to find out what executives were involved in this

81 process of concealing the evidence from us., And I know that
91 they don't want to do that, but we're entitled to know that as
10| part of our Rule 37 sanctions --
11 THE COURT: Okay.
1 MR. BICE: -~ both on the past activity, as well as

13| that going forward. Because you'll also recall they wouldn't
14| provide to us -~ and this is what we find fascinating about
15} this latest motion ~-- they wouldn't provide to us their

16| contacts with the Macau Government. Well, now they want to
17| release some of them, the ones that they think are helpful to
18] them. And again it's this garbling of the truth, as the

191 Nevada Supreme Court says, when you try and selectively waive
20| information that you think is helpful to yourself but then you
21| invoke privilege on any questions or followup.

22 THE COURT: 1It's called the sword and shield
doctrine.

MR. BICE: Yes,

THE COURT: So basically what you're trying to tell

49

PA1617



(Page 50 of 59)

Y ®

me is that, since I wouldn't let you take the depositions of
certain executives during the discovery before my Rule 37
sanctions, you want me to now let you take those executives'
depositions understanding you may be faced with all the
privilege issues again.

MR. BICE: We may be. But we think that we can

[ S - (S ¥ B

certainly have a better shot at --

8 THE COURT: So what is the purpose, since I've

91 already granted you all the fees related to the work that
10| would have been accomplished related to those decisions by
11| executives?
12 MR. BICE: We are seeking additional forms of
13| sanctions, Your Honor, in addition to fees under Rule 37.
14 THE COURT: Okay. We're not going to do any more
15| discovery, then.
16 MR. BICE: What's that?
17 THE COURT: We're not going to do any more
18] discovery. You can ask me for the additional sanctions, but I

19| had testimony from the IT, the head of IT for the whole

20| company -~
21 MR. BICE: I understand that.
22 THE COURT: ~- and I understood what he told me. It

23| was a decision made by the company, not a decision made by the
241 lawyers. He told me that. I heard him. What was his name?

25 MR. BICE: Mr. Singh.
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Y L

1 MR. PEEX: Manjit Singh, Your Honor.

2 THE COURT: Mr. Singh.

3 MR. BICE: But the problem with that, Your Honor, is
4} at the same time we asked questions about the involvement of

5] personnel, and there were claims of privilege, and you had

6} indicated to us we would get into that relative to our motion,
7| as opposed to the Court's motion, because that was directed at
8| representations to the Court.

9 THE COQURT: I was surprised I heard that testimony
10 in my evidentiary hearing. And as a result of hearing that

11 ] testimony in my evidentiary hearing I believe I covered the

12| issue related to misconduct of management in making the

13] decision to mislead the Court, what I believed was a decision
14] to mislead the Court.

15 MR. BICE: So our ==

16 THE COURT: I know the Sands still disagrees and

17| says it wasn't wilful, because I read your footnote.

18 MR. BICE: I understand that that is what they

19} claim, But, Your Honor, again, they invoke privilege
20| selectively, and they have done it yet again in this current
21| motion,

22 THE CCURT: I'm not saying you won't be able to get
23| there some other day. I'm on jurisdictional discovery. I did
24| the sanctions hearing related to jurisdictional discovery.

251 You may well be able to get into some of those other issues
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1] later, because it will certainly go to the credibility that

2| witnesses may have. But in getting ready for my

31 jurisdictional hearing I am not going to go there now.

4 MR. BICE: I will want to readdress this very point
51 with you when we address that motion, because --

6 THE COURT: Yes. I'm not precluding you.

7 MR. BICE: Yeah. It seems to be a very selective

8| disclosure of information, Your Honor.the

9 THE COURT: I'm not saying they weren't selective.

10| I saw what they did. I was here.

il MR. BICE: Thank you.

12 THE COURT: I watched Sam Lionel and Charlie McCrea
13} do their job.

14 MR. BICE: Yes. I'm not criticizing them for doing
15] their jobs. My point is I just don‘t thirk you can cut off
16| some guestions and allow others to be answered. That's been
17! our only point.

18 THE COURT: I understand.

19 December 27th is when the issue related to their

20| Rule 37 motion is scheduled. Do you want t£o move it up to

21| December 18th, since you're all going to be here?

22 MR. BICE: We would ask that you do so.

23 MR. RANDALL JONES: The only concern I have, Your
24| Honor, is that I know -~ I think =--

25 THE COURT: When are you going to be done with trial
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with Judge Johnson?

MR. RANDALL JONES: Not till mid January.

THE COURT: Yeah. I'm not going to be done till mid
January, either. aAnd I don't want to wait till mid January to

do this.

[ R A > T 1

MR. PEEK: What you're talking about, you're just

7% talking about an oral argument on their motion?

8 THE COURT: All I'm having is an oral argument.

9 MR. RANDALL JONES: If we set it at 8:30, Your Honor
10{ -~ the 18th is what day of the week?

11 MR. PEEK: It's a Tuesday, Your Honor.

12 THE COURT: 1It's a.Tuesday.

13 MR. RANDALL JONES: That's typically a very late day

14| for Judge Johnson. So if we set this early, I can --

15 THE COURT: You want to come at 8:20 on the 18th and
16| move the motion that's currently on the 27th to that day.

17 MR, BICE: We have Mr. Kaye's deposition that day,
18| Your Honor.

19 . THE COURT: Can you start him a little later since
20] I've said you're not limited to a day?

21 MR. PEEK: He's noticed for 10:00 o'clock anyway,
22| Your Honor, I believe, because that's when they notice all
23] their depositions is for 10:00 o‘clock.

24 THE COURT: Well, but sometimes it takes them a

251 little longer to argue motions.
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MR, PEEK: I hadn't noticed that, Your Honor.

THE COURT: You're part of the problem.

MR. PEEK: I'm trying to be part of the solution,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: In fact, when I loock at my calendar and

[+ S B VS

I'm in trial and I see your name on there, I move the trial
7] start time back.

MR. PEEK: Oh, my gosh. I'm c¢crushed, Your Honor.

9 THE COURT: Yeah, I know vou are. Anything else?
10 MR. BICE: No, Your Honor. Thank you.
11 MR. RANDALL JCONES: Your Honor, just to be clear, I

12| was going to respond to that. But T take it that the Court

13| has denied that motion without prejudice.

14 THE COURT: The discovery motion?
15 MR. RANDALL JONES: Yes, Your Honor.
16 THE COURT: During this period of time where I am in

17| jurisdictional discovery only, ves.

18 MR. RANDALL JONES: Denied their motion, just for

19] the record, for all purposes at this time without prejudice?
20 THE COURT: Correct. On discovery.

21 MR. PEEK: And I'm assuming, Your Honor, you're also

22| denying their motion for an evidentiary hearing, as well.

23 THE COURT: I may change my mind --
24 MR. PEEK: That comes -~ that comes after the 18th
25 THE COURT: ~-- during the 18th hearing that an
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evidentiary hearing would be appropriate. Certainly if I make
a determination that evidentiary sanctions are appropriate,
Mr. Jones, I will make the offer, as I always do under Nevada
Power-Fluor, to the person who may be facing sanctions to have
an evidentiary hearing.

MR. BICE: Thank you, Your Honor.

LT A U ¢ R A - T

MR. RANDALL JONES: Your Honor, again, the only
concern I have -- we didn't argue it, and I don’'t want to

belabor it. I know you've had a lot of people waiting a long

© W

time. But there are -- there are issues that we want to make
11| sure we address at that hearing on the 18th that we did not
12| address today so that --

13 THE COURT: So are you going to file a brief?

14 MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, we did file an opposition
15| to this motion, and we also will file --

16 THE COURT: No. Are vou going to file a brief in

17| response to the Rule 37 motion?

18 MR, RANDALL JONES: We will. Absolutely, Your
19| Honor.
20 THE COURT: Okay. That's really what I will need,

21| Mr. Jones,

22 MR. RANDALL JONES: Okay. Very good.

23 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, may we have -- and I -~ maybe
24| I could just ask counsel here, because we've been dealing with

251 quite a few other motions so far, and I think that our
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1] response date is due today on that motion, or maybe Monday on
21 that motion. You don't know, Ms. Spinelli-?

3 MS. SPINELLI: I don't know your deadlines. I just
4} know mine.

5 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, we'd just like a little

6| additional time until like the -~

7 MR. RANDALL JONES: Monday?

8 MR. PEEK: No. I think it's due on Monday. I can
9: look at my calendar, as well, Your Honor.

10 MR. BICE: I'm trying to check mine, Steve. I

11] apologize.

12 THE COURT: Mr. Bice has all this technology at his
13| fingertips. 1It's really odd when you're in a settlement

14| conference and people are quoting from stuff and all they have
15| is that little piece of plastic in front of them.

16 MR. BICE: I don't know what day it is due, but I

17] will -- Mr. Peek and I and Mr. Jones will chat, and we will

18] agree upon a time frame -~

19 MR. PEEK: The deposition is due on the 10th, Your
20| Honor.
21 THE COURT: Agree on a reasconable schedule, and I

22| will need the reply brief by noon on the 17th.
23 MR. BICE: Understood, Your Honor. Thank vyou.
24 MR. PEEK: Our opposition's due the 10th, so we

25| probably want until the 13th.
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1 MR. MARK JONES: The motion to seal, do you want to

2} deal with the motion to seal?

3 THE COURT: The motions to seal we handle on the
4] chambers calendar.

5 MR. PEEK: Sort of administratively.

6 MR. RANDALIL JONES: Thank you, Your Honor.

7 MR. PEEK: May I just consult with counsel for a
8 | moment, Your Honor, before you dismiss you?

9 THE COURT: Yes,.
10 The motion to seal that's on calendar today, does

11| anybody have an objection to sealing or redacting Exhibits D
12| and F to the motion for protective order?

13 MR. BICE: Your Honor, I don't have -- for purposes
14} of right now I don't, because Mr. Goldstein's deposition, the
15] 30 days is not -~

16 THE COURT: So I'll grant it, and then if you need
17| to change it, you'll let me know.

18 MR. BICE: 1In respect to Mr, Adelson's deposition we
194 haven't had our meet and confer over those designations vet,
20| so we may -- we're not going to oppose it for right -~ for

21| purposes of right now, but we may in the future.

22 MR. PEEK: Yeah. I understood that, Your Honor.
23 THE COURT: OXkay.
24 MR. PEEK: They have an objection to some of the

25| designations that we've made, and we'll address those with
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them.
THE COURT: Billie Jo, the motion that was on the

27th is now on the 18th.

W BN =

‘Bye. 8:00 a.m.

THE PROCEEDINGS CONCLUDED AT 9:41 A.M.

6 * * ok * %
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CERTIFICATION

I CERTIFY THAT THE FOREGOING IS A CORRECT TRANSCRIPT FROM THE
AUDIO-VISUAL RECORDING OF THE PROCEEDINGS IN THE ABOVE-
ENTITLED MATTER.

AFFIRMATION

I AFFIRM THAT THIS TRANSCRIPT DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL
SECURITY OR TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER OF ANY PERSON OR ENTITY.

FLORENCE HOYT
Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

:Lanaﬁtaxpn.~néjﬂ/» 12/10/12

FLORENCE HOYT, TRANSCRIBER DATE
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CLERK OF THE COURT

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVEN C. JACOBS,

Plaintiff,
v.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a Cayman
Islands corporation; SHELDON G. ADELSON,
in his individual and representative capacity;
DOES I-X; and ROE CORPORATIONS I-X,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

Defendants Las Vegas Sands Corp. (“LVSC”) and Sands China Ltd. (“SCL”) submit the

CASE NO.: A627691-B
DEPTNO.: Xl

Date: December 27, 2012
Time: 8:30 am.

DEFENDANTS’ OPPOSITION TO
PLAINTIFF’S MOTION FOR
SANCTIONS

following opposition to Plaintiff*s Motion for Sanctions filed on November 21, 2012.
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141 Introduction
2 Plaintiff’s motion for sanctions should be denied for at least three independent reasons.
3 First, the motion has no legal basis because it cites no specific court order that Defendants
4 || allegedly violated. Although Plaintiff purports to seek sanctions for alleged non-compliance with
5 II adiscovery order, the Court never entered such an order, nor did Plaintiff ever seek one. Indeed,
6 || Plaintiff chose not to file a motion challenging the scope of Defendants’ document production,
7 || even though Defendants repeatedly described their planned production in correspondence, court
8 || filings and court appearances between June and October 2012. As a result, the Court never
9 {| entered an order directing Defendants to produce documents, and Plaintiff therefore has no legal
10 | basis for his motion.
Il Second, Plaintiff also has no factual basis for his motion. While Plaintiff broadly asserts
12 || that Defendants have conducted no searches of electronic files, this claim is simply not true. In
§ 13 | the past several months, Defendants have provided a rolling production of more than 145,000
" % E 14 || pages of documents based on an extensive search of ESI and other records, all at a cost of more
g ‘i? 15 || than $2,000,000. This production has included more than 15,000 pages of documents from ESI
3 E % 16 I that had been “ghost imaged™ and transferred to the United States in August 2010, With the
g g g; 17 || completion of this production, the only remaining step is to review the ESI in Macau for which
E E é 18 || Plaintiff is a custodian to ensure that it does not contain any responsive documents not found in
2 19 || the ghost-imaged ESI transferred to the United States. To this end, on November 29, 2012, after

20 |i repeated requests, Defendants obtained permission from Macau’s Office of Data Privacy
21 || Protection (“OPDP™) to conduct such a review in Macau, and SCL is now proceeding with the
22 || completion of this final step. These undisputed facts plainly demonstrate Defendants’ good faith,
23 || and they directly refute the baseless factual assertions made in Plaintiff’s memorandum., .

24 Third, Plaintiff makes no showing of prejudice, even though he now seeks the drastic
25 || sanction of a directed finding of personal jurisdiction. In his memorandum, Plaintiff nowhere
26 || explains exactly what documents Defendants have supposedly failed to produce, or how
27 || Defendants’ alleged non-compliance has prejudiced his case. This striking omission is not
28 || surprising in light of Defendants’ production of virtually all of the discovery having any

Page2 of 16
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conceivable relevance to Plaintiff’s jurisdictional theories. This discovery includes not only the

e

voluminous document production described above, but also the depositions of LVSC’s Chairman,
its Executive Vice Président of Gaming, and its Chief Operating Officer, as well as the upcoming
deposition of its Chief Financial Officer. On these facts, Plaintiff can make no showing of
prejudice, let alone a sufficient showing to warrant the sanctions he seeks.

Accordingly, for each of these reasons, Plaintiff’s motion should be denied.
2. Factual Background ;

Defendants respectfully suggest that the history of the jurisdictional discovery in this case

D0 s N W R W N

undercuts all of Plaintiff’s arguments for sanctions. The relevant facts are set forth below.

—
<

(a) The Scope of Jurisdictional Discovery

On March 8, 2012, the Court entered an Order granting Plaintiff’s motion to conduct

fa
ot

discovery on certain jurisdictional issues. (March 8, 2012 Order, Ex. C to SCL’s Motion for a

bt et
[V I -

Protective Order, at 1—6).1 In the Order, the Court authorized Plaintiff to take the depositions of

e

four individuals (Messrs., Adelson, Leven, Goldstein and Kay) and to seck the production of

fifteen categories of documents. (/d, at 1-3). As an “overriding limitation” on the scope of the

[y
wh

Order, the Court directed the parties to conduct only “discovery related to activities that were

-~}

done for or on behalf of Sands China.” (J/d., at 6.)2 The Court also made clear that its order was

—
o

not self-executing:

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
&

19 You're going to have to do formal discovery requests. . . let’s not assume
that just because [ said you can do these things . . . . that that means that

20 [Defendants] have to immediately respond. They don’t.
21 | (Oct. 13,2011 Tr., Ex. E, at 65).
22 Accordingly, on December 23 and 27, 2011, Plaintiff served discovery requests seeking
23 | documents from both SCL and LVSC, including (1) documents establishing the date and location
24 || of SCL Board meetings; (2) documents reflecting travel to Hong Kong, Macau or China by
25 o :

! For the convenience of the Court, this Memorandum incorporates by reference the set of exhibits submitted
26 || in support of “Defendant Sands China Ltd.’s Motion for a Protective Order on Order Shortening Time.” The

Memorandum also incorporates by reference the factual points and legal arguments made in Defendants’ Motion for
27 1| aProtective Order,
28 2 Although the Court’s Order was not entered until March 8, 2012, it provided this clarification in a

hearing held on October 13, 2011,
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certain LVSC executives; (3) agreements between SCL and LVSC: (4) contracts between SCL

ot

and other entities doing business in Nevada; and (5) other documents reflecting work performed
on behalf of SCL in Nevada by LVSC or other entities. (See Exs. F-G),

(b)  The May 24, 2012 Status Check

On May 24, 2012, the parties appeared for a scheduled hearing on the status of discovery.
(May 24, 2012 Tr., Ex. S, at 12-14.). At the hearing, LVSC announced that in March it had begun
a rolling production of responsive documents, which was still ongoing. (/d, at 8-9). SCL stated

that it had not vet reviewed Plaintiff's ESI, explaining that it was waiting until the electronic

W ~ h i = W b

media that Plaintiff had taken with him when he left Macau could first be searched. (/d., at 12-

-
<

14) The Court responded that this kind of “staggered” approach was improper, and it vacated the

oy
et

scheduled date for the jurisdictional hearing. (/d., at 14). The Court also instructed the parties to

return for another status check on June 28, 2012, adding that the parties should submit status

Pt
[

reports setting forth both the current status of discovery and the parties’ respective plans for the

—
E =S 98 ]

remainder of discovery. (/d., at 20).

—
N

(c) Defendants Describe Their Plans for the Remaining Document Production

On June 27, 2012, Defendants submitted a Joint Status Conference Statement

—
3

summarizing their production to date and outlining their plans for future production. (Ex. T). In

the Statement, Defendants began by describing the ghost-imaged copy of Plaintiff’s ESI that had

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
= &

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

19 || been transferred to the United States in August 2010. (/d, at 5). Defendants also described the
20 || process they had used in making their production to date, including the identification of relevant
21 || custodians and appropriate search terms. (Jd., at 2-4). This process yielded documents
22 || responsive to virtually all of the major categories of Plaintiff’s document requests. (/d., at 2-3).
23 Defendants then noted that their “future production” would generally consist of documents
24 || for which Plaintiff was the custodian. (Id, at 4). As to these documents, Defendants stated that
25 || they intended to implement a two-step approach by (1) immediately searching Plaintiff’s ESI that
26 | had been transferred to the United States in August, 2010; 3 and (2) then reviewing Plaintiff’s ESI
27

i On May 29, 2012, the OPDP informed Defendants that SCL could produce documents from the Plaintiff’s
28 || ESIin the United States without violating the MPDPA. (Ex. Y).
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1 | in Macau to determine if it contained any responsive documents not found in the transferred ESI.
(/d., at 6). Defendants explained that by first producing documents from the ghost-imaged ESI in

the United States, SCL could avoid “difficult questions” under Macau’s Personal Data Protection

- FF T )

Act (“MPDPA”). (Id, at 5). Indeed, under this approach, a problem would arise only if the
Macau data contained responsive documents not found in the transferred ESI —-and even then, only
if such documents also contained “personal data” within the meaning of the MPDPA, (/d,, at 6-
D.

At the June 28, 2012 hearing, Defendants again referred to their planned two-step approach

L= - R |

in producing Plaintiffs ESL. At that time, SCL’s then-counsel stated that SCL intended to
10 || “double and redouble” its efforts to “review the Jacobs documents that are in the United States
11 I and get those documents that are responsive to jurisdiction produced as quickly as we can.”
12 || (June 28, 2012 Tr., Ex. A, at 12) (emphasis added). However, SCL’s counsel also noted that

13 || Plaintiff’s original ESI in Macau stiil presented difficult legal issues:

o
=3
Q
A E § 14 ... And we think that we can get all of the documents, other than documents
- & ) in Macau — and we have to decide what the Court is going to do with that, because
‘;. 15 documents in Macau are a whole different situation and involve legal issues that
5 B 'g may or may not have to be resolved on the jurisdictional issue. But we think we can
= a.8 16 get through all of the Jacobs documents and all of the other documents in the United
;‘3 3 zﬂ States by Labor Day . . .
5gE
== 5
é E E 18 || (4, at 13) (emphasis added).® Thus, consistent with the discovery plan outlined in Defendants’
u
§ 19 | court filing, SCL’s counsel distinguished between Plaintiff’s ESI in the United States (which

20 || Defendants would review immediately) and the ESI in Macau (which SCL would review only
© 21 || after the completion of the 1.8, search).

22 Furthermore, at the same hearing, Plaintiff made no objection to this procedure or raise

23 | any other concerns about Defendants’ plans for discovery in Macau, even though Defendants had

24 || fully set forth their planned two-step approach in their June 27, 2012 Statement. This silence

25 || reflected Plaintiff’s recognition that Defendants’ approach did not represent a form of “staggered”

26 | 4 In his Motion for Sanctions, Plaintiff quotes SCL’s counsel as saying that SCL was going to
“double and re-double its efforts” and then claims that SCL’s counsel was promising to review documents
27 | in Macau. But as the full quotation shows, the promise was to review and produce documents from the
PlaintifPs ESI in the United States. SCL made no promises at all with respect to Macau and in fact
28 | reiterated the difficulties of producing documents that are located in Macau.
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1 || or “sequenced” discovery—in which one party conditions the production of documents on the
2 || other party’s production of its documents—but instead represented the most efficient way to
3 || produce the documents.
4 Finally, as part of the “meet and confer” process with Plaintiff’s counsel, Defendants
5 |l outlined the same major elements of their plans for document production. For cxamplé, in a July
6 | 30, 2012 letter, Defendants again noted that their document production plan called for a “review
7 || of documents in the United States in the first instance” before undertaking any search in Macau.
8 | (Ex. W) (emphasis added). Defendants also reiterated that their search in Macau would focus
9 || solely on documents for which Plaintiff was the custodian—and that Defendants did not intend to
10 || conduct the same expansive search in Macau that LVSC was conducting in the United States.
11 || (4., at1-2).
12 Accordingly, in court filings, correspondence and open court, Defendants repeatedly
§ 13 || stressed that (1) they intended to review Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau only after reviewing Plaintiff’s
s % é 14 || ESI in the United States; and (2) the search in Macau would be limited to documents for which
*‘g ‘;,.% 15 || Plaintiff was the custodian.
i 5 g 16 ‘In their communications with Plaintiff, Defendants also emphasized one other point: If
g é ?; 17 || Plaintiff was dissatisfied with any part of Defendants’ plans for document production, Plaintiff
E %’ ;; 18 || should file a motion to compel with the Court. (Jd., at 2). In so doing, Defendants echoed the
é = 19 || Court’s observation during the June 28, 2012 hearing that the “appropriate” way to raise a
20 | discovery dispute is to file a motion after first going through the “meet-and-confer” process.
21 || (June 28, 2012 Tr., Ex. A, at 12-13). After making this observation, the Court noted that “I
22 |l anticipate always that issues related to compelling documents will be handled by motion.” (/d, at
23 | 13) (emphasis adde&). Yet, notwithstanding the Court’s unambiguous comments—and
24 || notwithstanding Defendants’ repeated descriptions of their plans for document production—
25 || Plaintiff never filed a motion asking the Court to compel Defendants to produce documents or to
26 || otherwise revise their document production plans.
27 |
28 ||
$852851 1 Page 6 of 16
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1 d) The Court's September 14, 2012 Order
2 After Defendants disclosed that Plaintiff’s ESI had been transferred to the United States,
3 || the Court held an evidentiary hearing on September 10-12, 2012 to determine whether sanctions
4 | should be imposed. At the conclusion of the hearing, the Court issued a September 14, 2012
5 I Order imposing sanctions on Defendants and directing that (infer alia) “Sands China will be
6 || precluded from raising the MPDPA as an objection or as a defense to admission, disclosure or
7 || production of any documents.” (Jd., at 8). However, the Court also noted that “[t]his does not
8 || prevent the Defendants from raising any other appropriate objection or privilege” (Id., at 8, n.
9 || 12) (emphasis added).
10 (e)  Defendants’ Subsequent Document Production
11 Following the June 24, 2012 Status Check, the parties conducted several meet-and-confer
12 || sessions to discuss Plaintiff’s claim that Defendants’ document production had been inadequate.
gy 13 || (See SCL’s “Motion for a Protective Order,” at 15-16). The goal of the discussions was to (1)
. é E 14 || agree on a set of expanded search terms that LVSC could use to search the ESI of custodians
:'g §§ 15 | whose documents had already been searched once; and (2) agree on the identity of other
g § § 16 || custodians who might have traded relevant emails with Plaintiff during the relevant period. (Id.).
g é @; 17 || However, Plaintiff ultimately refused to continue the discussions and insisted that Defendants
;g E z 18 || select their own search terms for their own searches. (/d, at 16).
?\ 19 Eventually, Defendants did just that. Beginning in July 2012, Defendants unilaterally
20 || expanded the scope of their earlier searches by adding four new custodians and increasing the
21 || number of search terms used to identify potentially relevant documents. (/d.). With the expanded
22 | set of search terms, LVSC then conducted another search for responsive documents maintained
23 || by the original custodians it had reviewed earlier. (/d.). LVSC also used the expanded search
24 | terms to review Plaintiff’s ghost-imaged ESI that had been transferred to the United States, as
25 || well as the emails sent to and from Plaintiff by the expanded list of LVSC custodians. (/d.).
26 In carly November 2012, Defendants completed their production of virtually all
27 || non-duplicative documents responsive to Plaintiff’s jurisdictional discovery requests. (Jd, at 6,
28 || 16). Using the expanded search terms and a longer list of custodians, Defendants produced more
5892851 1 Page7of 16
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than 145,000 pages of documents at a cost of more than $2,000,000. (/d) These documents

[y

2 || included responsive documents from Plaintiff’s transferred ESI, as well as (1) contracts between
3 I SCL and LVSC; (2) contracts between SCL and entities doing business in Nevada, (3) documents
4 || relating to services performed by LVSC executives on behalf of SCL, (4) documents relating to
5 || the location and attendees at Board meetings, (5) documents relating to the activities of
6 | Messrs, Leven and Goldstein on behalf of SCL; and (6) documents relating to services performed
7 | by LVSC and other entities on behalf of LVSC in Nevada. (/d, at 11-16).
8 Thus, by November 2012, the only remaining step was to review Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau
9 | to determine if it contained any responsive documents that had not been ghost-imaged in the ESI
10 || transferred to the United States.’
11 It)] Discovery in Macau
12 Within a month of the Court’s September 14, 2012 Order, SCL replaced its counsel with
o 13 || the undersigned counsel who entered their appearance in October 2012, Almost immediately,
a, é § 14 | SCL’s new counsel attempted to meet and confer with Plaintiff’s counsel to discuss the scope of
g ‘§., % 15 || any document review in Macau. However, Plaintiff’s lawyers declined to discuss the scope of the
g g %’ 16 || Macau search with SCL’s new counsel. (/d., at 16; see also Ex. BB).®
g g §; 17 As a result, Defendants were left to make their own determinations as to how to conduct
E E é 18 || the Macau discovery in light of the Court’s September 14, 2012 Order. Although the Order
§ 19 § precluded Defendants from invoking the MPDPA as an “objection” to the production of Macau

20 || documents, it did not preclude SCL from attempting to comply with the laws of Macau in
21 I discharging its discovery obligations. As noted earlier, the availability of Plaintiff’s ghost-imaged
22 | ESI in the United States enabled Defendants to avoid issues under the MPDPA by producing
23 | responsive documents located in the United States. The only remaining issue was whether the

24 || ghost-imaged ESI in the United States somehow failed to capture any responsive documents

25

26 $ On December 6, 2012, the Court also ordered that Defendants produce additional travel records and make
Messrs, Adelson, Leven and Goldstein available for additional deposition time,

27 | o Mr. Jones’ October 30, 2012 e-mail to D. Spinelli (Ex. BB) and the transcript of the October 30, 2012

hearing (Ex. CC) are the only exhibits cited in this Memorandum that do not appear as part of the exhibits filed with
28 || scL's Motion for a Protective Order. Accordingly, Exs. BB and CC will be filed along with this Memorandum.

Page 8 of 16
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1 || contained in Plaintiff's ESI in Macau—an issue that could be determined only by reviewing
2 |} Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau.
3 Accordingly, at the October 30, 2012 Status Check, Defendants reported to the Court that
4 || they were about to undertake this final step:
5
MR. PEEK: . .. we're going to go to Macau, and we're
6 going to look at documents in Macau. So
whether or not there’s anything there that relates
7 to jurisdictional discovery that you’ve allowed
them to take will be ~ only can be found out
8 when you go there,
9 THE COURT: Okay.
IO * * *
11 MR, PEEK: . . . We will be going to Macau to begin that
review as to whether or not there are any
12 documents over in Macau. You’ve got to get
there to be able to find that out.
13

(Oct. 30, 2012 Tr., Ex. CC, at 8, 12) (emphasis added). At the same hearing, Plaintiff

—
i B

raised no objections to these comments, nor did he claim that the upcoming Macau review would

somehow prejudice his ability to present his jurisdictional case. (/d., at 8-12). On the contrary,

_ Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
Y

17 || Plaintiff insisted that the parties could still proceed to a jurisdictional hearing in late February or
18 || early March 2013. (/d).
19 On November 6, 2012, SCL’s new counsel flew to Macau to meet with representatives of
20 || OPDP to attempt to obtain their permission to revieﬁv documents in Macau.” On November 29,
21 || 2012, OPDP notified SCL that the Macau lawyers of an SCL subsidiary (Venetian Macau, Ltd.)
22 | could review the data in Macau. (Ex. AA).
23 Under this decision, the Macau lawyers can review Plaintiff’s ESI to determine if it
24 || contains any responsive documents not found in the ghost-imaged ESI data transferred to the
25 || United States. (Jd). If it does, the Macau lawyers can then determine if the documents contain
26 || any “personal data” and, if so, whether consents can be obtained or the data can be redacted.
27

’ OPDP had previously taken the position that the MPDPA barred SCL's lawyers from even reviewing the
28 || ESIinMacan.

— Page 9 of 16
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1 | (dd). By following this procedure, SCL hopes to be able to discharge its obligations to both the
Court and OPDP in Macau without any conflict. Defendants have now begun the process of

reviewing Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau, and they expect to complete the review by January 15, 2013,

& W

3. Legal Analysis

(a) Plaintiff’s Motion Has No Legal Basis

Plaintiff’s motion for sanctions has no legal basis because it fails to cite any specific
discovery order that Defendants purportedly violated. The Nevada Supreme Court has held that
“[u]nder NRCP 37(b)(2), a district court has discretion to sanction a party for its failure to comply

LB R R = AN ¥

with a discovery order, which includes document production under NRCP 16.1.” Clark Co.
10 | School Dist. v. Richardson Const. Co., 123 Nev. 382, 391; 168 P.3d 87, 93 (2007) (emphasis
11 || added). Under this standard, a district cowrt can impose sanctions “only when there has been

12 || willful noncompliance with the discovery order or willful failure to produce documents as

i 13 || required under NRCP 16.1.” Jd.
oy §§ 14 This requirement comports with the same requirement imposed by federal courts in
‘g :}.% 15 || dealing the federal analogue of NRCP 37(b). In a long line of cases, the federal courts have
g § % 16 || uniformly held that a clear and explicit court order is a necessary prerequisite for the imposition
f:é é @; 17 || of sanctions under Fed.R.Civ.P. 37(b). See, e.g, Unigard Sec. Ins. Co. v. Lakewood Eng'g &
?Q;‘ E é 18 | Mfg. Corp., 982 F.2d 363, 368 (9" Cir. 1992). The rationale for this requirement is that the
% 19 || imposition of sanctions is a drastic remedy that should be considered only when a party has

20 || engaged in willful or bad faith conduct. LeGrande v. Adecco, 233 F.R.D. 253, 257 (N.D.N.Y.)
21 || “In order for an act to constitute willfulness, the court’s order must be clear with no
22 I misunderstanding of the intent of the order and, further, there is no other factor beyond the party’s
23 |l control which contributed to the non-compliance.” Id.

24 In this case, Plaintiff expressly seeks sanctions under NRCP 37, but he nowhere identifies
25 || the precise discovery order that Defendants allegedly breached. This omission is not surprising.

26 || The Court never entered such an order because Plaintiff chose not to file a motion challenging

27 | ¢ See also RW. Int’l Corp. v. Welch Foods, Inc., 937 F.2d 11, 15 (Ist Cir. 1991); Salahuddin v. Harris, 782
F.2d 1127, 1131 (2d Cir. 1986); Bair v. California State Dept. of Transp., 867 F. Supp. 2d 1058, 1068 (N.D. Cal.
28 || 2012) (citing Unigard), Am. Prop. Const. Co. v. Sprenger Lang Found,, 274 F.R.D. 1, 10 (D.D.C. 2011).
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Defendants’ document production, even though Plaintiff has been well aware of the scope of that

fom—y

2 || production since at least June 2012,
3 In particular, beginning in June 2012 and continuing through October, Defendants
4 || repeatedly informed Plaintiff that SCL would conduct a search of Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau only
5 || after Defendants had completed their search of ESI and other documents (including Plaintiff’s
6 || ESD in the United States. Defendants also informed Plaintiff that in light of the limited nature of
7 || the jurisdictional inquiry the search in Macau would be limited to documents for which Plaintiff
8 [ was the custodian. _
9 Consistent with this protocol, as the completion of the production of the U.S. documnents
10 || drew near in October 2012, Defendants reported to the Court that they intended to go to Macau
11 || for the final stage of their document production. (See Oct. 30, 2012 Tr., Ex, CC, at 8, 12), Yet,
12 || at no time during this process—not even after the October 30, 2012 Status Check—did Plaintiff
13 || ever file a motion asking the Court to compel Defendants to produce specific documents or to
14 || otherwise revise the schedule for Defendants’ document production. Instead, Plaintiff skipped this
15 || requirement entirely and simply filed his motion for sanctions on November 21, 2012.°
16 The facts of this case thus stand in sharp contrast to the facts of Insurance Corp of Ireland,

17 || Ltd. v. Compagnie des Bauxities de Guinee, 456 U.S. 694 (1982), which is the principal authority

18 || cited by Plaintiff. In Insurance Corp. of Ireland, the trial court issued an order granting the

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 || plaintiff’s motion to compel defendants to produce certain specifically-identified documents

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

20 || within 90 days. Id, at 698. The trial court later modified its order by extending the time for
21 || production by an additional 90 days, and it expressly warned defendants that their failure to
22 || comply with the order would result in sanctions. Jd. When defendants thereafter refused to
23 || produce the documents, the trial court imposed sanctions under Fed.R.Civ.P. 37 by striking the
24 || defense of lack of personal jurisdiction. Id., at 699. On these facts, the Supreme Court upheld the
25 || Rule 37 sanction as a “just” remedy for defendants’ repeated refusal to comply with an explicit

26 § and unambiguous court order. /d., at 707,

27 {1 » Because Plaintiff’s motion for sanctions raises discovery issues that should have been raised in a motion to
compel, Defendants filed a Motion for Protective Order on December 4, 2012. In their motion, Defendants request
28 || anorder providing that SCL has no obligation to search the ESI in Macau of custodians other than Plaintiff,

st92851.1 Page 11 of 16
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1 By contrast, in this case, the Court issued no discovery order at all. Because Plaintiff
2 | chose not to challenge Defendants’ document production, the Court never had occasion to rule on
3 |l its propriety or to issue an order requiring Defendants to produce specific documents within a
4 |t specific timeframe. Nor does Plaintiff cite any other specific discovery obligation—whether

based on a court order, NRCP 16.1 or any other legal source—that Defendants allegedly violated.
As a result, Plaintiff has no legal basis for sanctions under NRCP 37(b), and on this ground alone,
his motion should be denied.

(b)  Plaintiff's Motion Has No Factual Basis

D= - CE T = e o |

Plaintiff’s motion also has no factual basis. To establish the factual predicate for sanctibns
10 || under NRCP 37(b)(2), Plaintiff must demonstrate not only that Defendants failed to comply with
11 || adiscovery order, but also that such non-compliance was willful. Clark Co, School District, 123

12 || Nev. At 391; 168 P.3d at 93. In the case, Plaintiff can make neither éhowing.

19 || their production of documents responsive to Plaintiff’s jurisdictional discovery requests, except

5 13 First, as shown above, Plaintiff makes no showing that Defendants violated even a
3

oy E; § 14 || generalized discovery obligation, let alone a specific court order, To be sure, in his motion,
a9 o

oo, ‘;l:g 15 || Plaintiff claims that Defendants have “done nothing” to complete their discovery obligations, and
O> '

Q% 5 % 16 || that SCL in particular has not even begun its search for responsive documents. (Pl. Memo., at
b=

F 2817 |45

= (5

= E - 18 But these statements are simply not true. As detailed above, Defendants have completed
a3
o]
Ll
I

20 || for the purely precautionary step of reviewing Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau to determine if it contains
21 || any responsive and non-duplicative documents. Defendants are now proceeding with this review,
22 || and they expect to complete this process by January 15, 2013. As a consequence, Plaintiff’s
23 || claims that Defendants have “done nothing” are entirely baseless.

24 Second, Plaintiff makes no showing that Defendants engaged in any form of willful
25 || misconduct—Ilet alone willful noncompliance with a court order—which could justify the
26 | imposition of additional sanctions. In his memorandum, Plaintiff asserts that Defendants engaged
27 || in “fraud” and “deceit,” but he bases these allegations solely on the conduct that the Court
28 || previously addressed in its September 14, 2012 Order—i.e., the failure to disclose the transfer of

Page 12 0of 16
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Plaintiff’s ESI to the United States. (Pl. Memo., at 8-9, 14). Plaintiff nowhere identifies any

et

2 || other specific conduct by Defendants or their new counsel that could constitute “willful non-
3 || compliance” to justify the imposition of new sanctions. Instead, Plaintiff simply relies on
4 || generalized (and baseless) assertions that Defendants have still “done nothing™ to comply with his
5 I document requests, and that this continuing non-compliance is contrary to Defendants’ prior
6 || representations, (/d, at S).
7 But the facts show that Defendants have conducted their document production exactly as
8 | they said they would do all along, and that they are fully compliant with their discovery
9 [ obligations. Indeed, Defendants have not only undertaken extraordinary discovery burdens at an
10 || extraordinary cost, but they have done so in the face of Plaintiff’s persistent refusal to provide any
11 || good faith cooperation in the discovery process. At every turn, Plaintiff has demanded the most
12 || costly and burdensome of discovery alternatives. He has refused to stipulate to any facts that
13 || would eliminate the need for any of his document requests; he has demanded that both

Defendants produce duplicate copies of responsive emails; he has refused to agree to search terms

[y
o+

or custodians; and he has ignored a recent request to speak to SCL’s new counsel about the scope

—
W

of ESI discovery in Macau, (See, e.g., Ex. BB).

As aresult, Defendants have been forced to unilaterally develop an expanded set of search

ot
~3

terms, unilaterally identify an expanded list of custodians and unilaterally determine the scope of

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
pos N

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

19 || the ESI search in Macau. Yet, despite all this, Defendants have now produced all non-duplicative
20 || documents having any relevance to any plausible jurisdictional theory, subject only to the
21 || precautionary review now being undertaken in Macau and the additional discovery ordered by the
22 || Court on December 6, 2012, Plaintiff’s claims to the contrary are factually baseless, and this
23 || complete failure of proof provides a second reason for denying Plaintiff’s motion for sanctions.

24 (c) Plaintiff Makes No Showing of Prejudice

25 Plaintiff also makes no showing of prejudice, even though he seeks the drastic sanction of
26 || a judicial finding of personal jurisdiction. The courts have long recognized that a showing of
27 || prejudice is an important factor in determining whether sanctions are “just” under Rule 37(b).
28 || See, e.g, Insurance Corp. of Ireland, 456 U.S, at 709. For example, in Insurance Corp. of

Page 13 of 16
5892851_1

PA1640



{Page 314 of 35)

1 || Ireland—the principal case cited by Plaintiff—the Supreme Court stressed that the defendants’
2 || refusal to comply with the trial court’s order meant that the plaintiff “was unable to establish the
3 || full extent of the contacts between [defendants] and Pennsylvania, the critical issue in proving
4§ personal jurisdiction.” I, at 707.
5 By contrast, in this case, while Plaintiff makes broad claims of “sabotage,”
6 | “concealment,” “obstruction” and “delay,” he nowhere describes exactly what types of documents
7 || Defendants have allegedly failed to produce, or exactly how Defendants’ document production
8 | has supposedly prejudiced his case.
9 Nor does Plaintiff explain why, if Defendants’ alleged non-compliance has “sabotaged”
10 || his case, he never filed a motion to compel, as this Court suggested during the June 28, 2012
11 | hearing. (June 28, 2012 Tr., Ex. B, at 12). Indeed, even at the October 30, 2012 hearing, when
12 || Defendants expressly noted their intention to conduct a document review in Macau, Plaintiff
5y 13 || made no claims of “delay, obstruction and concealment.” (Oct. 30, 2012 Tr., Ex. CC, at 8).
A E: é 14 || Instead, he insisted that, notwithstanding the Macau review, the jurisdictional hearing could still
:3 c;l S 15 go forward in late February or early March 2013 (id, at 8-12)—thus acknowledging that the
% § § 16 || Macau review will not prejudice his ability to present his jurisdictional theories.
E § g 17 Plaintiff’s acknowledgment underscores the extent to which Defendants have already
= E E 18 || produced virtually all of the non-duplicative documents responsive to Plaintiff’s jurisdictional
;ﬁ . 19 || discovery requests, including all responsive documents found in Plaintiff’s transferred ESI. The
’ 20 || only remaining step (the search of Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau) is not likely to yield many (if any)
21 | responsive and  non-duplicative documents, since Defendants have already produced the
22 | responsive documents from Plaintiff’s ghost-imaged ESI in the United States—and, of course,
23 | Plaintiff also has access to the ESI that he brought with him from Macau. Nevertheless, even as
24 | to these documents, Defendants recently secured permission from OPDP to conduct the review,
25 || and they expect to complete the process by January 15, 2013,
26 Accordingly, Plaintiff cannot show prejudice because (1) Defendants have already
27 || produced virtually all of the discovery (including Plaintiff’s ESI) having any conceivable
28 || relevance to Plaintiff’s jurisdictional theories; (2) Plaintiff’s ESI in Macau is not likely to contain
- Page 14 of 16
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any material documents that have not already been produced; and (3) in any event, even as to this

data, Defendants are now proceeding with its review to determine if it contains any responsive

and non~duplicative material,

denied.

4,

In the absence of any showing of prejudice, Plaintiff’s motion for sanctions should be

Conclusion

For the foregoing reasons, as well as the reasons stated in SCL’s Motion for a Protective

Order, Defendants urge the Court to deny Plaintiff’s motion for sanctions.

5892851 _1

DATED December 12,2012,

U & 7, r.
J. Stepher/P&Ek, Esq,”
Robert J. Cassity, Esq,
Holland & Hart LLP -
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp. and Sands
China Ltd.

J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No, 1927

Mark M. Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 000267

Kemp Jones & Coulthard, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Sands China, LTD.,
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1 CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
2 Pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b), [ certify that on December 12, 2012, I served a true and
3 || correct copy of the foregoing DEFENDANTS’ OPPOSITION TO PLAINTIFF’S MOTION
4 | FOR SANCTIONS via e-mail and by depositing same in the United States mail, first class
5 || postage fully prepaid to the persons and addresses listed below:
6
James J, Pisanelli, Esq.
7 || Debra L. Spinelli, Esq.
Todd L. Bice, Esq.
8 |i Pisanelli & Bice
3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
9 || Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
214-2100
10 || 214-2101 — fax
ii isanellibice.com
11 | dis@pisanellibice.com
tib@pisanellibice.com
12 ka%%),pisanellibice.com ~ staff
see@pisanellibice.com — staff
=y 13
2 < Attorney for Plaintiff
Heoh 14 ‘
HEB3
gﬂgls *Z%u
o
2 )
= E 5 16 (o (Aﬂ/b(s
= = An Employee of Holland &%Lw
g3817
cEE
n E 18
n g
[Ya) 19
N
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
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Dineen Bergsing

From: Dineen Bergsing

Sent; Wednesday, December 12, 2012 4:38 PM

To: JAMES J PISANELL); dis@pisanellibice.com; h@pisaneliibice.com; Kimberly Peets;
see@pisanellibice.com

Ce: Steve Peek; Bob Cassity; Theresa McCracken

Subject: LV Sands/Jacobs - Defendants' Opposition to Plaintifs Motion for Sanctions

Attachments: 1179_001

Please see attached Defendants’ Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion for Sanctions. A copy to foliow by mail.

Dineen M. Bergsing

Legal Assistant to J. Stephen Peek,
Justin C. Jones, David J. Freeman
and Nicofe E. Lovelock

Holland & Hart LLP

9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

(702) 669-4600 - Main

(702) 222-2521 - Direct

(702) 669-4650 ~ Fax
dbergsing@hotlandhart.com

HOLIAND&HART. PN

ER-R TR IR S

CONFIDENTIALITY HOTICE: This message is confidential and may be privileged. if you believe that this email has been sent to you in
ervor, plaasa reply to the sender that you racelved the message in arror; then piaase delate this a-mall. Thank you.
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Froms Mack Jones

Tot Resea Soinelk

Subjects Steven C. Jacobs v, LYSE, ot &, -~ foliow up
Datat Tuesdyy, Octoder 30, 2012 £:51:51 PM
Debbie,

Steve Peek and | are requesting a meet-and-confer with your firm 1o go over the scope of our €SI
review for SCL, which, | understand, is required by the June 23, 2011 Stipulation and Order
Regarding ESI Discovery. Specifically, we need to reach an agreement during the meeting as to the
custodians for whom information should be reviewed and the search terms to be used to identify
potentially responsive jurisdictional information from those custodians, We would request the
meeting this Thursday or Friday, and will make ourselves available on those dates at your
convenience.

Thanks,
Mark

Mark M. Jones, Esq.

KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89168

Phone (702} 385-6000

Fax (702} 385-8001%

This e-mali transmission, and any documents, files, or previous e-mall messages attached to it mw tontain confidentis)
information that is legaily wlvuegea, If you are not the intended udpienror a person responsible for delivering it to the
intended recipient, you are ereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of anv ofmnhkxmuon
contained in or attached to this transmisslon is prohibited. If you have received this transmission

immediately notify us by reply e-mail, by iamardim this 10 sender, or by tefephone at (702) 385- 6009. and dastroy the
original ransmission and ks attachments without reading or saving them in any manner, Thank you.

From: Debra Splne!ll
Sents Tuesday, October 30, 2012 10:13 AM

To: Steve Peek (SPeek@hollandhart.com); Randall Jones; Mark Jones
Cc: Todd Bloe; James Plsanelli; Jennifer L, Braster; Eric T. Aldrian
Subject: Steven C, Jacobs v. LVSC, et al, -~ follow up

Steve —

! was pondering on ray drive back from court and wanted to follow up on something you sald at the
status conference. You mentioned that you {meaning Defendants’ counsel) were going to Macau to
review documents. We were under the impression, for whatever reason, that this review process in
Macau had already begun. Can you please confirm {1} If documents in Macau have been reviewed
for jurisdiction yet; and (2) when you {or whomever attorney for Defendants) will be going to Macau
for the document review you referenced? Among other things, this may facilitate
planning/scheduling.
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Thanks in advance,
Debbie

Debra L. Spinelii

Pisanelli Bice PLLC

3883 Howsrd Hughes Pkwy, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nv 89169

tel 702.214.2100

fax 702.214.2101

% Ploase conswder the environment Jofore ponting.

To ensure compliance with requirements imposed by the IRS, we inform you that any Federal tax
advice contained in this communication {including any attachments} Is not intended or written to be
used, and cannot be used, for purposes of (i} avoiding penalities under the Internal Revenue Code, or
(i) promoting, marketing or recommending to another party any transaction or tax-related matter
addressed herein,

This transaction and any attachment Is attorney priviteged and confidential. Any dissemination or copying of this
communication is prohibited. if you are not the Intended recigient, plaase notify us immediately by raplying and delete the
maessage. Thaok you.
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STEVEN JACOBS

Plainciff CASE NO. A-627691
vs.
DEFT. NO. XI
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., et al.
Transcript of

Pefendants Procesdings

D s e s L

I R

BEFORE THE HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, DISTRICT COURT JUDGB

STATUS CHECK
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 30, 2012

APPEARANCES:

FOR THE PLAINTIFF: TODD BICE, ESQ.
DEBRA SPINELLI, ESQ.

FOR THE DEFENDANTS: J. STEPHEN PEEK, ESQ.

MARX JONES, ESQ.

COURT RECORDER: TRANSCRIPTION BY;

JILL HAWKINS FLORENCE HOY?T
District Court Las Vegas, Nevada 89146

Proceedings recorded by audio-visual recording, transcript
produced by transcription service,
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, OCTOBER 30, 2012, 9:07 A.M.
{Court was called to order)

THE COURT: ©Now I go to Stevens versus Jacobs -- no.
Steven Jacobs versus Sands.

Mr. Mark Jones, you've joined our foray here.

MR. JONES: Yes, Your Honor.

MR. BICE: Good morning, Your Honor. Todd Bice and
Debra Spinelli on behalf of Steven Jacobs.

MR, PEEK: And good morning, Your Honor. Stephen
Peek on behalf of Las Vegas Sands Corp. and Sands China
Limited.

MR. JONES: And Mark Jones on behalf of Sands China
Limited, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. I set this status check
because I need to get us back on track for me to have the
evidentiary hearing on the jurisdictional issues the Nevada
Supreme Court ordered me to do about a year ago. And we've
been messing around with discovery for that period of time,

The question is, since I have new counsel for Sands
China and we've had a diversion on some of the Macau Data
Privacy Act issues, what more do you need to do before I
schedule your evidentiary hearing.

MR. BICE: Well, I think, Your Honor, our preference
would be to get a sense of your schedule. We are --

THE COURT: My schedule sucks.
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MR. BICE: I know it does. But only you can say
that. I can't say that to Your Honor.

So I think what we would like to have you do is give
us a sense about your schedule, some ideas of when you would
be -~

THE COURT: Here's my problem, Judge Tagliotti
settled $7 million of the case I'm currently in, and it got
longer after the settlement was reached. So, instead of us
being able to finish before Christmas, which was the
anticipated thing when I had all the parties in the case, it
looks like we're going to go into mid January.

MR. BICE: All right.

THE COURT: If you tell me when you're going to be
done, I'll take a break from that trial, if I need, because
I'd love to have a break from that trial, because it's a bench
trial -~

MR. BICE: All right.

THE COURT: -- or, alternatively, I can find you
gsome time that works with you. My May stack next year got a
little easier, since the CSD entities filed bankruptcy and Mr.
Peek's preferential trial setting is not on there. But your
Whittemore case is still on that. I have -~

MR. PEEK: Well, ¥Your Honor, respectfully, on that
there's still parties in that that aren't in bankruptcy.

THE COURT: Okay. So are you telling me you don't
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think it's stayed?

MR. PEEK: I don't think that the case against the
individuals that are not in bankruptcy or the entities that
are not in bankruptcy are stayed. But I don't want to -- I
don't want to address that with the Court -~

THE COURT: Max, can you set a status check.

You don't have to. Max will set a status check, and

we'll talk to everybody about that.

MR. PEEK: Thank you, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Because I understand what you're saying.

MR. PEEK: Yes. Thank you.
THE COURT: All right.

MR. PEEX: I didn't want you to vacate that.

MR, BICE: T would like -- I would like to get this

jurisdictional issue on for hearing prior to then, in any
event.

THE COURT: Well, when dco you want -- when are you
going to be done with discovery? That's all I want to know.
When are you going to be done with discovery?

MR. BICE: Understood. I think that we will be
available to go with an evidentiary hearing in this matter
sometime in early February, would be my belief, Your Honor.
We've got the month of November, month of December, and

January. I would certainly hope that we are through all of

"these -- the depositions, the document production, and the

4
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various motions and be able to hold a hearing on this matter
in early February.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Mark Jones, you're new
to the case. You've got a lot of stuff you have to review to
catch up, you and the other people in your office. If we're
looking at.scheduling something in February or March are you
going to be up to speed?

MR. JONES: Your Honor, thank you. There's no
question I would be up to speed, and we'll very diligently
review that. There is a lot that I do not know at this point,
but we have thought and discussed this long and hard, and to
us it's most important to not come back and ask you for
additional time.

THE COURT: You don't know how many times I've been
asked for additional time in this case.

MR, JONES: Realistically, then, we have -~ we
believe that because -~ and, again, I was ready to discuss the
Macau situation this morning. We think realistically that
it's probably the end of March when we're ready for the
hearing, again, taking into consideration all of the various
things that we're going to be doing in the meantime.

I would love to say we've thought long and hard
about it and that's --

THE COURT: Well, I'm actually just trying to get a

realistic estimate from you so I can find a place to plug you
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in. That's really all I'm trying to do.

MR. JONES: Okay. That's where we are, Your Honor.

THE CQURT: Because my prior estimate of this, even
though people would tell me two, three days, is it's a week.
And so I'm trying to find a week where I can just set aside
for you guys, because we have some complicated issues to
resolve, and I don't want you to be rushed.

Mr. Peek.

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I don't -- I don't like to be
rushed, either.

THE COURT: And I'm always rushing you, because you
take a long time.

MR. PEEK: You know that I need to be prodded from
time to time, Your Honocr. And I do. And I did, of course,
have a script here about what we've done to date and what we
have to do to déte, but I anticipate a number of issues that
are going to arise as we proceed with discovery down the road
and the questions come up about depositions. For example, the
plaintiffs have asked for the deposition of Mr. Adelson. He's
already been deposed once. There were a number of issues that
were raised during the course of that deposition that I want
to address with the Court.

THE COURT: He had some health issues, if I recall
correctly.

MR. PEEK: He did, Your Honor. But those weren't
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really -- certainly they delayed the time the deposition took
place, the commencement of it and the termination of it at the
end of the day, but there were certainly a number of issues
that arose during the course of that deposition that I think
need to be addressed to the Court in motion practice. 3o
those are kinds of things that -— I'm not trying to delay us.
I want to have --

THE COURT: File them.

MR. PEEK: I want to have this hearing. I will,
Your Honor. But until yesterday, when they asked for the
deposition of Mr. Adelson, I didn't think they wanted to go
forward with it. So that certainly is something we need to
address with the Court, because we believe there's, you know,
nothing more to be gained from the deposition of Mr. Adelson
that hasn't already been done. They have a different view of
discovery that the Court allowed than I do, and certainly
we're going to have to come back to the Court and discuss that
with the Court. So I'm telling the Court and advising the
Court that we are going to come back to you with those issues.

Mr. Jacobs's deposition hasn't been taken yet. We
asked for it. He didn't appear for the date noticed. There
was a calendaring issue, apparently, at the Pisanelli Bice
office, so it didn't go forward. We have issues that are
going to be brought up with respect to that deposition.

They've asked me for depositions of others. I'm
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going to try to give them dates. So there are a number of

things that I don't think that will take much time. I'm going

to try to work them out with plaintiffs. And I think, like
Mr. Jones says, we can be ready to go at the end of March,
first of April of next year, which I think is a month

Because I'm

different than what Mr. Bice would like to have,

like Mr, Jones. I don't want to come back here and say, we're

not done; because we're going to go to Macau, and we're going
to look at documents in Macau. 8o whether or not there's

anything there that relates to jurisdictional discovery that
you've allowed them to take will be -~ only can be found out

when you go there.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. BICE: Your Honor, I --

THE COURT: Mr. Bice.

MR. BICE: Yes. Thank you. Your Honor, my

observation would be I think it sounds like a couple of

months'® difference. And, you know, we don't need to, you

know, retrace a lot of history. I could go over issues with
Mr. Adelson's deposition, but I don't think that would be

productive for today's purposes.

Nonetheless, we have -- we start a long jury trial
Mr. Peek is inveolved in with Sands and Suen at the end of
March. That jury trial starts --

THE COURT: That's in front of Judge Bare; right?
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MR. BICE: That jury trial starts March the 25th,
and it's a firm date in front of Judge Bare. And that trial
is going to go, if it goes anything like the last one -~ this
is over the Suen --

THE COURT: Long time. Yeah. No, I know. It was
in 12 when it went last time.

MR. BICE: It went for 28 trial days then. I think
it'1ll be shorter this time around. But, nonetheless, that's
going to consume all of the end of March and all of the
beginning of April for sure. So I don't -~ I think =-- you
know, we will work with them to make something work, but I
think it needs to occur prior to that, because that's going teo
basically consume that month and a half., So if they want to
look at something earlier in March, later in February, we can
work on that to try and work around people's schedules.

THE CQURT: Anything else you guys want to tell me.

MR. BICE: ©No, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. Mr. Peek, I need you to file
your discovery motions. Can you get them filed in the next
week or so?

MR. PEEK: Aspirationally, yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. PEEK: Realistically I'm not sure. But
aspirationally, yes.

THE COURT: That's why I said week or so. Send
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those over on an OST. I'm going to try and look through the
items that are in the February stack. And looking at it right
now, I have another case involving Macau that's on the
February stack, and so I'm trying to see where I can move some
things around to make it work.

MR. BICE: Okay.

MR. PEEK: And, Your Honor, Mr. Bice does make a
good point, is that his firm and my f£irm will certainly be --

THE COURT: Busy.

MR. PEEK: ~~ busy in March in the Suen case. It
does start the end of March. And I think Mr. Bice is correct.
Both of us do not believe it will go the 29 trial days that it
went before in front of Judge Leavitt, but it's certainly
going to be at least a three~ to four-week trial.

THE COURT: Well, I was going to ~-

MR. PEEK: And it will consume a couple weeks in -~
at least two or three weeks in advance to get prepared for
that trial.

THE COURT: Right. I was going to give you the week
of April 8th, but that won't work with the -~

MR. PEEK: Mr. Bice is correct. That won't work.

THE COURT: ©No. So I have to look for other places
to see where I can slide you in.

Okay. I'm going to schedule a status check on the

Newton case that's separate and apart. So if you'll let Mr.

10
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McCrea know I'm going to schedule that, and then we'll try and
figure out the unstayed part of that.

Mr. Mark Jones.

MR, PEEK: And then, Your Honor, are you -=- you're
not setting something right now on this evidentiary hearing,
but you're going to bring us back here sometime when --

THE CQURT: I've got to figure out where I can --
I've got to give you a firm setting on this, which is
unfortunate for me, because it means I have to give you
priority over other things. But I've got to get this done.

So I have to see on the February, and then, if that doesn't
work, the stack that starts on April 15th, where within those
groups that I can find a week that I can set aside for you.
Part of the problem is that Neil Beller or Dominic Gentile
case that was in front of you is not going to be a short case.

MR. PEEK:; I can see that, Your Honor, dealing with
the cab companies and the strip clubs, it's not going to be
pretty.

THE COURT: Or short.

MR, PEEK: Or short. And neither is the Whittemore
case or the CSD case going to be pretty or short at the end of
May, whichever one does go. So --

THE COURT: And then I'11 have CityCenter in
between.

MR. PEEK: I just don't want to come back, Your

il
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3. It is in this context that the Court has ruled that SCL must produce certain
information relevant o whether the Court has jurisdiction over SCL.  In general, what is
requested is information that shows the relationship between SCL and LVSC, see Amnex 1
(March 8 Court Order). To determine its jurisdiction, the Court is ot interested in information
relevant to the merits of the allegations in the lawsuit or about individuals, SCL’s obligation at
this moment is to determine only whether there are any additional documents in Macau that are

relevant — solely and exclusively — o the Court’s jurisdictional question.

6. Because the Court s af this stage interested only in the relationship between SCL
and LVSC, 1t is believed that most, if not all, of these types of documenis are located in the
United States of America and therefore have already been produced to the Court by LVSC, but
that can be confirmed only after VML reviews its documents in Macau.

7. If SCL does not comply with the Court’s Order, the Court may impose sanctions
over SCL, including but not limited to entering a ruling that the Court has jurisdiction over SCL.

8. s noted above, VML is an indirect subsidiary of SCL and the majority of its -

share capital is indirectly held by SCL. Therefore VML has a significant intevest in SCL being
dismissed from the Jacobs Lawsuit. In addition, it also seems clear that the interest of VML, in

avoiding adverse consequences 10 SCL, which may occur if SCL is unable to comply with the
Court’s Order, is legitimaie,

9. In this context, VML intends 1o retain a group of Macau lawyers, registered with
the Macau Lawyers Association, and a Hong Kong Law Firm, to work tagether and to review the
documents that are in the possession of VML in Macaw, to determine whether VML has any
documents in Macau that are relevant 10 the question whether the Court has jurisdiction over

SCL. For this purpose, the retained Hong Kong Law Firm will enter into a consuliancy

Exteads da Bata de N Senhoes da Kapersngs, o/n, Taipa, Macoo SAR, P.E. Chins

E # i 1 '
BHEFEREERANE Td S022088  Fan 45 7822 8889 wew.veneliantmaeso.com
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agreement with VML, in terms similar to those contained in the document hereto attached as
Annex 2.

10. VML understands that if it were a party 1o a pending lawsuit in a Macau court
then VML could review its documents for the purposes of preparing its defense without the need
to notify OPDP or to request authorization to process any personal data contained in such
documents. However, due fo the special nature of this case, given the circumstance that VML is
not a party to the lawsuit and that the lawsuit is outside Macay, and also in light of the previous
communications between VML and OPDP, VML believes it is appropriate (o notify the OPDP
before commencing the review of the data herein described,

In light of the above, VML deems that, pursuant to subparagraph 5) of article 6 of the
PDPA, the data review process hevein described, carried out by Macau lawyers and the Hong
Kong Law Firm, and the exercise of processing of VML's data that might contain some personal
data, corresponds to a legitimate right of VML, necessary because that is the only way in which
VML is able to determine whether it has documents in Macay that may be relevant to the defense

of SCL, and that in the present case the interests or fundamental rights, freedoms and guarantees

of the data subjects will not be compromised by the mere cataloging review by counsel and thus
should not prevent limired review.

Therefore, pursuant to article 21, paragraph 1 of Law 8/2005, VML hereby notifies the
OPDP of its intent to conduct the data processing exercise as herein described,

In case OPDP has a different interpretation of the application of the PDPA and believes
that the data review exercise herein described is subject to its pre-approval — with which VML

does not agree but would concede in case that is the interpretation of the OPDP ~ then, pursuant

Estrada da Bals de M, Senhora 4o Bsperonga, o/n, Taips, Macsu SAR, PR, Chins

MRS NS RRASA  Toh 13532982 3088 Frae 4853 2382 3043 wvw,venstianmacao.com
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to Article 22, paragraph 4 of Law 8/2003, this letter serves as g request for OPDP’s approval 1o
conduct the data review process herein described.

Because of the Court’s upcoming evidentiary hearing, and the potential volume of VML

materials that may need to be reviewed, VML hereby requests that OPDP consider this request
as a matter of urgency.

Enclosed: 2 documents

To be enclosed: translation to Portuguese of the 2 documents enclosed

Yours sincerely,

General Counsel

10

Esirada da Bata de M, Sunbare da Esperanga, sfa, Trips, Mueno SAR, PR, Chine
BPIEIFERROEAER T 83208248 Foxes
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Jagxm. Ptsfgeui, Esq, BarNo. 4027 . CLERK OF THE COURT
Bice, Esq., Bar No, No, 4534
1
l D;bm L, Spinelli, Esq,, Bar No, 9695
a L. Rickard, Esq., Bar No, 10203
;‘;%.;af«m% ﬁm sul
8 way, Suite 800
Las Vepas Nevng H
Tele Bone. 702) 214«-2100
Facsimile: (702) 214-2101
Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacoba
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
STEVEN C. JACOBS, CaseNo,:  A-10-627691
Bept. No: X1
Plaintiff,
Ve
ORDER REGARDING PLAINTIFE
LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP,, s Nevada STEVEN C, JACOBS* MOTIONTOQ
ﬂ corporation; SANDS CHINA ALTD. 8 CONDUCT JURISDICTIONAL
Caymon Islands corporation} DOES | DISCOVERY and DEFENDANT SANDS
lhmugh X; and ROE CORPORATIONS CHINA LTD,'s MOTION FOR
1through X, CLARIFICATION
i
Defendants,
Date and Time of Hearings:
AND RELATED CLAIMS
September 27, 2011 at 4:00 p.m.
Oclober 13, 2011 at 9:00 g.m,

Flalntiff Steven C. Jacobs' (“Jacobs"y Muotion to Conduel Jurisdictional Discovery
{*Motioa®) came before the Court for hearing at 4:00 p.m. on September 27, 2011, James J,
Pisanelli, Bsq., and Debira L, Spinelli, Esq., of (he law fism PISANELLI BICE PLLC, sppeared on
behalf of Jucobs, Pafricia L. Glaser, Egq., of the low firm Qlaser Well Fink Jacobs Howard
Avchen & Shapiro LLP, appesved on behalf of Defendant Sands China Ltd. ("Sands China"),
J. Stephen Peck, Esq., of 1he law firm Holland & Hat LLP, appesred on behalf of Defendunt

1
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Las Vegas Sands Corp, ("LVSC"). "The Count considersd the papers filed on behalf of the parties
and the oral argument of counsel, and good cause appearing thevefor;

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECRERD that the Motion to Conduct
Jurisdictional Discovery is GRANTED IN PART and DENiED IN PART as follows;
1. GRANTED a3 10 the deposition of Michael A. Leven (“Leven®), a Nevada
resident, whe simultaneously served as Presldent and COO of Las Vegas Sands Corp. ("LYSC"
and CEO of Sunds China (among other tiles), regarding the work he performed for Sands Ching,
and work he performed on behnif of or divectly for Sands China while acting as an employee,
officer, or disector of LVSC, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to Qotober 20, 2010;
2 GRANTED as to the depositon of Sheldon G, Adelson (“Adelson®), & Nevada
resident, who simultaneously served o Cheltman of the Board of Dircetors end CEQ of LVSC
and Chalrman of the Board of Directors of Sands Ching, regarding the work he performed for
Sands Chine, and work he performed on behalf of or divectly for Sands China while soting as en
employee, officer, or dirsctor of LVSC, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20,
2010;

3, GRANTED as to the deposifion of Xenneth J, Kay ("Kay"), LYSC's Excemive
Vige Prestdent and CFO, who, upon Plaintiff's information and belief, participeted in the funding
efforts for Sands Chine, regarding Uie work he performed for Sands Chine, and work he
petformed on behalf of or direcily for Sands China while scting as an employee, officer, or
director of LVSC, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010;

4, GRANTED as to the deposition of Robert 3. Goldstein ("Goldstein), a Nevada
resident, and LVSC's President of Global Gaming Operations, who, upon Plaintiffs information
and belief, actively participates in International marketing and development for Sands China,
vegarding the work he performed for Sands China, and work he performed on behalf of or directly
for Sends China while soting as an employee, officer, or director of LYSC, during the time period
of Yanuary 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010; '

! This time fe:iod was agreed upon and ordered by the Court in the Stipulation rnd Order
Regarding ESI Discovery entered filed on June 23, 2611, and is also relevant to the Jimited
Jurisdiotional digcovery permiited herein,
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the event that the witnesses identified ebove in Paragraphs 1 twough 4 lack memory knowledge
concetning the relevant tapics duding the time period of January 1, 2009, to Octaber 20, 2010;
6. GRANTED a3 to docwnents that will establish the date, tlme, and location of each

Sands China Board meeting (Including the meeting held on Apil 14, 2010, at 9:00 a.m. Macau
Time/Apeil 13, 2010, at 6:00 p.m. Las Veges time), the lccation of each Board member, and how
they participated in the mecting during the perlod of Janmary 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010;

7. GRANTED as to documents that veflest the travels 1o and fom
Macaw/China/Hong Kong by Adelson, Leven, Goldstein, andfor any other LYSC employes for
any Stnds China relsted business {including, but not Himited to, flight logs, travel itinermies)

during the time pexlod of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010;
f 8. DENIEL a3 to the calenders of Adelson, Leven, Goldsiein, and/or any other LVSC
executlve who has had meetings related to Sends China, provided scrvices on behall of
Sands Ching, andfor avelled to Macaw/China/Hong Kong for Sands China business during the
time perdod of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010;

% GRANTED as to documents and/or communications reluted to Michsel Leven's
service as CEO of Sands China and/or the Executive Director of Sands China Bourd of Divectors

without payment, as reporied o Hong Kong securities agencics, during the time period of
January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010;

10,  GRANTED 2s 1o documents that reflect that the negotiation and execution of the
sgreements for the funding of Sands China oecurred, in whole or in part, in Nevada, during the
time period of Janvary 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010;

1l.  GRANTED us to contracte/ogreements that Sands Ching entered Info with emities
based in or doing business in Novads, including, but not limited to, any agreements with BASE
Entertaimnent and Bally Technologies, Inc., durng the lime perlod of Janvery 1, 2009, to
Qatober 20, 2010;

12,  GRANTED as to documends that reflect work Robers Goldsteln performed for
Sands China, and work he performed on behalf of ox directly for Sands China while acting as an

3

5, GRANTED a5 to a narrowly teilored NRCP 30(b)(G) deposition of S8ands China in
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employes, officer, or director of LVSC, during the time peried of January 1, 2009, to Qctober 20,
2010, including (on Plainliff's Information and bellef) global gaming snd/or international playor
development efforts, such as active recruitment of VIP players to share between ond among
LVSC and Sands China properties, and/or player funding;

13, GRANTED as to sl agreements for shared services between and among LYSC
and Ssnds Ching or any of its subsidiaries, Including, but not limited 10, (1) procuremant services
rgrecments; (2) sgreements for the sharing of private jets owned or made avallsble by LVSC; and
(3) trademark Yicense agreements, during the time period of Januvary 1, 2009, to Golober 20, 2010;

14, DENIED a3 to documents that reflect the flow of money/funds from Macau to
LVSC, including, but not limited to, (1} the physical cowrdering of money from Macan o
Las Yegas; and (2) the Affiliate Transfer Advice ("ATA"), including nll documents that explain
the ATA system, its purpose, how it operates, and that reflect the actual transfer of funds;

15. GRANTED &5 lo aif dotuments, memoranda, emails, and/or other correspondence

14 ‘ that reflect services performed by LVSC (Inoluding LVSC's executives) on behalf of

15

17
18
15
0
2t
2
23
4

Sands China, including, but not limited to the following arcas: (1} site design und development

16 ”oversight of ParcelsSand 6; (2) reorviiment snd Interviewing of potentlal Sands Chine

excoutives; (3) marketing of Sands Ching properiies, including hiring of outside consultants;
{4) negotiation of a possible jolnt vesture between Sands China and Harrah's; andlor (5) the
negatl#lion of the sale of Sands Chine's Interest in sites to Stenley Ho's company, $/M, during the
time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010;

"6 GRANTED 2 to all documents thes roflest work porformed on behalf of Sands
China in Nevads, including, but not limited, documents that reflect communications with BASE
Entertainment, Clrque du Solel], Bally Technologics, Inc., Harrah's, potentlal lenders for the
underwriting of Parcels § and 6, located In the Cotai Strip, Macay, and site designers, developers,

25 1| and specialists for Parcels 5 and 6, during the tims perod of January 1, 2609 to Octaber 20, 2010;

26

I7. DENIED ss to documents, includlog financla) records and back-up, used fo

97 {{ calculate any management fzes andfor corporate compeny transfers for services performed sndfor
ng | provided by LVSC to Sands China, including who performed the services and whers those

4
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services were performed and/or provided, during the time perlod where there existed any formal
or informal shared services agreement:

18, GRANTED as to alf documents that reﬂectv reimbursements made to any LVSC
executive for work performed or services provided related to Sends China, during the time period
of January 1, 2009, to Qetober 20, 2010;

19.  GRANTED ss to oil documents that Sands Chine pravided 1o Nevada gaming
vegulators, during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010; and

20,  DENIED as to the telephone records for cellular telephones and landlines used by
Adelson, Leven, and Goldsteln thet indicate telephone communieations each had with or on
behalf of Sands China,

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED, ADJUDGED, AND DECREED that the parties
are to abide by the Nevada Rulos of Civil Procedure as it relates to the disclosure of expents, if
any, for purposes of the ovidentiary hearing on personal jurisdiction over Sands Ching,

In addition, Defendant Sands China's Molion for Clarification of Jurisdictional Discovery
Order on Order Shettening Time (“"Motion for Clarification”) ceme before ;he Court for heating
on $:00 a.an. ont Octobes 13, 2011, Sames J. Pisanelli, Esq,, and Debra L. Spinelli, Esq,, of the
law flrm PISANELLI BICE PLLC, appeared on behalf of Jacobe, Patricla L. Glaser, Esq., of the
law fiem Glaser Weil Fink .Tacob.'; Howard Avchen & Shupiro LLP, sppeared on behalf of
Defendam Sands China, and J, Stephen Pesk, Esq., of the law fin Folland & Hart LLP, sppeared
on behalf of Defendant LVSC, The Court considered the papera filed on behalf of the parties end

tho oral argument of counsel, and good cause appearing therefor:
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i

IT 1§ HEREBY ORDERED, ADJUDOED, AND DECREED that the Mollon for

| ClarlCeation §s GRANTID IN PART as follows:

i The partivs are only permitied e conduet distovery relnted to activities that were
dong-foxt ot on bebulf of Sands Ching; wnd

2, This s o overriding Hmittion an ull of the spocific items requested: in Jncob's
Motdon w Conduet Jurlsdfctional Diseovery,

parzn: Maveln $ 202,

Jomes L, Pis , 58, Bar Mo, 4027
Tudd L. BicaMag,, Bur Mo, 4534

Dabrd L, Spinetli, Ear., Bar No, 9695
Jurrad L. Rickued, Bag., Bar No. 10203
3483 HMoward Hoghes Parkway, Suite 300
Las Veges, Nevada 39169

Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jocobs

Appraved ps to form bys
HOLLAND & HART

I StephenPouk, Bq., Bor No, 1738
B’r’i?m il :\ndermm ", Bar Now 10500

9555 Hillwood 13/ive, Second Floor .
a8 Vegas, NV 29134

Attomoys (or Lag Vegas Sands Corp,
and Smuds Chinn, Tid,
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Short Form Consultancy Services Agreement
Date '

Parties

Marmne Venetian Macau Limited

{in Portupuese} Venetian Macay, S.A.

{in Chinese) BT ARPMMTEIRAE)

Shorl farm pama Owner -
a public Imited llabllity company, with head offica in Macau, Eslrada da
Baia de Mossa Senhora da Esperanga, The Venetian Macao Resort
Hotel, Executive Offices — L2, Taipa, registated with the Mscau
Commercial Registration Gffice under the number SO 15702

Name

Short fonm name Consultant

Deseription fname)

Background

A The Owner wishes to appoint the Cansultant fo perform the Services in accordance with
the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

B The Constitant has agreed to accept the appointment and perform the Services on the
terms and condltions of this Agreement,

.
Qwmer's Inills Consuliants inijall

Shotl Fokrm 04 Servies A Tha Vorustlon Macon [page 2 of 18

ARPO503

PA1542



Agreed terms

Defined terms & interpretation
Definitions
In this Agreement, except where the contexd requires otherwlse;

Agresment means the contract between the Owner and the Consultant constituted by
this document entfed ‘Short Form Consullancy Services Agresment, inciuding the
Schedules, as amended in wiiling by the pariss from time to tima,

Basgic Services means the services and relsted activities to be performed by the
Consulant as described in Schedule 2, Section 1 and eisewhere in this Agresment.

Commancement Date means [date] or such effective date as specified In the respective
Schadules.

Confidentlal Information means all information and materfals:

(a)  disclosed, provided or otherwise made accessible by the Owner to the Consuftant
in tha course of performing Lhe Services relating lo the Consultant's dellvery of the
Services, upon execution of the Agreement, including, but not mited o personal
data as defined in Appendix A, the policles, services, processes, trade sacrels,
know-how, data, Information, procedures, methods, formulalions, faciities,
products, plans, affairs, transactions, organisations, business connections’ and
clients of the Owner and is related bodles corporale expressly indicated as
confidential by Owner lo Consultant before disclosure; and

{b)  prepared or developed by Consultant, on behalf of the Owner in the course of
performing the Services.

Consultant means
Data Controller means Venelian Macau Lid
Data Processor means [nama)

Fee means the Iee agreed between the parties for the provision of the Basic Senvices
and specified in Schedule 1, Section 2.

FCPA means the Foreign Comrupt Practicas Act of the Uniled States of America.

intellectual Property Right means any patent, registered design, trademark or naine,
copyright or other protected right. '

NGCR means the Nevada Gaming Control Regulations of the United Stales of America,
Owner means Venetian Macau Limited.

Matter means the lawsuil filed against Las Vegas Sands Comp. and Sands China L(d. by
Steven C. Jacobs in the District Court of Nevada

I3
Cwaer's ingals Corealiats AL
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1.2

Reimbursable Expenses means the reasonable businass relatad costs and expenses
referred fo in Schadule 1, Seation 3 wholly and necessarlly incurred by the Consultant in
periorming the Services.

Services means fhe Basic Services.

the Stawdory Requirements, T
Statutory Requirements means all Macau permissions, consents, legislation, rules and
regulations required for or relating to the Services,

Interpratation
In this Agreernert, unless the contrary intention appears:

{a) hoadings are for ease of reference only and do not aifecl the meaning of this
Agreement;

(b} the singular includes the plural and vice versa and words importing a gender
include other genders;

(e} other grammatical forms of deflned words or expressions have corresponding
meanings;

(d)  arecital, schedule or annexure, or & deseription of the pardies forms par of ihis
Agreement;

{e} areference to this Agreement Includes a reference to that agreement as novated,
altered or replaced from tUme to time;

(f} a refergnce o a party includes its executors, adminisiralors, successors and
permitied assigns;

{g)  areference to 'including’, "includes’ or ‘include’ must be read as if # Is followed by
{without limitation)’;
{h) a reference fo o clause, paragraph, or schedule is to @ clause, paragraph or

schedule to this Agreement and a reference to the Agreement Includes any
schedule;

0] words and expressions importing natural persons include parinerships, bodies
corporate, associalions, governments and governmental and local authorities and
agencies;

{ any remedy, power or entillement given to the Owner and Consultart in any
clause of the Agreemaent Is in addition to any remedy, power or entitlement which
the Cwner and Consultant may have under any other clause or clauses of this
Agreement or under general princlples of law; -

(k)  no e of construction applies 1o the disadvantage of a party because that party
was rosponsible for the proparation of this Agresment or any part of it or any
document containing any of the provisions of this Agreement; and

A
e s MEHKE Consuiants imeak
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0

a reference to a right or obligation of any two or more persons confers that right or

imposas that obligation, as the casa may be, joirtly and severally.

Consultant's general obligations
The Consultant must:

{a) use =il reasonable efforts to comply with ali written Instructions and directions of
the Owner in relalion tc the Services including but not limited to the undertaking
regarding protection of Personal Data set oul In Appendix A;

(b)  perform the Services with all the skil, care and diligance to be expected of a
propedy qualified, professional and competent expert fully expsrionced in canying
out services of a similar nature, scope and complaxity to the Services;

{6y  comply with all Statutory Requiremants in carrying out the Services:

{d) ot ali times employ staff with appropriate qualifications and experience fo casry ocut
the Services on the Consultant's behalf;

Owner's obligations

The Owner must

{a)  pay the Consuftant in accordance with the provisions In Scheduls 1;

{b) give or sause 1o be given to the Consultant timely directions, Instructions,

decisions and information sufficient to define the Services required and facilitate
the provision of the Services by the Consuliant In accordance to this Agresmant;
and

Exclusivity, confidentiality and publicity

(@)

)

The Consullant must not without the Owner's earlier writlen approval disclose to
any third parly any Confidential Information.

The Constftant must use its best efforts to protect the confidentiality of ali
Confidential Information, including the following;

6] using the Confidential Information for the sola purpose of performing its
obiligations under this Agreement;

(i) fimiting the dissemination of the Confidential Information only 1o those of
its employess who have a need to know it to perform the lasks required;

and
(B} tuming over the Confidential Information to the Qwner within 10 days of
the Ownor's writfen request.
/
Owanr's Unliads Crasultxar’s inilialy
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()

{d)

(e}

The Consultant must if required by subpoena, court, or administrativa order to
disclose any of the Confidential Informailon, give Immedlata written notice 1o the
Owner to the attention of General Counssl, Venetian Macau Limited, Estrada da
Bala de Nossa, Senhora da Esperanga, sin, Executive Office LG2, Tha Venetlian
Maeso Hotel Resor, Taipa , Macau SAR China and use iis besi efforis to
faclitate the Owner in interposing all objections the Owner may have to the
disclosure.

This Agreement Imposes no abligation upon the Consultant with respect ta
Confidential Information which: (I} is or becomes publls knowledge through no
fault of the Consultant; (F) was In the Consultant's possession befors racelpt from
the Owner and was not subject lo a duly of confldentlality; (81} is rightfully received
by the Consultant without any duty of confidentiality; (iv) Is disclosed generally to

a third party by the Owner without a duty of confidantiality on the third party; ar (v)
Is independently developed by the Consullent without use of the Confidential
Information,

The dutles under this clause survive any temination, expiration or non-renewal of
this Agreement,

Regulatory authorities, anti corruption and certificate of compliance
Cooperation with Owner's compliance committae

{a)

(b)

(©)

{d)

(8}

The Consultant acknowledges that the Owner conducts a business that Is subject
lo and exists because of a privieged licence issued by aulhorities having
lurisdiction over gaming regulation and other matiars,

The Consultant further acknowledges that such authorities may revoke, suspend,
limit or restrict any regisirant, llcenses or person if thay are associated with an
unsuitable parson or entity.

if the Consultant Is called forward by relevant authorities for dotermination of the
Owner's sultabliity to hold a priviieged licence, the Consultant must cooperate fully
with the relevant authority and must, ¥ requested by the ralevant authority or the
Cwner, terminate ita relationship with any person or entity that might be
datrimental to the Owner's ability to hold a privileged licence.

if any person or entity connected with the Consultant fails to cooperate with or s
found to be unsuitable by a relavant authority or if the Owner Is advised by a
relevant authority of concern(s) regarding a relationship between the Consultant
and any person or enlity, the Consullant must Immediately terminate is
relationship with that persan or entity, without the Owner incurring any liability to
or recourse by the Consultant,

if the Consultant falls to cooperate with or is found unsuiteble by a relavant
authority or if tha Owner, In ils reasonable opinion, determines that ils privileged
licence could be adversely affected by ils association with the Cansultant or ils

7,
Qs Imoals Consuliaals nitily
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sub-consultants, withoul reference to any other clause in this Agreement, the
Owner may Immediatelyterminate this Agreement withowt further liablilty to or
recourse by tha Consullant except for payments due lo Consullant which shall
become Immadiately payable upon termination,

52  United States of America Legal Compliance

@)

o)

(o)

(d}

The Owner and Consultant must comply fully with the underlaking In clause 5.2(d}
{Compliance Undertaking) and lake no actions that could subject the Owner and
Consultant o lisbility (including any debd, obligation or loss) under the FCPA and
the NGCR.

The Qwner and Consultant must ensure that 1t and its employess, agents,
consultants or afiiliates comply Tully with the Compliance Undertsking and do not
direclly or Indirectly take any actions which could subject the Owner and
Consultant 1o any adverse action by ils reguialory authoritles under the FCPA or
the NGCR.

Tha Owner and the Consullant confirms their understanding that the Owner and
Consuliant are committed to conducling their business in accordance with high
elhical standards and in compllance with the laws of the FCPA end the NGCR
and all Stalutory Requirements of Macau and the United States of America. The
Owner and Consullant also acknowladges and understands thal they are at all
times subject to the FCPA and under the FCPA, they may be held liable If they
violate the Compliance Undertaklng.

The Owner and Consuitant undertakes that they (including its officers, directars,
employaes, agents and any other third parties acting on Its behalf) will not diractly
or indirectly through any third party or persen pay, offer, promise or authorise
payment of any monias or anything of value to any official for the purpose of
improperly inducing or rewarding favourable treatment or advantaga In connaction
with this Agreement . For the purpose of this clause 5.2(d), ‘official’ includes any
officlal, ageni, or employee, or the close relalive of any officlal, agent, or
amployee, of the government of Macau, any depariment, agency, or any entily
that is wholly owned or controlled by the govermnment of Maceu, any international
public organisation, any recognised political party In Macau or sny candidate for
political ifice in Macau. [

6. Dispute resolution

(@)

Save and except for any dispute, difference or claim arising out or In connzclion
with the breach of any of the undertakings on personal data in Appendix A which
shall be determined by a Macau Courl, any dispute, dilference or clalm arising out
of or in connection with the Agreement, if not seifled by agreement, may be
refarred (o arbiiration fo be sellled in accordance with the Unltad Nations
Commisslon on Intemational Trada Law Arbitration Rules (UNCITRAL Rules) in

)
Owaer's initals Cousultanr's initals
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force at the date of the Agreament and as may be amended by the rest of this
clause 6,

(b} The place of arbitration will be In Macau. The language to be used in the
arbitration will be English. There will be a single arbitrator, if the parties are
unable to agree on an arbitralor, the arbitralor must be appointed by the
Secretary-General for the tine being of the Horg Kong Intemational Arbiiratlon

Centrs,

(&) Al payments due to Consultant remains payable during the dispute resolution
proceedings.

Termination

Termination by Owner and Consuliant

The Owner and Consullant may at any time, In thelr absolute discretion, upon not less
than 30 days written notice, terminate or suspend the this Agraement in relation to some
or gll of the Consultant's obligations undoer this Agreement. or (il) upon written notice ¥
the Owner or Consultant breaches any material term of this Agreement and such breach
remains uncorrected for 15 business days following written nolica. Upoen termination,
Consultent will be entitled to be paid for all work performed, Including fees and expenses,
up to the effective date of termination,

Miscellaneous

{a) A porty giving notice or nolifying under this Agreement must do so in writing
directed to the reclpient's address specified below, as varled by any notice and
hand delivered or sent by prepaid post or facsimile to that address. All notices,
statements, demands, requlrements or other communications and documents
required or permitied to be given, served or delivered lo efther party under ins
Agreemant must be i wriling in the English tanguage, :

Pl Consultant ..
Atlention: Geaneral Counssl Attention:
Address: | Venellan  Macau Address:

Ltd, Estrada da
Baia de Nossa,
Senhora da
Esperanga, sfn,
Executive  Office
L.G2, The Venetian
Macao Hotel
Resort, Talpa
Macau SAR China

Telephone; {853) 2888 3311 Telephane:

4
Quner's initinle Consants It
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{B)

{e)

{d}

()

{f)
(@

Facsimilet {B53)2888 3381 Facsimile:

The Owner and the Consultant shall each nolify the other of a change In address.

All communications regarding the day to day execution of the Matter between the
Owner and the Consultant must be confirmed In writing.

Subject to Clause 6, the parlies agree to the non-exclusive Jurlsdiction of the
courts of Macau (SAR) for legal proceedings related to this Agreement.

Unless othanwise stated in this Agreement, this Agreement shall be govemed by
and interpreted in accordance with the laws of Macau (SAR),

This Agreement

{1 may nol be varled excepl by an agreement in willing signed by both
pariles;

(i) must, if any part of [t is declared invaiid, void or unenforceable by an
arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, be constnied as ¥ the
Ivalid, void or unenforeeable part had not been inserted and the remalning
part shal continue in full force and effect;

{(ify  (or any provision in it} will not be waived by tha faikure of a party to insist
upon a sirict performance of any of s terms or provisions;

(v}  and the agreements referred 1o In it constiiute the entire agreement and
undsrstanding belween the parties relating to s subject matter,
superseding all prior agreemants or undenakiqgs, oral or written; snd

clauses 4, 5 and § shall survive the termination of this Agraement.

in the event of discrepancy or divergence batween the terms of this Agreement
and the terms slipulated in any of Appendix A, the letter or maaning of the
Appendix shall prevail,

Changes required by Macau law

To the exlent that any amendment lo this Agreement is required by Macau law or by any
Statulory Authorities, the partles agree:

{a)

G

to amend this Agreement but only to the extent required to comply with Macau
law or with any binding guldeline, guidance, diractive, interpretation, rwle or
regulation of the Macau government or any Stalutory Authoritles;

that this Agresment is a binding agresment and neither the enlry Into any required
amendmants 1o this Agreement nor the failure to amend this Agreement lo the
extent required by Macau law or by eny Statutory Authorities will give either parly

!
Cromer’s indtixds Cansaltant's initisls
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the right lo terminate this Agreement unless otherwise terminated under Clause 7
hereln; and

any dispute arising under or in conneclion with this clause will be resolved in accordance
with clause 6,

10.  Ownership Rights

(a)  Ownership Rights, Any Inventions, designs, intallactual property or other derivative works
of Consultant Information, will vest In and be the exclusive property of Consultant ("Consultant
Derlvative Work"). Any Inventicns, designs, intellectual property or other derivative works of
Owner Information will vest in and be the exclusive property of Owner {"Ownar Derivative
Work"),

(b}  Pre-Existing Work. Any pre-exisling proprietary or Confidential Information of Consultant
or it's icensors used to perform the Services, or included In any Daliverable, including but not
limited lo software, applisnces, mathodologies, code, templates, lools, policies, records, working
papers, know-how, data or other intellectual proparty, written or otherwise, including Derivative
Works will remain the exclusive properly of Consultant and lis lcensors {collactively,
“Consultant Information™). Any Owner pre-existing information, including bul nol Bmited to any
Owner's proprietary and Confidential information of a similar nature to Consuitant Information
provided to Consultant by Qwner will remaln the exclusive proparly of Gwner or its lcansors
{"Owner information”),

(8} Retention. Owner acknowledges that Consullant provides similer services to other cliants
and that nothing in this Agresment will be construed to pravent Consultant from carrying on

such R businass,
/
Chwner's imale Cotuiants inilois
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Signing page

EXECUTED as an agreement . )
Signad for and on bshall of Vonetian Slgnad for and on behalf of name]
HMacau Limited by By in ho presence of

in the presence of

Slgrature-of dliector / authiorised sigaatory [ winess Signatwe of director
Fiama of dotior | sUARGHERD BigREITY / Wing &5 (pIni) Name of director (pAn}
I
TwntP§ A Tonsuliaris thal
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Schedule 1 - Fee Payment

1.

Saction 1- General provisions

@)

(b}

{c)

The Ownar must pay {o the Consultant for the performance of the Consullants
obligations in accordznce with this Agreement:

{Iy  the Fee;and
(i}  the Reimbursable Expenses.

The Fee Is deemed to be inclusive of all applicable taxes and imposts and all
fees, charges, costs, expenses and disbursements which may bs Incurred by the
Consultant in connection with the Services other than the Reimbursable
Expenses,

Payment will be made within 45 days after the receipt of the Consultent's invoice
bty the Owner.

Sectior: 2 - Rates for Basic Services

The Fee for the Basle Services is:

[fees)

Section 3 - Reimbursable Expenses

Any other disbursements, costs and expenses incurred by lhe Consuttant in the
axecution of fls duties under this Agreement require the prior writlen approval of the
Owner, and unless such prior writlen approval is given, the Owner is not liable to
reimburse the Consuitant such disbursements, costs or expensas which have not been
approved in writing.

t
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Schedule 2 - The Services

1. Section 1~ Basic Services

{a) The Consullant must provide contractors to review and analyse potentially
personal data and documents potentially responsive to discovery requests

(b)  The anticipaled duralion for the provision of the Baslc Services is 45 days. The
anticipatad duration is Indicaltive only and not guaranteed.

/
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Appendix A

PERSONAL DATA UNDERTAKING

For the purposes of Article 15 of the Macau Personal Data Protection Act, approvad by tha Law
no, 8/2005,

BACKGROUND

A
{B)
©
D)

(B}

7

The Data Controller wishes to appoint the Data Processor to parform the Services
when required and in accordance with this Agresmant.

The Data Processor has agreed lo sccopt the appointmont on the terms of this
Agreamant.

This undertaking sels forth the tarms under which the Data Processor should provide
the Senices to the Data Controller;

In addition, this underlaking is to ensure the protection and securlty of data passed
from the Data Controller to the Data Processor for processing, or accessed by the
Dala Processor on the authority of the Data Controlier for processing, or othervise
roceived by the Data Processor for processing, on the Data Conlroller's behalf;
Articles 15 1o 18 of the Macau Personal {Yata Protection Act, approved by the Law
8/2005, place certain obilgations upon a data controller fo ensure that any data
processor it engages provides sulflcient guarantees that the procassing of the data
carriad out on s behalf is secure;

This underiaking exists to ensura that there are sufficlent security measures In place
and that the processing camplies with obligations equivalent lo those of Arllcles 15 to
18 of the Macau Personal Data Protection Act, approved by the Law 812008,

IT 1% AGREED

1.

DEFINITIONS AND INTERPRETATION

1.1, In this undertaking:

"Act” means the Personal Dala Protection Act, appraved by Law 8/2005;

“Dafa® means any informatlon of whalever nature that, by whatever means, is
provided lo the Data Processor by the Data Confroller, is accessed by the Data
Processor on the authoely of the Data Controller or Is olherwise recelved by the
Data Processor on the Data Controflar's hehalf, and shall include, without timitation,
any Personal Dala;

‘Facilifies” is defined in Clause 5.1;

"Data Subject’, "Process/Frocessing of Personal Date”, *Controfier”, “Processor,
"Personal Data" and “Special Security Measures” shall have the same maeanings ag
are assigned to thoss terms in the Acl;

"OFDF means the Office for Personal Data Protection of Macau;

7
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“Schedule" means the schedule annexed to and forming pad of this underaking for
all lagal purposes identifying the Dala and setting forth the purposes of the Services;

*Services” ls defined In Clause 3.1;

"Technical and organizetional security measures® means those measures aimed at
protecting personal data agalnst accidental or unlawful destruction or accidental loss,
alleration, unauthorized disclosure or access, In padicular where the processing
invoives the fransmission of dala aver a nelwotk, and against all other unlawful
forms of processing.

1.2, in thls undertaking references to a person include an individual, a
corporate body and an unincorporated association of persons.

APPLICATION OF THIS UNDERTAKING

2.1. This undertaking, and the Servicos it governs, shal apply to:
211 All Dats sent by the Data Controller to the Dala Processor for
Processing;
212, Al Dala accessed by the Dala Processor on the authorily of the Data
Conlrolier for Processing; and

2.1.3. Al Data otherwise received by the Data Processor for Processing on
the Data Controller's behalf,

SERVICES

31 The Data Processor agree 1o Process the Data mentioned in Clausa 2 in
accordance with the tarms and conditions set out in this Undertaking (the
“Barvices™.

3.2, Whan providing the Services, the Data Processor agreas that il shalk

3.2.1. Procass the Data at all times in accordance with the Act and solely for
the purposes specified I the Schedule and for no other purpose or in
any other mannar except with the express prior written consant of the
Data Controller; the details of Lhe processing, the categories of personal
data and the dala subjects are specified in the Schedule;

. 322 Process the Data only on behalf of the Dala Controller and in
compliance with its written Inslructions and these undertakings; If Dala
Procgssor cannol provide such compliance for whalever reasons, it
agreas o inform promptly the Data Controller of thalr inability to comply,
in which case the Data Controller is entitled to immediately suspend the
processing of dala and terminate the contract, without any further
compensation to the Data Processors;

3.23. In a manner consistent wilth the Act and with any guidance issued by
the OPDP, implement appropriate fechnical and orgenizational
measures o safeguard the Data from unauthorized or unlawful

I
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3.3

3.24.

3.2.8.

3.2.8.

327,

3.2.8

Processing or accidental loss, destruction or damage, and that having
regard to the stale of technological development and the cost of
implementing any messures, such measures shall ensure a jevel of
securily approprate to the harm that might resull from unauthorized ar
untawful processing or accidental loss, destruction or damage and to
the nature of tha Data o be protected;

Ensure that each of thelr employess, agents and subconiractors are
made aware of their obligations under this undentaking with regard to
the security, profection and confidentlality of the Data and shall require
that they enter into binding obligations with tha Dala Processor In order
io maintain the levels of security, prolection and confidentialily provided
for In this Undertaking;

Not divuige the Data whether directly or Indirectly to any person, firm or
company or otherwise without the express prior wiillen consent of the
Data Controller except to thelr amployses, agents snd subcontractors
who are engaged in the Processlng of the Dala and are subject to the
binding obligations referred to in this Undertaking or axcept as may be
required by any Macau law or reguiation;

in the event of the exercise by Data Subjects of any of their rights under
the Acl In relation to the Data, inform the Data Canlroller as soon as
possible, and the Data Processor further agree 10 assist the Data
Controlier with all data subject information requests which may be
received from any Data Subjsct In relation to any Data;

In the avent that the Data Processor receives a request for any
information contained in the Data pursuant to any laws or regulations in
the United Statas of America or in any other foreign jurisdiclion, not to
respond to the parson making such raquest but to immedistely inform
the Data Controliar;

Not Process or transfer the Data outside of Macau excepl wilh the
axpress prior wrilten authorily of the Dala Controller or In compliance
with the Act; and

The Data Processor further agrees and warrants;

3.3.1.

That the legislation applicable o the Data Processor do not prevent it
from fulfilling the instructions received from the Data Controller and iis
obligations under this Undertaking and that in the event of a change In
this legislation which is likely to have a substantal adverse effeci on the
warranties and obligations pravided by this Undedaking, they will
promptly nolify the change fo the Data Controller as soon as they
become aware, in which cass the Data Controller is entitied to
immediately suspend the processing of dala and/or lerminste this
Agreement;

)
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3.3.2. That they have implemented the technical and organizational securily
measures specified In the Schedule befora the pracessing of the Data
baging

3.3.3. That thay will promplly nofify the Data Controller about:
3.3.3.1. Any lagally binding request for disclosure of the personal
data by a local or foreign law enforcament authority;

3.3.32. Any accidental or unauthorized access:

3.3.3.3. To deal promplly and property wilh all inquiries friom the Dala
Conlroller relating to thelr processing of the personal data
subect fo the processing and o abide by the advica of the
OPDP with regard to the processing of the data.

4. DATA PROCESSING FACILITIES

84. 7 The Data Processor wil provide the Services st the facilities located In
Macau provided by the Dala Controller (the “Facilities"}.

5.2 The parties hereby agree that the Facilities may at any imea be subject to
an audit which shall be canded oul by the Data Controlier or 2n inspection by the
OpPDP,

5.3. The Dela Processor hereby warrants and agreas that the processing
aclivities may at any time be subject to an audit which shall be carried out by the
Data Controller or an inspection by the CPDP.

5. LIABILITY

4.1 The partles hereby acknowlsdge and agrea that they ara hoth
subject to Macau laws and might ba held Hable for any breach of Macau laws
namaely for the breach of any provision of the Act. '

8.2 The Data Processor hereby agraes and warrants that it shal be
rasponsible In relation 1o any Data Subject who has suffered damage as a result
of any direct breach of the obiigations of Ihe Data Processor referred to in this
Agreement and the Act. :

4. ASSIGNMENT

The Data Processor shall not assign any of the Services 1o be performed on behalf of he
Uata Contralier under this Agreement without the consent of the Data Controller.

7. OBLIGATIONS AFTER TERMINATION OF PERSONAL DATA PROCESSING
SERVICES

)
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To whom this may concern,
The abovementioned official letter has been well received.

This is in comnection with the letter from your company (Venetian Macau Limited) stating
that the local court in Nevada, US would be {rying a civil case (Proceedings No.: A627691-B)
involving Steven C. Jacob and Sands China Limited (hereinafter referred to as “SCL”) with
“Steven C. Jacob v. Las Vegas Sands Corp.; Sands China Lid; Sheldon G. Adelson, et al.” as the
case name. In order to deliberate on whether it has jurisdiction over the abovementioned case,
the court has requested SCL to provide information evidencing its relationship with “Las Vegas
Sands Corporation” (hereinafter referred to as “LVSC™). Since your company believes that there
may be documents in Macau which are significant to SCL’s preparation of its own defense in the
abovementioned case, your company intends to engage a lawyer in Macau, and to engage a law
firm in Hong Kong which shall collaborate with that lawyer in inspecting the documents and

information at your company’s headquarters in Macau through the signing and provision of a

contract of service. Your company believes that the abovementioned acts of document inspection

and the treatment of personal data in connection therewith comply with the stipulations of Article
6, Item (5) of Macau's Personal Data Protection Act (Act 8/2005), and accordingly shall give
notice to our Office pursuant to Article 21, No. 1 of that Act, or, in cases where our Office deems
that a notice shall not be given, request the granting of permission by our Office in accordance
with the stipulations of Article 22, No. 1, Item (4)" of that Act. As a public authority as defined
under Asticle 79, Neo. 3 of the Mczcéu. Civil Code and the Personal Data Protection Act, our
Office is responsible for monitoring and coordinating the compliance with and implementation
of the Personal Data Protection Act by virtue of the responsibilities conferred upon it by Chief
Executive’s Dispatch No. 83/2007 and Dispatch No. 6/2010.

Pursuant to the stipulations of Article 4, No. I, Items (5) and (6) of the Personal Data
Protection Act, the “entity responsible for processing personal data” refers to “a natural person
or legal person, public entity, department or any other body which decides, individually or

Jointly with others, upon the purposes and means of the processing of personal data”, while

! The original version of the incoming letter reads “nos termos do disposta na alivea 1) do artigo 22.7 da Lei 82005,
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“subcontractor” refers to “a namral person or legal person, public entity, department or any
other body which is authorized by an entity responsible for processing personal data to process

personal data.”

In accordance with the content specified in the letter from your company, your company
intends to inspect the documents and information at your company’s headquarters through
engaging a lawyer in Macau and a law firm in Hong Kong which shall collaborate on such
inspection, in order to provide evidence of the relationship hetween SCL and LVSC. It is thus
clear that your company has the control and decision rights regarding the processing of the
abovementioned information, including the decision of engaging a lawyer in Macau and a law
fixm in Hong Kong which shall collaborate to inspect such documents and information.
Consequently, your company is an entity responsible for processing personal data, while the

lawyer in Macau and the law firm in Hong Kong, which are authorized, are subcontractors.

It should be noted that, based upon the fact that your company has authorized a law firm in
Hong Kong to inspect documents containing personal data, as well as the fact that the specimen
contract intended to be signed with the law firm in Hong Kong as provided by your company
indicates that the services to be provided by such law firm shall include “defining the scope of
the document disclosure requirements relating to the civil proceedings filed by Steven C. Jacob
against Las Vegas Sands Corp. and Sands China Limited with the local court in Nevada, US and
making responses thereto; and inspecting and analyzing all relevant documents under a
mechanism complying with Macau’s laws {including but not limited to Macau’s Personal Data
Protection Act (Act 8/2005)),” our Office deems that the information relating to the documents
containing personal data entailed in tf\is case which an institution registered outside Macau has
been authorized to inspect has been transferred to places outside Macau (including Hong Kong),
and that under such circumstances, your company shall be allowed to proceed only when the

stipulations of Article 19 or 20 of the Personal Data Protection Act are observed.
In view of the stipulations of Articles 19 and 20 of the Personal Data Protection Act, our

Office deems that your company may only authorize a law firm in Hong Kong to inspect relevant

documents subject to compliance with the stipulations of Article 20, No. 1, Item (1) or (2) of that
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Act and upon giving notice to our Office. However, since your company has provided our Office
with no information evidencing that your company has :obtained the express consent of the
parties relating to such information, nor any contract of employment signed between your
company and its employees or such information as contracts signed between your company and
its clients, our Office cannot deem that your company’s authorization of a law firm in Hong
Kong to inspect relevant documents complies with relevant stipulations of the Personal Data

Protection Act.

In addition, the letter from your company states that it thereby notifies our Office of its act
of engaging a lawyer for document inspection pursuant to the stipulations of Axticle 21, No. 1 of
the Personal Data Protection Act, but that in cases where our Office deems that a notice shall not
be: given, it shall request the granting of permission by our Office in accordance with the
stipulations of Article 22, No. 1, Item (4)* of that Act.

Article 21, No. 1 of the Personal Data Protection Act stipulates the following: “The entity
responsible for processing personal data or its representative (if uny) shall notify the public
authority in writing, within 8 days from the commencement of processing, of one or a series of
torally or partially automated processing operations intended to achieve one or more
interconnected purposes.” The situations in which notification is exempted are stipulated in No.
2 and No. 4 of that Article. '

In view of the abovementioned legal stipulations, it is clear that the responsible entity shall
give notifications and make declarations based upon the various pmposes of personal data
processing, rather than in conmection with discrete, ind@vidual operations of personal data
processing. In this case, as an entity responsible for processing personal data, your company
shall give notifications and make declarations with respect to automated processing with one or
more interconnected purposes, and shall not notify our Office of merely one of the procedures
(1.e. engaging a lawyer to inspect information) within an individual activity. Moreover, your
company has not provided the information necessary for notification and declaration, such as an

indication of the types of information bejng processed, in accordance with the stipulations of

? The eriginal version of the incomng lotier reads “nos fermos do disposto na alfuea 4} do ariigo 207 da Lei 8/2005."
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Article 23 of the Personal Data Protection Act. Therefore, our Office cannot regard your

éonlpany’s previous letter as a fulfillment of its notification obligations.

Further, Article 22, No. 1, Ttem (4) of the Personal Data Pratection Act stipulates that the
use of personal data for purposes other than those of data collection shall be subject to
permission by our Office. No inconsistency therefore exists between the notification obligations
as stipulated in Article 21, No, 1 the Personal Data Protection Act and the application for
permissioﬁ as stipulated in Article 22, where the two Articles are concemed with different
ireatments of personal data. Consequently, an application for permission shall be directed to our
Office pursuant to the stipulations of Article 22, No. 1, Item (4) and Article 23 of that Act in
cases where personal data are upsed for purposes other than those of data collection,
notwithstanding the fact that your company has effected notification and declaration with our
Office in accordance with Article 21, No. 1 of that Act. Given that your company has provided
neither sufficient information nor an account of the original purposes of data collection or the
necessity of using personal data for purposes other than those of data collection, our Office

cannot examine or approve the application for permission,

Based upon the foregoiﬁg, our Office shall archive your company’s previous notification,
declaration and application for permission, and we hereby recommend that your company re-
examine its personal data processing situation, clearly define its need to fulfill notification and
declaration obligations and to apply for permission, and pl:OVidB our Office with statutory
information for our examination and approval pursuant to the stipulations of Article 23 of the
Personal Data Protection Act. Notifications and declarations may be effected zmd applications
for permission may be made through submitting to us a Declaration of Personal Daia
Processing, which can be downloaded from the website of our Office

(http:/iwww.gpdp. gov.mo).

Should your company wish to appeal againﬂ the decision of cur Office, an objection may
be directed to our Office within 15 days upon receipt of this official letter of reply in accordance
with the stipuigtions of Article 149 of the Approved Code of Administrative Procedures (Decree-
Law No. 37/99/M of October 11); alternatively, an optional hierarchical appeal may be lodged to
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the Chief Executive within the designated period for filing a judicial appeal in connection with

relevant acts in accordance with the stipulations of Articles 155 and 156 of that Decree-Law.
In addition, your company may also file a judicial appeal with the Administrative Court
within the period as stipulated in Article 25 of the Approved Code of Administrative Proceedings

(Decree-Law No. 110/99/M of December 13).

Yours faithfully,
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, THURSDAY, DECEMBER 6, 2012, 8:32 A.M.
(Court was called to order)
THE COURT: Now if I could go to Sands-Jaccbs, who
for some reason some of you thought vou were coming at 8:20.

MR. PEEK: Your Honor, I think you did, actually,

L= T % - - S B

when we just had the one singular motion say 8:20 for just

71 that one singular motion. I think that's where the confusion
8| arose. But everything else got set at 8:30.

9 THE COURT: And I'm happy to have you at 8:20, but
10| that means you all have to come at 8:20.

11 MR. PEEK: Everything else got set at 8:30, so I --
12 THE COURT: I know it did. That's what I thought
13} until I was told that Sands-Jacobs thought they were going

14| now, they were all sitting at the front tables. And then I

151 came in.

16 Mr. Jones. Both Mr. Joneses.

17 MR. MARK JONES: Your Honor, good morning.

18 MR. RANDALL JONES: Since we had the first motion, I
19| was wondering if we would be -- if it would be appropriate if

201 we addressed the Court first.

. 21 THE COURT: If you'd like.
22 MR. RANDALL JCONES: I would like if the Court would
23| like.
24 THE COURT: Okay.
25 MR. RANDALL JONES: Thank you. Your Honor, as you
2

PA1570



(Page 3 of 59)

know, I have not been before you on this case as of yet. And
while I'm a protracted -- and I think the Court can relate to
this -- what seemed to be an interminable trial in front of

Judge Johnson --
THE COURT: Yeah, but I'm worse.
MR. RANDALL JONES: I will defer to the Court.

-~ I thought it was important that I appear today

[« SRR B NN * TN T PF RN -5

and talk about this. I think there are some important issues.
91 Well, I guess I want to say a couple of things first to the

10| Court, since this is my first appearance in this case.

11 THE COURT: You know there's been a history.

12 MR. RANDALL JONES: I do. And that's actually what
13| I want to address. I want to assure this Court -- and this is
14] an important point that I really want to make -- ocur clients,

15] respective clients, the two'defendants. heard the Court, and I
16| want to make sure the Court is aware that we have -- we

17| believe we have taken very decisive action to make sure that
18| we are addressing the Court's concerns that were raised in

19| September and even before, and that we are doing what we

20} believe we can to make sure that we accomplish what I

21} understand to be your goal, to make sure we get this

22| evidentiary hearing done, the jurisdictional hearing done as
23| soon as possible. And we are, as I said, taking a number of
24| different actions to do that. And since it's been my

25| understanding that the Court hasn't been made aware of some of

3
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these things, I want to just briefly describe a few of the
things that have happened since -~ well, actually even a bit
before we got involved. But the clients have now, since June,
produced over 148,000 pages of documents at a cost of about

$2.3 million. That's through the present time. Within weeks

[« ST &1 B A A

of that September hearing new counsel was retained to address
71 these concerns, the Court's concerns, not just my firm and my
8 | brother Mark's firm, but also Mayor Brown, within weeks of
9| that happening -- and I would have gone, as well, but I was
10] tied up in my trial -- Mike Lackey of Mayor Brown and Mark
11| Jones flew to Macau to meet with the government officials and
12 try to make sure we addressed their concerns so we could get
13} moving on that document production or make sure that we could
14| even get that document production.
15 And-also the other I think piece of that puzzle as I
16 | understand it was make sure that the depositions that the
17| Court had allowed, the four depositions, to take place. aAnd I
18] know there's some issues related to that that are going to be
19} heard this morning, the scope of those depositions, but three
20| of those four depositions have coccurred, and the last one is
21| scheduled for the 1Bth of this month,.
22 And so I just want to make that comment up front
23| that we -~ our firm is committed, as I know is Mr. Peek and
24| Mayor Brown, to getting this case in a place that you want it

25| to be so we can get this done.
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1 THE COURT: Well, I've got an order from the Nevada
2| Supreme Court dated August 26, 2011, where they told me to do
3] something. I'm trying really hard to do it.

4 MR. RANDALL JONES: And I know this Court has a lot
5| of other things on its plate, and so we're committed, and I

6| just want to tell you that here, that we are committed to

71 trying to make sure that we do what you want us to do.

8 The concern that I have -- and I want to just

9] mention this briefly, and then I'm going to turn this over to
10| Mr. Peek, because he's going to argue the details of the first

11| motion for protective corder. But there have been problems.

12| It's not all one sided, and I want the Court to be aware of

13 ] that.

14 THE COURT: Well, I know. Because I got two phone
15] calls earlier in the week.

16 MR. RANDALL JONES: Well, and had to put things on
17| on shortened time. And that's --

18 THE COQURT: That's okay, though, That's what I'm

19} supposed to do. I'm supposed to help.

20 MR. RANDALL JONES: Sure. And that's what I want to
21| make sure you know. We want your help, and we need your help.
22| We believe that essentially what's happening here is that the
23] plaintiff is essentially trying to pile on from the hearing in
24| September, and now they're asking to relitigate issues or

25] reconsider improperly issues that have been decided by this

5
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1| Court instead of moving this forward, that they are not
21 following the proper discovery procedures. So in a sense
3] they're trying to distract this Court from their own discovery
41 lapses, if you will, by trying to focus on something -~ on
5| past history. And the Court's addressed that. And we need
&1 vour help, and we're here today as part of that process to ask
71 your help to make sure this process is balanced, that it's
8| fair to both sides, that both sides are afforded procedural
9| due process so that when we have the jurisdictional hearing
10| that it's fair to both sides.
11 And so we need your help in doing that, but I just
12| want to reiterate we are committed to making sure that we get
13| this process done. But in the meantime we need this Court to
14} stop what we believe to be the overly broad and essentially
15} harassing discévery that the plaintiff is trving to accomplish
16| here, and make sure that, as I said, it's fair to both sides.
17 So with that I will turn this over to Mr. Peek. And
18| I appreciate you allowing me to address the Court, since this
191 is my first opportunity to do that.
20 THE COURT: Sure.
21 MR. RANDALL JONES: Thank you.
22 THE COURT: Mr. --
23 MR. BICE: Your Honor --
24 THE COURT: Yes, Mr. Bice.
25 MR. BICE: 1Is this an argument on the mction, or --
5
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1| because I'm going to respond to these assertions when people
2t just get up and address the Court. So I --

3 THE COURT: You can go after me Peek.

4 MR. BICE: Okay. That's fine. Thank you,.

5 THE COURT: And you can respond to both of them at
6| the same time.

7 MR. BICE: I will. Thank you.

8 THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Peek.

9 MR. PEEK: Thank vou, Your Honor.

10 MS. SPINELLI: Can you let us know which motion.
11§ Sorry.

12 THE COURT: I'm on the motion for protective order

13| related to the four witnesses that I said could go. And then
14] later I'm going to do the motion on the administrative

15§ proceeding, and then I'm going to do your motion, which is can
16} we do some more discovery on the sanctions issue and set an

17| evidentiary hearing on December 27th.

18 MS. SPINELLI: Thank you, Your Honor.

19 THE COURT: How's that for a plan?

20 MR. BICE: Thank you.

21 MR. PEEK: I didn't know we were actually going to

221 set an evidentiary hearing on the 27th, but --
23 THE COURT: No. That's what they asked. That’'s the
24 | motion.

25 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, this is Las Vegas Sands and

7
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Sands China Limited's motion for protective order with respect
to the scope of the discovery. And I'm not trying to
relitigate, as plaintiff suggests, issues related to general
or transient jurisdiction. I'm here more to talk about the
perception of the plaintiffs of the scope of jurisdicticnal

discovery that the Court allowed and the defendants’

R T I ST "R SR

perception of the scope of the discovery that has been

allowed.

W o

THE COURT: and, for the record, we're talking

10| about the four witnesses that I specifically identified in my
11| March 8th, 2012, where I gave what I believed was fairly c¢lear
12| instructions on what the breadth of those depositions were

13] given the stay that is in place on the jurisdictional --

14 MR. PEEK: And I agree, Your Honor. We certainly
15} have had --

16 THE COURT: That's where we are.

17 MR. PEEK: That's what -- that's what we're here to
18| discuss.

19 THE COURT: So let's turn to page 2 of that order

201 and talk about what it really means.

21 MR, PEEK: Okay.

22 THE COURT: Or you could give me your argument, Mr,
23| Peek.

24 MR, PEEK: I'd like to make my argument, Your Honor.

25] and I'm happy to turn to page 2, if you'd like.

8

PA1576



(Page 9 of %9)

1 THE COURT: 1It's okay.
2 MR. PEEK: You've told us on a number of occasions
3] that the scope of discovery should be narrowly confined to
4] jurisdiction and shouldn't go into the merits, and you've
5] reiterated what the Supreme Court order has said. The issue
6| that we have here is where do we draw that line. 2And we had
71 some discussions on Tuesday as to where do we draw that line.
8| We know that the plaintiff has ~-
9 THE COURT: And I drew it short of the substance of
10| why he was terminated.
11 MR. PEEK: That is correct. Your Honor. But there
12| are other issues related to not just short of why he was
13| terminated, but also all of the things he did during the
14| course of his employment that don‘t go to the who, the where,
151 and the what.
16 The plaintiff has three theories, as we know. We
17} know he had transient jurisdiction, we know he has specific
18] jurisdiction, and we know he has general jurisdiction.
19| Transient jurisdiction, I don't think we need discovery on
20| that, because that's just an issue of the services of the
211 swmmons and complaint upon Mr. Leven when he was here in the
22| United States and what role he was. And they've taken Mr.
23| Leven's deposition.
24 Certainly you know we've argued about specific
25| jurisdiction, we argued again earlier this week. I get the
9

e .
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1] message from the Court that the Court is going to say is that
2} they're going to be allowed to ask questions about the who,

3| the where, and the what, in other words, where were you when
4| you did an act, what act did you undertake, and who undertoock
5| that act and what role he took that at.

6 .We haven't -- you know, we had a disagreement in Mr.
7] Adelson's deposition. We resolved that. We had a

B| disagreement in Mr. Leven's deposition -- we had two

9| disagreements in Mr. Leven's deposition. As you said, I was
10] not really surprised, because I thought I was right when I

11| made my objection, but you did sustain one of those

12| objections, and you overruled one of my objections. And that
13| was an objection the first time of the when, when was it in
14} Singapore did Mr. Adelson and Mr. Leven discuss termination.
15 But I want to look really at the deposition of Mr.
16] adelson. And we know and I've c¢ited to the pages and the

17| lines within the deposition where we have seen disagreements
18} and where I had instructed him not to answer under 30(b) and
191 then the 30(b) (3) to come back to this Court.
20 Mr. Adelson testified that Leven had the power to
21} negotiate a resolution with Jacobs when he was terminated.
22 ] But instructed him not to answer more questions to explore the
23| extent of his settlement authority. Mr. Adelson testified
24| that he had a conversation with Mr. Leven about his
25] dissatisfaction with Jacobs at the road show in London., I

10
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instructed him not to answer questions about what precisely

[

his concerns were, because that goes to the merits.

So that's certainly -- the who, the where, and the

= W

what was part of that examination, but the substance of the
why was not to be part of that. It's not relevant as to
substance of the why he was terminated, what the basis and

what the grounds were.

o~ oy

Your Honor, as Mr. Jones has said, we've produced
9} over -- since June, of course -~ a hundred and some-odd
10| thousand, but over 200,000 documents have been produced by
11} plaintiffs for this theory of both general jurisdiction and
12| specific jurisdiction. And we understand now that the
13| plaintiffs are pursuing an agency theory. They're pursuing an
14| agency theory of lLas Vegas Sands Corporation, when it
151 undertook acts, was being directed by its subsidiary, it's
16| 71-percent-owned subsidiary, to take those -- take on those
17| acts on behalf of Sands China Limited. They gave up, Your
18| Honor, the alter ego claim. Mayvbe they are going to revive
19f it. I don't know. But that seems'to be from the -- their own
20| presentation to the Court in September and even from their
21 | papers now as to what they're going to be undertaking. They
22| cite, of course, to the Doe versus Unical case, which is the
23| agency issue.
24 Moving on to Mr. Goldstein, again I instructed Mr.

25| Goldstein not to answer when they were getting into the

11
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1] merits. They seemed to think that Mr. Goldstein was being
2| directed by somebody in Macau ~-- I guess that would have been
3] Mr. Jacobs, because Mr. Jacobs was the CEO and the president

41 of Sands China Limited, that he was directing Mr. Goldstein to

5| undertake certain actions so therefore the agency theory is
6} that there is a presence in Nevada of Sands China Limited by
71 Mr, Jacobs directing Mr. Goldstein to take acts or by

directing Mr. Adelson to take acts. I don't think, Your

9| Honor, that that theory -- well, if they want to pursue that
10| theory, that's their theory.
11 But the point is, Your Honor, they argue that -- in
12 ] their opposition -- that we seem to be focused and have a
13| disagreement on specific jurisdiction. That is not where the
14} disagreement lies. The disagreement lies on them getting into
15| the merits, And I -- you know, and I've also asked that Mr.
16| Adelson, Mr. Leven ~- now Mr. Leven, who was deposed on
17| Tuesday, and Mr. Goldstein, who have all been deposed for a
18| day, not be required to come back. Because, if vyou look at
19| the transcript of both the Goldstein and the Adelson
20| deposition you will see that they wasted an awful lot of time
21] in areas that really don't go to their one single theory now
221 of agency. Aand we need to move on, as Mr. Jones said, get
23| this case set for an evidentiary hearing, as we're directed by
24| the Court, and not fuss around now that they have 200,000

25| pages, three depositions, and one to go. Thank you, Your

12
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11! Honor.

2 THE COURT: Thank you.

3 Mr. Mark Jones, is there something you want to add
4| before I hear from Mr. Bice?

5 MR. MARK JONES: Just one point, Your Honor.

6 THE CQURT: Okay.

7 MR. MARK JONES: The only thing I would like to add
8| to this issue, Your Honor, is some context and remind the

9| Court that the only claim for relief against Sands China

10] Limited in this case is a claim for an alleged breach of a

11| stock options agreement. And we would submit that there is no
12 ] relations between plaintiff’'s questions regarding the details
13| and the whys of his termination and his attempts to establish
14| personal jurisdiction.

15 THE COURT: Thank you.

16 MR, MARK JONES: Thank you.

17 THE COURT: Mr. Bice,

18 MR. BICE: Yes, Your Honor. Good morning.

19 THE COURT: 'Moxning.
20 MR. BICE: There seems to be from our end a rather
21| large disconnect between what's presented this morning and
22| actually what their motion says. If you read their motion,
23| which I know the Court has done, the motion is all about a
24| regurgitation of something that we've argued I think this will
25| be at least fourth time, might be the fifth. I've sort of

13
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11 lost track. This is the argument that Ms. Glaser made. Ms.

Glaser made it again, seeking what she called clarification.

w N

Then when Munger Tolles & Clson entered the case they made the

>

argument again, and then when Mr., Peek took on the role of
representing both defendants they made the argument again, and
now we have another set of new counsel, and the argument has
returned. And so I don't want to -- I'm not going to waste a

lot of your time rehashing that whole history about this

W <~ o Wn

argument about specific jurisdiction, which, let‘'s be clear,
10} that is what this dispute is really all about.

11 But since this is a court of law, I do want to just
12| sort of talk about the law for a minute. Let's remember what
13} the Supreme Court's actual order says. What it is says is

14| that you are directed -~ "You shall stay the underlying action
15| except for matters relating to a determination of personal

16| jurisdiction." That stay was sought, as we all remember, by
17| Sands China, claiming that it had -- and I don't remember the
18 | number, Your Honor, was it -- a certain number of terabytes of
19} documents in Macau that it was going to have to review that it
20] didn't think it should have to review, it was burdensome,

21| onerous, while it was contesting jurisdiction. That's the

22| basis for the stay request,

23 So the Nevada Supreme Court didn't say that it

24| stayed jurisdictional discovery, and it didn't say that there

251 would be some other standard than the traditional rules under

14
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Rule 26 and the traditional discovery mechanisms that apply to
that jurisdictional discovery.

So let's remember what the standard is about
discovery. Unlike a trial which we're addressing on the

merits, we're going to have an evidentiary hearing on

ay Ut d W N e

jurisdiction. So the rule is is the discovery being sought
7§ reasonably calculated to lead to admissible evidence that will
8| be admissible at that jurisdictional hearing. That's the
91 legal standard that we apply, are the questions designed to
10| elicit testimony that could very well be admissible and
11] determinative ultimately of the cquestion of jurisdiction.
12] That's the legal standard that governs. And that, of course,
131 is being completely glossed over here by the defendants.
14 We have our -~ again, I don't need to belabor our
15] explanation for jurisdiction. We've asserted that there's
16| agency, we've asserted that it's Sands China does here. No,
17| we have not abandoned the alter ege theory. We've asserted
18| specific and transient, as well. Now, they don't identify
19] really what it is -- any specific questions, contrary to the
20! argument about what they claim we shouldn't be allowed to get
21| into it, but most of it seems to turn on this issue about,
22| well, how much detail can one get into relative to the
23] termination.
24 And that's important, Your Honor, because you've got

25| to remember in a jurisdictional issue -- and this is the

15
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1| dispute we had when Munger Tolles got into this case. When

W2

they came into the case they made this offer to us. They
said, well, we'll stipulate to certain facts. But what they
wanted to stipulate to were just sort of some basic facts
about Mr. Adelson and Mr, Leven participated in board meetings
via phone from Las Vegas, those sorts of things. And our

objection to that was and the reason we said no to that was

G~ U s W

what matters in jurisdiction is magnitude, context, what is

9| the substance of the contact. It's not just the, to use Mr.
10| Peek's terminology, the who, the what -- or the who, the

11| where, and the what. It's actually more than that. It is the
12| who, the where and the what, but it's also and what was done
13| relative to that contact, what is the substance of the

14| contact, not just, well, Mr. Leven was in Las Vegas and talked
15| about the termination, you can't get into anything else

16| because we don't want to get into the merits of the case.
17 Your Honor, unguestionably, especially when you're
181 talking about specific jurisdiction, merits and facts that go
19| to merits and facts that go to jurisdiction are likely going
20| to overlap. No one is disputing that's going to be an
21} overlap. But that doesn't mean that the default is, ckay, if
22| there's an overlap then you don't get into it. No. If
23| there's an overlap, we should be allowed to get into it,
24| because we're allowed to develop the factual record to

25] establish the jurisdiction of what would be admissible in the

ie
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evidentiary hearing. And that's all we are trying to
accomplish here. Remember, they got the stay on the theory

that they shouldn’'t have to produce all these documents, 1It's

= e DN

not burdensome or onerous to have to answer questions. And
these are Las Vegas Sands executive who say they shouldn't

have to answer questions that go to their activities in Nevada

-~ N

on behalf of Las Vegas -- or on behalf of Sands China Limited.
8| And that's why, Your Honor, the stay shouldn't be extended to
9| protect them from having to answer questions that will lead to
10| the admissible evidence that goes to the guestion of

11| jurisdiction, especially in the context of specific

12| jurisdiction.

13 Let me give you an example of that, Your Honor. We
14| had the story from Mr. Leven, and Mr, Peek made a point of it
15} in his brief. Well, Mr. Leven said that he talked about

16| termination with Mr. Adelson in Singapore. Ah. So that's it.
17} So now you don't need to know any more, Well, yes, we do,

18| Your Honor, because that was a month before the termination,
19| and there was a month of activities by Mr. Leven. And guess

20 ) where we believe he likely undertook those activities. Right

21| out of Las Vegas before the termination was hatched. The

22| letter was drafted here. Who all was involved in that? who

23| all reviewed it? Those are the specifics, because we need to

24| understand the context and we need to understand the magnitude

251 of the contact, where ig the situs of the termination, where

17
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1| was it hatched, executed, where did all of the things occur

2| relative to it and what was the substance of it. 1It's not
enough to just say, well, Mr. Leven said Singapore so now you
just have to live with that answer. No, And that's what, of
course, they want to do. And the answer is, no, that's not
right. The law turns upon not just the who, the where, and
the what, but the magnitude, the substance of it.

And so under the rules, Your Honor, if there's some

Ao 0~ Oy W e W

guestion about, okay, well, maybe it goes to jurisdiction,

10| mavbe it goes to merits both, well, then we're entitled to do
11} that discovery as long as it's reasonably calculated to lead
121 to evidence that would aid us in establishing the

13| jurisdictional facts. And that's all we have tried to

14} accomplish relative to the depositions of these witnesses.

15| And we have, of course, been obstructed in doing so. And

16} that's why -- you know, I hear them telling us, you know,

17} we're late on other things. Mr. Adelson's deposition was

18| September the 6th, Your Honor. We're here now three months
19| later over this issue? Because our point is we want and are
201 entitled to develop the facts that are relevant to

21| jurisdictional discovery.

22 And we've also brought a countermotion in this, Your
23| Honox, for production of some travel records, because we have
24} Mr. Adelson claiming he -~ you know, he's travelling all over

25] the world. He doesn't want to acknowledge that he‘'s doing

18
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business in Nevada -- or doing these events from Nevada. I
don't know, and I'll address this as part of our other motion,
Your Honor. I don't think we sufficiently highlighted it to
you, but, you know, Mr. Adelson in his New York defamation
claim, this is what he has to say about Nevada.

This has to do with the prostitution issue, Your

B - T N T I S

Honor.

THE COURT: Your Honor, Mr. Bice is under a

v W

protective order in the Jacobs-Adelson case with respect to
101 the Adelson deposition. He knows that. He negotiated it.
11| And this is not to be part and parcel of a publication.

12 MR. BICE: They withdrew their -~- there is no

13| confidentiality designations on that order.

14 MR. PEEK: This is -- you're reading from the

15| Adelson deposition in --

16 MR. BICE: No.

17 MR. PEEK: Oh. I apologize. I thought you were
18| reading from the Adelson deposition in the Florida case.

19 MR. BICE: Well, first of all, I'm not. But second

201 of all, even if I was -~

21 MR. PEEK: I'm addressing the Court, Your Honor.
22 THE COURT: I understand.

23 MR. PEEK: Yeah.

24 MR. BICE: Mr. Adelson's counsel has withdrawn any

25| confidentiality designations of Mr., Adelson's deposition

19
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1] transcript in Florida. So --

2 THE COURT: The Florida deposition?

3 MR. BICE: Yes.

4 THE COURT: Well, but, see, I'm not the Florida

51 judge.

6 MR. BICE: I understand.

7 THE COURT: And I'll get to that in a minute on the
administrative hearing.

9 MR, BICE: But all I'm quoting here, Your Honor,

10] is -~

11 MR, PEEK: What I don't know is whether he's reading

12| from the Florida deposition or from the --

13 THE COURT: The deposition that's protected or the
14| deposition that's no longer protected. Interesting question,
15| Mr. Peek.

16 MR. PEEK: I'm unaware of the fact that it was -~
17| that it's no longer protected. But that's fine.

18 THE COURT: How about I don't need to worry about
191 what's happening in New York right now.

20 MR. PEEK: And Florida.

21 THE COURT: Florida I have to worry about, but I

221 don't need to really worry about that.

23 MR. BICE: I agree with you. All I wanted to point
24| out to the Court is in his brief what he says is, "Mr. Adelson

25 promulgates these policies and conducts his business from

20
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1| Nevada, the state where he manages his personal funds.” This

2] is about his casino. *Indeed, the defamatory statements

3| attack Mr. Adelson's casino business, which he unquestionably
4| oversees from his residence in Nevada." This all -- this is
51 his position ~--

6 THE COURT: Ckay.

7 MR, BICE: -- in another court.

8 THE COURT: I don‘t think that‘'s new information to

91 us here.
10 MR. BICE: Well, it seemed to be when we deposed Mr.
11) Adelson, because he had, of course, an altogether different

12{ story about how he couldn't tell us where he was at. That's
13| why we've asked for the travel records.
14 THE COURT: Well, at some point in time we'll get to
15} an actual evidentiary hearing, and I1I'll weigh testimony and

16| make determinations on credibility.

17 MR. BICE: Right. So that's -- that's why we've

18] asked for the countermotion for the travel records, Your

19| Homnor.
20 THE COURT: I understood that.
21 MR. BICE: So now let me just briefly address Mr,

22| Jones. I guesg ~-
23 THE CQURT: Mr. Mark Jones, or Mr., Randall Jones?
24 MR. BICE: Mr. Randall Jones's I guess opening

251 introduction.

21
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1 THE COURT: At least I don't have Jim Randall here,

2] too, because then I get truly confused.

3 MR. PEEK: Or Justin.
4 THE COURT: Or Justin Jones, vyes.
5 MR, BICE: Mr. Jones says that we are filing these

6] motions I guess as some cover for our own discovery lapses --
71 of course, he doesn't tell us what those are -~ and that both
8] sides have to be afforded procedural due process. We
91 absolutely agree with that, and in fact we were the one -~ as
10} Mr. Jones doesn't know, we're the ones who weren't being
11} afforded that at all at the conduct of the defendants when
12| they were concealing information from us and from the Court
13] for over a year.
14 They've also hoasted to the Court about how much
15| money they have spent producing documents since June. By our
16| count, Your Honor, I think more than half of what they
17| produced to us are in fact Mr. Jacobs's documents, the
18} documents that we submitted to Advance Discovery and that they
19| have reviewed. And that process, as Your Honor might know,
20| has taken way longer than they had claimed it was going to.
21| And all the money that they have incurred is because, as you
22| will recall, Ms. Glaser -- and I think they have stuck to this
23| position ~- is they were going to review every piece of paper
24| for privilege and produce a privilege log. Of course, our

position was, and you might recall, was they were doing that

22
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because that would inevitably delay the process. They
insisted that that's not why they were doing it. But that's

where they're incurring all their expense. They could have

Lo % N S I

conducted a search of the documents, had they wanted to,

relative -- by word terms, and then produced the documents.

[+ S 8]

But I don't think a party can intenticnally undertake a

-~

process that slows it down and than ask to be patted on the
8] back for having incurred a lot of expense in a process that
9] they wanted to undertake to simply give us our own documents.

10] And that's really what has been going on since July of this

11} vear, Your Honor.

12 THE COURT: Thank you.
13 Mr. Peek, anything on the countermotion only?
14 MR, PEEK: I know you've said countermotion only,

151 Your Honor, but there isg --
16 THE COURT: I did.
17 MR. PEEK: And I understand that. But may I, with

18| the Court's permission, correct some statements by Mr. Bice,

‘19| who -~
20 THE COURT: You can keep it under five minutes.
21 MR. PEEK: I can keep it all under five minutes.

221 Mr. Bice and I were apparently not at the same deposition of
231 Mike Leven when he asked Mike Leven after the where were you
241 in Singapore all of the questions about the then conversaticn

251 Mr. Leven had with the individual members of the board of

23
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directors of Sands China Limited, where he was when that

D

happened. He must not have been at the same deposition I was
when he asked Mr. Leven who drafted the letter, where was the
letter drafted, and did you carry it to Macau with vou, did
you have it in your possession when you went to Macau. I
guess he wasn't at the same deposition I was with Mr. Adelson
when he asked Mr. Adelson the very same questions. $o when he

says that I've been obstructive, I have allowed those types of

[ R e = T ¥ : B~ S ¥

questions. It is the questions that go beyond that where I
10| have not ~- where I have said, no, you're getting into merits.
11 When he talks about scope of discovery, remember,

12| the Court set the scope of discovery, so you don't have the

13} very broad standard of Rule 26. And also, Your Honor, the

14| Supreme Court order talking about evidentiary hearing set

15| forth that which was going to be heard at the evidentiary

16| hearing. The Court knows that, and he's not trying to go

17| beyond that by this broad scope, travel records.

18 What they now say is, we need to know where he was.
19| Mr. Adelson testified, I was in the air many times, I was at
20| my home in France many times, I was at my home in Tel Aviv

21| many of those times, I was at my home in Nevada on many of

22| those occasions, I was at my home in Boston on many of those
23| occasions when I had phone calls, when I talked to Mr. Jacobs,
24| when I talked to somebody else about activities of Sands China

25| Limited. Those travel records that you allowed them to have

24

PA1592



(Page 25 of 59)

1| were travel records of what trips and when -- what trips do

2] you take to Macau and Hong Kong, that's all. Now they want

3| broader records. They talk about wanting international

41 travel, they now want to talk about having calendars. That's
5| one of those areas where the Court denied them discovery into
6| calendars, specifically said in its order of March 8th, no

7| calendars. Se¢ now they're trying to go back and relitigate

8| that very same issue when they were denied access to

91| calendars. They now want to change the scope of discovery to
10| all international travel that each of the individuals had, as
11| opposed to travel to Macau and as opposed to travel to Hong
12} Kong, as opposed to travel to China. Those are the three

13| areas in which they sought discovery, Your Honor.

14 THE COURT: And you've produced those records.

15 MR. PEEK: I have produced ~- well, Your Honor, with
16] the travel records -- I have produced thosé related to others,
17| but with respect to Mr. Adelson and Mr. Leven I have not

18| produced the individual travel records. I have, as I said,
19{ Your Honor, in my papers and as I said given that a

20| spreadsheet of the number of times they travelled to Macau in
211 2010, 2009, number of times they've travelled through Hong

221 Kong 2009-2010. That we had a dispute over back in March.
23| But they came to this Court and said four weeks ago, we're
24| ready to go. Haven't raised an issue at all about the
25| specific days, the specific flight logs until just now, Your

25
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1| Honor.
2 S0 they say on the one hand, we're ready to go; on
3| the other, we're not. But they asked Mr. Adelson, they asked
4| Mr. Leven, they asked Mr. Goldstein those very same guestions
5| about travel and where were you when certain things occurred,
6| where were you when you did this activity, where were you when
71 you did this activity. Mr. Adelson said, I can't tell you
8| where I was specifically when that helped, I could have been
9| in Vegas, I could have in the air, because I have wi-fi
10} connection, satellite connection in my airplanes, I could have
11| been in France, I could have been in Tel Aviv, I could have
12| been in Boston. And we've said, Your Honor, in terms of the
13| stipulation we'll stipulate that in terms of when he went to
14| board meetings he was in Las Vegas.
15 But, Your Honor, getting to those specific travel
16| records it's coming now too late to do that. They should have
17| brought this motion to compel a long time ago., as opposed to
18] the last minute. We've given them the information that the
19] Court allowed them to have with respect to trips to Macau,
20| trips to Hong Kong, trips to China. Thank you.
21 THE COURT: Thank you.
22 The countermotion is granted in part. It is granted
23| as to those travel records that were ordered in paragraph 8 of
24| my March 8th, 2012, order, which were the travel records for
251 the four individuals that I've previously identified, as well
26
T . -
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1| as any other LVSC executives that were having meetings related
2| to Sands China.

3 Now, with respect to the protective order, I said on
4 Tueéday when I spoke to you that my concern was navigating the
51 stay that the Nevada Supreme Court has told me to enter

6| related to discovery in the jurisdictional portion of this

71 case. As a result, after a lot of briefing we entered the

8| March 8th, 2012, order to govern the discovery in that case.

9 So while, Mr. Bice, I agree with you that typically

10| we would have a broader discovery, we don't, because I've

11| already limited the discovery in this case based on my

12| interpretation of the stay order the Nevada Supreme Court has

13] issued in the writ that was sent to me.

14 For that reason I'm going to grant the protective

151 order in part. We are not going to inquire into the substance
16| of any determinations, but the process of the decision making,
171 the who, what, where, when, how, why, and then the' ‘

18] implementation of the decision making --

19 MR. PEEK: Your Honor, you said why. Did you --

20 THE COURT: Sorry. I didn't mean why. "But not

211 why"* is what it says in my notes.

22 MR. PEEK: Okay. Thank you.

23 THE COURT: Who, what, where, how, when, and the

24| implementation of those decisions. Because it's not just how

25] a decision was made, it's also how the decision was

27
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REQUEST NO. 21:

Please identify and prbduce all documents that reflect communications by and between
Sands China and/or LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's
behalf) and site desi_gners, developers, and specialists for Parcels 5 and 6, during the time period
of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010,

Surte

A

RKWAY,

et s
N - o
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REQUEST NO, 22:

To the extent not produced in response to the preceding requests, please identify and
produce all documems_, memoranda, emails, and/or othgr correspondence that reflect services
performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or emplojges and/or consultants and/or
agents) for or on behalf of Sands China, during the time petiod of January 1, 2009, to October 20,

2010, including, but not limited to, Yvonne Mao, directions given to Mr. Yueng and/or Etic Chu ]

relating to Hengquin Island, Chu Kong Shipping ("CKS"), the basketball team, the Adelson

PISANELLI BICE pLLC
NEvVADA 89169

3883 HOWARD HUGHES Pal
LAS VEGAS,

-
w

B NN N N R R e e sk e s e
S W R W N~ O W e Y D

Center—in-Beijing,—and-investigations—related -to—the—same;—negotiations—with-Four—Seasons;
Sheraton and Shangti-La; bonus and remunefation plans; outside counsel's review of Leone!
Alves, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act issues and his suitability to serve as counsel for Sands
China Limited; International Risk reports on Cheung Chi Tai, Charles Heung, and others
commissioned in response to the Reuters' article alleging organized crime; and collection
activities relating to patrons and junkets with large outstanding debts due Sands China and/or its
subsidiaries.
REQUEST NO. 23:

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect reimbursements made to any LVSC
executive and/or employee and/or consultant for work performed or services provided for or.on

behalf of Sands China, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010.

N N
BN |
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1 || REQUEST NO. 24:
2 Please identify and produce all documents that Sands China provided to Nevada gaming
3 || regulators, during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010,
4 DATED this 23rd day of Decetnber, 2011.
5 PISANELLI BICEPLLC
6 .
By: __/sf .Spipelli —
7 James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. #4534
8 Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
3883 Howard Hugh’es Parkway, Suite 800
9 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
g 10 v Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
E 1
iy
2
E 3 12
g
08
ag2 M
53]
228 15
it
1
d o
g 17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
10
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L.
9 RECEIPT OF QQPY )
3 ' RECEIPT OF COPY of the above and foregoing PLAINTIFF'S FIRST REQUEST ;
4 FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO SANDS CHINA, LTD. (Nos, 1-24} is hersby
s acknowledged this 2 Z'%ay of December, 2011, by:
6 GLASER, WEIL, FINK, JACOBS,
7 HOWARD, AVCHEN & SHAP]RO LLP
8 By: .
: Patricia Glaser, Esq.
9 Stephen Ma, Esq.
Craig Marcus, Esq,
8 10 Andrew D. Sedlock, Esq.
E 3763 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 300
Ao 11 Las Vegas, NV 89169
= ’
g i . /
ggg 13 HOLLAND & HART /a*/al 7 ///
ﬁg 14 ' '
-
22 15 | ) Lrrhon foik g
4 850 tephen Peek, Esq. .
g3 16 _ BmanG Andefson, Esq.
ol 9555 Hillwood Drive, Second Floor -
% 17 - Las Vegas, NV 89134 SO /1 2. %
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
11
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| Koy
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq.
Pisanelli Bice PLLC
3883 Howard Hughes Parkway
Suite 800

Henry. Weissmam(@mto.com

l.as Vegas, NV 89169
Re:  Jacobs Discovery

Dear Debbie:

We write to confirm your conversation with Henry Weissmann on June 28, 2012,
and to clarify LVSC’s procedure for collecting documents potentially responsive to Plaintiff’s
request for production of documents relating to personal jurisdiction.

In providing this response, we are not waiving any attorney-client work product,
or other privileges. Our initial pool of documents for jurisdictional discovery consisted of
documents previously culled through the application of merits search terms and date limiters
(which overlapped with the relevant period for jurisdictional discovery). To find documents
within this pool responsive to the jurisdictional discovery requests, we applied the jurisdictional
search terms set forth in the table sent to you on June 26, 2012, As that table indicates, we
applied the search terms to documents for custodians Messrs. Adelson, Leven, Chiu, Goldstein,
Kay, and Ms. Yurcich and Ms. Murray, and de-duped within each custodian set (for

deduplication purposes only, we treated Adelson/Yurcich and Leven/Murray as single custodians

for some of the data). With respect to Request for Production 6, which seeks documents relating
to Mr. Leven'’s role as special advisor, director, and/or CEO of SCL, we applied more targeted
search terms for the period during which Mr. Leven was only a special advisor {up to July 23,

Z0T0), and broader seatch terms for the period during which lie'was the CEO
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MUNGER, TOLLES & OtsoN LLP
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq.
Pisanelli Bice PLLC
July 17, 2012
Page 2

We applied a different procedure for some of the documents belonging to
custodian Kay. We determined that Kay likely would possess documents potentially responsive
to RFP 7 (documents reflecting the location of the negotiation and execution of agreements
related to the funding of SCL). The search terms we ran for RFP 7 on Kay returned
approximately 1,400 documents. At the time we ran the jurisdictional search terms, however, we
had already reviewed a significant number of Kay documents for merits responsiveness. We
determined that these merits-responsive documents were also responsive (0 RFP 7. Thus, Tather
than review and produce the 1,400 documents derived from search terms, we instead produced
the Kay documents already determined to be responsive on the merits. After determining that
the 1,400 documents were largely duplicative of the merits documents, we did not review those
documents further, except insofar as they hit on other jurisdictional search terms.

In addition to the above procedures, we added documents to our review pool
through several other methods. In lieu of search terms, we worked to identify certain specific
categories of potentially responsive documents: (a) copies of the shared services agreements;
(b) records concerning SCL/VML contracts with entities or persons that are based in or that do
business in Nevada; (¢) "connected transactions"” reports, which disclose all the accounting
entries for services LVSC provides to SCL under the shared services agreement; and (d) travel

——————pecordsreflecting-all-businesses-travel by-EVSC-employees-to-Heng-Kong,- Macau,-or- mainland
China during the relevant period. We also obtained 68 documents from custodian Michael
Merlin pertaining to contracts with Bally’s. We added any documents potentially responsive to
jurisdiction that we discovered during the course of reviewing documents on the merits to the
extent that those documents were not captured for some reason by our search terms. And we
made a good faith attempt to identify specific items in our Rule 16.1 production likely to be
responsive to the pending jurisdictional discovery requests.

As you know, our review of documents for responsiveness to Plaintiff’s document
request is ongoing.

The next stage of our review is of Mr. Jacobs’s ESI. Our procedure for culling
this review set differs significantly from the above in that we did not apply search terms to
document sets to which merits search terms had already been applied. Instead, we applied date
limiters and a modified set of search terms (also provided to you on June 26, 2012) to all emails
across the custodians listed on the schedule attached hereto that had been sent to or received by
Mr. Jacobs, and, to the extent possible, deduped within and-across all custodians. We applied
those same date limiters and search terms to all emails of which Mr. Jacobs was custodian,
identified any unique documents that had not already been discovered among the other
custodians, and added those to the review set as well. We also have approximately 1,800 non-
email documents of which Mr. Jacobs is custodian. We are in the process of finalizing search
terms to apply to this set, which we will provide to you when they are complete.

Finally, at the deposition of Mr. Kostrinsky on July 5, 2012, questions were posed
about emails between Mr. Jacobs and attorneys who represented Mr. Jacobs. We do not know
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Pisanelli Bice PLLC
July 17, 2012
Page 3

whether the emails for which Mr, Jacobs was the custodian contain privileged communications
between Mr. Jacobs and his counsel.

To address concerns with Plaintiff’s privileged or otherwise irrelevant

~———————————commuications, we-propose to-identify; segregate-and-not-review-any-emails that-containthe
following search terms, which we took from your July 2, 2012 email: (seth w/3 farber) OR
(howard w/3 adler) OR (dewey w/25 (associates OR partners OR assistants)) OR lebeouf OR
(d).com). Please advise if you believe we should use any other search terms, or if you have any
other comments on this approach, I note that your July 2, 2012 emai! references “Documents
prepared at the direction of counsel: Doc. No, 673.” Please advise if this document or others
prepared at the direction of Mr, Jacobs’ counsel existed as of July 23, 2010 and, if s0, how we
should search for such documents. In addition to scarches for privileged communications, we
propose to identify, segregate and not review any emails that contain any of the other search
terms included in your July 2, 2012 email.

As Messrs, Owens and Schneider explained to you on July 9, 2012, as an
alternative to MTO running search terms for privileged or iirclevant documents, if Plaintiff
prefers, we will ask Advanced Discovery to run the search terms mentioned above, segregate any
of Mr. Jacobs™ documents THAT hif Upon those Terms, and returt te rematming documents to-us:
This would likely add time to the process of our review and production, but we are willing to
proceed in this manner if that is your preference. We understand that Plaintiff likely will prefer
to have Advanced Discovery run the search terms. If that the case, plcase confirm at your
carliest convenience.

In making these proposals, of course, we reserve the right to contend that the
documents that hit on the search terms are not privileged.

Smcerely,

Heff%lmm
Sl "y

Stephen eek

HW:v
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Schedule of Custodians
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SCHEDULE OF CUSTODIANS

Abboud, Andy
Accounting
Adelson, Sheldon
Anderson, Jason
Ault, Shirley
Banks, Mia.

Bell, Jonathan

Bennett, Anne
Bowman, Denise
Briggs, Daniel
Bruce, Bonnie
Burge, Jefl

Carlos, Mary Ann
Casino Accounting
Catletti, Anthony
Chao, Coco

Chiu, Larry
Collection_Share
Compliance Department

Cuﬁ;ugﬁnd, Edward
Cootey, Steve
Corporate L3 Archive
Cruger, Gus

Cupp, Sandra
Davenport, Ken
Dempsey, Shirley
Destura, Jeanette
Dimond, Kirsten/Gillerist, Paul
Eitnier, Dan
Feldman, JIan

Flood, Mike

Flynn, Kathy
Forman, Charles
Garcia, Andrew
Garner, Lisa
Gartrell, Roberta
Gethers, Guy
Gethers, Linda
Giardina, Kris
Godby, Kirk
Goldstein, Robert

Gonzalez, Alberto
Green, Penny

18002848.1
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Grumelot, Christi
Gutjahr, John
Guzman, Maria
Hamblin, Stephen
Hampton, Kip
Harris, Darrin
Helderman, Jessica
Henry, Scott
Hernishin, Gary
Host Share

Howland, RT3
Hubert, Lisa
Hyman, Gayle
Inbound Production
Ingram, Renee
Jackson, Alicia
Jacobs, Steve
Jaeger, Dean
Juan, Joywela
Kallfetz, Lonnie
Kay, Kenneth
Kennedy, Jack

Kibblewhite, Bob
Knauff, Barry
Koo, George
Kostrinsky, Michael (paper docs only)
Kraus, Frederick
Kwok, Yiu

Lax, Michael
l.ee, Penny
Lentz, Norine
Leven, Michael
Levy, Franklin
Lu, Bruce
Lukatz, Yasmin
LVS Misc
Mallari, Rosa
Mao, Yvonne
Marketing
Maxheimer, Jack
McCabe, Kimberly
McCreary, Gary
Merlin, Michael
Miluevic, Millie

vinerd; Rod
Morrow, Peter

18002848.1
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Murray, Patricia

Murray, Patricia/Weidner, William

Nagel, Brian
Nikitaeva, Inna
Notare, Kathryn
Notaro, Tim
O'Neal, Judee
Ono, Jennifer
Pelkey, Mike
Petrozza, Chad

Preiffer; Tolie

Poe, Jenny

Price, Danny
Punsalan, Cynthia
Pusateri, Paul
Quartieri, Michael
Quidato, Joel
Rameriz, Ginny
Randall, Teri
Raphaelson, Ira
Raviv, Daniel
Rebosa, Fitzgerald

Pppcn, Ron

Reisler, Norbert
Riojas, Susan
Rivera, Viola
Robinson, Rachel
Rodriguez, Hector
Ross, Jeff

Rozek, Robert
Rubenstein, Robert

Rumyantsen, Sergey

Sales, Anna
Santagelo, Michael
Schwartz, Jeff
Seery, Jeff
Sharepoint
Shonty, Jeffrey
Siegel, Irwin
Sigel, Todd
Smith, Cecil
Stephens, Jeff
Stone, Bradley
Studd, Kristi

Q i Cheann
TUTVEITTA A Ord Y

Table Games Admin
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Table Shift Manager
Tan, Wee

Thomas, Lizzy
Toth, Gail

Treasury Dept
Tuoto, Steve
Umbarger, Fay
Vazquez, Sarfina
Vry, Cynthia
Waters, Susan

Wetdner, Witliant
Weinrot, Daniel
Wetzel, Carol
Wheeler, Larry
Wheelock, Sharon
Widdon, Tony
Winchester, Aron
Wolf, Wayne
Yang, Nan
Yanulavich, Christi
Yurcich, Betty
Zarebaj, John

18002848.1
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Todd Bice, Esq:
Misanélh Bice PLLC
3883 Howard Hughes Pkwy, Suite 800

Las Vegas, NV 89169

Re:  Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp. et al.

Dear Counsel:

After speaking with my colleagues, I understand that the parties engaged in
s stive et and confer sessions last-week; and Tappreciate your tooperation in narrowing
areas of disagreement. However, T wanted 16 respond 10 your comnients, reported tome,
concerning Sands China Limited’s review and preduction of documents currently in Macau.

(YR L Y0 2 ¥ s VN
PABREHO

As-youwknow;TasVega
promeeeee—————punductanextensive review of the ESTand-other-documents-inNevada-for-responsivenessto
jurisdictional discovery, Duritig our meet and confer sessiononviay 23;2012; we made clear
SCL’s position that it should not be required to carry out 2 comparable review of documents
currently in Macau as part of jurisdictional discovery, and that we objected to doing so. We
explained that such a review would be unduly burdensome, particularly given the limitations
imposed by the Macau Personal Data Protection Act on the review and production of such
documents. We also explained how such review and production was unreasonable in light of the
extensive review and production of Las Vegas Sands Corporation documents, which we believed
and still believe should be sufficient for a determination of plaintiff's theory of personal
jurisdiction, which after all focuses on SCL’s contacts with Nevada, We agreed to consider

Sfurther-your-specific-req

IBE7 L ] -
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MUNGER, TOLLES & OLSON LLP

Todd Bice, Esq.
July 30,2012

Pape-
G

-on-May 28; we-have putii-place-a process toreview-and produce Mi-Jacobs ESTAgwe liave

previously discussed with you, that process involves the review of documents in the United

States in the first instance.

‘To-beclear, SCE has not refused-to-search-for or produce-any-documents-that-are

responsive 1o Plaintift”s documient requests. O the coriteary,; where it les Tdentiffed resporstve

documents that did not raise data privacy concerns and that were not within Las Vegas Sands
Corporation’s possession, SCL has produced those documents. SCL, for example, has produced
accounting records reflecting all transactions between Las Vegas Sands Corporation and SCL
pursuant to. the shared services agreement during the relevant period. SCL’s objection instead is
to conducting a review of documents in Macau similar to what Las Vegas Sands Corporation is

currently-doing with-respeet-to-documents-in- Nevada.

—{understand that during the meetand-confer sessions Tast week; you asserted-that

it was SCIL.’s burden to file a motion for protective order several months ago. We respectfully

disagree with that assertion.You have known our position for more than two months, and have

had ample.opportunity to raise this issue.with.us.in.a meet and confer session or.with the. Court

As always, we are willing to meel and confer with you on thisissue, and

determine whether we can reach an agreeable resolution or narrow our disagreement. [ will be

available to discuss these matters starting on August 2, 2012, when I return to the United States.

1 look forward to speaking with you about this and other issues.

Sincerely,
ij 2 ‘\ 1SS e [
[ Viw -
I A I
Gy

/ ,
Henry Weissmann

HW:jo

ce: Brad-D-Brian-FEsg:

n

h S ) ) h
OB Owens; ksg

Brad R; Schineider; Esq:

Steve Peek, Esq.

18194412.2
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Samuel 8. Lionel (SBN #1766)
Charles H. McCrea, Jr. (SBN #104)
LIONEL SAWYER. & COLLINS
1700 Bank of America Plaza

300 South Fourth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101
702.383.8888 '
702.383.8845
slionel@lionelsawyer.com
cmcecrea(@lionelsawyer.com

Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp.
and Sands China, LTD. (limited appearance)

J. Stephen Peek (SBN #1759)
Robert J. Cassity (SBN #9779)
HOLLAND & HART rp

9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
702.669.4600 - Tel
702.669.4650 - Fax
speek@hollandhart.com
beassity@hollandhart.com

Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp.
and Sands China, LTD.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVEN C. JACOBS,
Plaintiff,
Vs.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation; et al.,

Defendants,

POTENTIAL SANCTIONS

AND ALL RELATED CLAIMS.

18548009. 1

Eiectronically Filed
09/11/2012 10:04:53 AM

%;.M

CLERK OF THE COURT

Brad D. Brian (pro hac vice)

Henty Weissmann (pro hac vice)
John B. Owens (pro hac vice)
Bradley R. Schneider (pro hac vice)
MUNGER TOLLES & OLSON LLp
355 8. Grand Avenue

Los Angeles, California 90071
213.683.9100 - Tel

213.683.5180 - Fax

brad brian@mto.com

henry. weissmann@rmto.com
john.owens@mto.com
bradley.schneider@mto.com

Attorneys for Sands China, LTD.

CASE NO.: A627691-B
DEPT.NO.: X11

DEFENDANTS LAS VEGAS SANDS
CORP.’S AND SANDS CHINA
LIMITED’S STATEMENT ON
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INTRODUCTION

"Data privacy is the biggest challenge for lawyers and accountants conducting
multinational investigations or cross-border litigation.... ‘Multinational investigations such as ‘
FCPA matters present complex challenges for legal teams, including data privacy laws, time
pressures and language barriers...."! |

On August 24, 2012, this Court invited the parties to address what sanctions would be
appropriate if the Court finds that Defendants or their counsel engaged in sanctionable conduct
with respect to their statements and arguments regarding the proscriptions imposed by Macau's
Personal Data Protection Act (“PDPA”) in this multinational case. If the Court determines that
the conduct of Defendants and/or their counsel warrant the imposition of sanétions, this brief
informs the Court of the range of sanctions available to the Court.?

As discussed below, under Nevada law, any sanction must be reasonably proportionate to
a litigant’s misconduct. This overarching principle, coupled with an analysis of the factors set
forth in Young v. Johnny Ribeiro Building, 106 Nev. 88, 787 P.2d 777 (1990), make clear that in
light of the numerous mitigating facts in this case, a severe sanction—such as striking a pleading
or otherwise mmpairing Defendants’ ability to defend this case—would be excessive and
unwarranted.

Although Defendants havp discussed those facts at length in previous submissions, it is
wbrth reciting at the outset some of the facts that make it wholly inappropriate to impose severe
sénctions here. First, on June 9, 2011, LVSC’s counsel stated:

MR. PEEK: let me just add one thing, because I didn’t
address this. That same Data Privacy Act, Your Honeor, also
implicates comnmnications that may be on servers and email
communication and hard document - - hard-copy documents in Las
Vegas - -. [Emphasis added. ]

' Study Says Data Privacy #1 Obstacle in Multinational Probes, The Wall Street Journal,
September 5, 2012 (copy of article attached as Exhibit 1}. The referenced study was conducted
by FTT Consulting Inc. Although Defendant Las Vegas Sands Corp. is a client of FTT Consulting
Inc. it did not contribute in any way to the study and had no knowledge of it until the cited article
was published on September 5, 2012,

? Respectfully, Defendants reserve the tight to challenge the imposition of any sanction.

1.
18548009. 1
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THE COURT: Here in the States?

MR . PEEK: -- Sands, as well.

THE COURT: Well, you can take the position
MR. PEEK: Well, we are told that by the - -
THE COURT: It’s okay.

MR. PEEX: Office of Data Privacy

THE COURT: You can take the position - -

MR. PEEK: - - counsel, Your Honor . And I'll we’ll brief
that with the Court , Again--

THE COURT: And then I'll decide,

Tr. 55:5-19. (Ex. D at APP00154). Defendant thereby disclosed that there were documents in
Nevada that were potentially subject to Macau’s data privacy law, i.e., that documents had come
from Macau.

Second, Defendants voluntarily disclosed, during a stay of merits discovery and before
the close of jurisdictional discovery, the transfer of ESI for which Plaintiff was the custodian,
and will produce non-privileged documents from that collection that are responsive to Plaintiff’s
discovery requests. Plaintiff thus has not been prejudiced by Defendants’ conduct.

Third, Defendants’ representations and arguments concerning the PDPA were correct.
The Macau government is currently investigating SCL’s Macau subsidiary, Venctian Macau
Limited (“VML”), for potential violations of the PDPA in connection with the very transfers that
prompted this hearing. ‘

Finally, Defendants’ conduct shows that a severe sanction is not necessary to serve any
deterrent function. After the Court first raised iis concerns, Defendantsimmcdi,ately began an
iﬁvestigation into not only the transfer of the ESI for which Plaintiff was the custodian but also - -
other transfers of potentially relevant data. Defendants filed a report with the Court disclosing

their initial findings to the Court. Defendants, moreover, have apologized to the Court.

18548009. 1
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I ANY SANCTIONS MUST BE JUST AND REASONABLY PROPORTIONATE

In selecting an appropriate sanction, the Nevada Su_preme Court has explained that
“[d]espite the district court’s broad discretion to impose sanctions, ‘[a] district court may only
impose sanctions that are reasonrably proportionate to the litigant’s misconduct.’™ Emerson v.
Eighth Judicial Dist. Ct., 127 Nev. Adv. Op. 61, 263 P.3d 224, 230 (2011) (quoting Heinle v.
Heinle, 777 N.W.2d 590, 602 (N.D. 2010)) (second alteration in original and emphasis added).
“Prdportidnate sanctions are those which are roughly proﬁortidnate to sanctions imposed in
similar situations or for analogous levels of culpability.” Id. (internal quotations omitted and
emphasis added).

In the sections below, Defendants discuss the range of potential sanctions availéble to the
Court with these principles in mind.

II.  THE YOUNG FACTORS COUNSEL AGAINST IMPOSING A SEVERE
SANCTION ON DEFENDANTS OR THEIR COUNSICL, .

In Young v. Johnny Ribeiro Building, 106 Nev. 88, 787 P.2d 777 (1990), the Supreme

“Court identified several factors that are relevant to determining the appropriate sanction for

discovery violations. As this Court has noted, while Young addresses sanctions under NRCP 37
and therefore is not conﬁ‘olling here, the Young factors are relevant in choosing an appropriate
sanction for any type of litigation misconduct.

“Young set out eight, non-exhaustive factors that s court may conéider before ordering
dismissal with prejudice as a discovery sanction: (1) the degree of willfulness of the offending
patty; (2) the extent to which the non-offending party would be prejudiced by a lesser sanction; -
(3) the severity of dismissal relative to the severit); of the abusive conduct; (4) whether evidence
has been irreparably lost; (5) the feasibility and faimess of alternative and less severe sanctions,
such as an order deeming facts relating to improperly lost or destroyed evidence to be admitted
by the offending party; (6) the policy favoring adjudication on the merits; (7) whether sanctions
unfairly operate to penalize a party for the misconduct of his or her attorney; and (8) the need to
deter both the parties and future litigants from similar abuses.” GNLV Corp. v. Service Control

Corp., 111 Nev. 866, 900 P.2d 323 (1995).
18548009. 1
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In Young, the Supreme Court held that a heightened standard of review applies where a

district court dismisses an action with prejudice as a sanction for violating a discovery order. /d.

.t 779. Subsequently, the Supreme Court stated that “[d]ismissal for failure to obey a discovery

ordgr should be used only in extreme situations; if less drastic sanctions are available, they
should be utilized.” Nevada Power Co. v. Fluor Illinois, 108 Nev. 638, 837 P.2d 1354, 1359
(1952) (emphasis added).

in Young, the Supreme Court'afﬂrmed a district court dismissal of a complaint as a
sanction where blainﬁﬂ" had fabricated key evidence. /d. at 794 (noting that the fabricated
evidence was “highly relevant to the determination” of plaintiff’s claims). ‘Likewisc, in Foster v.
Dingwall, 126 Nev. ,Ad\‘/. Op. 6, 227 P.3d 1042, 1049 (2010), Supreme Court upheld a district
court’s decision to strike parties’ pleadings as a sanction for repeated and abusive discovery
vioiations, including their violation of a sanctiéns order that expressly warned of terminating
sanctions if the parties failed to comply. Id. at 1049 (concluding that appellants’ “continued
discovery abuses and failure to comply with the district court’s first sanction order evidence their
willful and recalcitrant disregard_ of the judicial process™). Other cases have involved similarly
abusive or ﬂagfant misconduct, See, e.g.; Stubliv. Big D Intern. Trucks, Inc., 107 Nev. 309, 314,
810 P.2d 785, 788 (1991) (affirming dismissal of action pursuant .1:0 NRCP 37 based on counsel’s
willful loss of evidence in product defect case where defense experts opined that the discarded
evidence made it impossible for them to establish their defense theory).

The Supreme Court has also affitmed sanctions short of dismissal, such as striking a
defendant’s affirmative defenses. But even in these cases, the Supreme Court has required a
showing of serious and prejudicial misconduct. In Clark County School Dist. v. Richardson
Const, Inc., 123 Nev. 382, 168 P.3d 87 (2007), for example, a defendant’s employee submitted
an affidavit to the district court attesting that all relevant files had been produced to the plaintiff. .
Id. at 391. At trial, however, the employee festified that at least one file existed that had not been
produced. fd. The next day, the einplbyee tarmed over 1,70b documents to the court, “500 to
700 of which had not been previously produced, even though they were subject to NRCP 16.1
production provisions and were relevant to the litigation.” Jd. This untimely disclosure resulted

4.
18548009, |
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in a one-week delay of the trial. Jd. The Supreme Court held that the district court did not abuse
its discretion in striking the defendant’s affirmative defenses as a sanction. /d. at 391-92.

And in Bakena v. Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co., 126 Nev. Adv. Op. 26, 235 P.3d 592,.
(2010), the district cowrt found that the defendant had engaged in a pattern of discovery
misconduct for the purpose of delaying trial. 13. at 595. The district court found ﬂiat continuing
the trial date was not an appropriate remedy “since the prejudice was extreme and
inappropriate.” - Id. at 595-96. The district court emphasized that the plaintiffs included “a 14-
year-old who had been in a persistent vegelalive state for the past two years together with the
estates of three dead plaintiffs.” Jd. at 596. After analyzing the Young factors, the district court
sanctioned the defendant by striking its answer as to liability—a sanction that the Supreme Court
held was within the district court’s discretion. /d, _

By contrast, in GNLV, the Supreme Court held that a district court abused its discretion in
dismissing a defendant’s cross-claim as a sanction. for the defendant’s desltruction of evidence, a
bath mat involved in a slip-and-fall accident. 900 P.2d at 326. In reversing, the Supreme Court .
emphasized that there was no evidence that the defendant had intentionally or deliberately
destroyed the bath mat, all evidence concerning the bath mat was not lost, and “lesser sanction
could have been imposed without substantial prejudice to” the cross-claim defendant. Jd Tﬁe
Supreme Court also cited the policy in favor of adjudicating cases on the merits. /d.

Here, an analysis of the Foung factors makes clear that a case-concluding sanction (or, as

 Plaintiff has recently requested,’ striking SCL’s defense of personal jurisdiction) would be unjust.

and disproportionate. Instead, there are sanctions the Court could impose, such as an oral
reprimand and/or a monetaty penalty—either of which would be quite sufficient to deter a
repetition of the conduct that has caused the Court’s concerns. v

1. Degree of willfulness. There are a number of miligating factors that counsel .
against a harsh sanction. Most importantly, Defendants® representations and arguments

regarding the PDPA and its application to relevant documents in Macau, even if found

* Plaintiff Steve C. Jacobs Brief on Duty and Sanctions at 7 (filed Sept. 7, 2012)
(“Plaintiff’s Brief”).

5.
18548009, 1
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inadequate, were fundamentally truthful and accurate. LVSC’s counsel, moreover, expressly
disclosed to the Court and opposing counsel that the PDPA potentially applied to documents that
were in LVSC’s possession in Nevada, which could only have been the case if documents
contaming personal data had previously been transferred fromn Macau to the United States.
Further, Defendants voluntarily disclosed the Subject Transfers,! a factor that strongly militates
against a finding that Defendants acted willfully. If Defendants or their counsel can be faulted, it
is for not disclosing these transfers in more detail earlier. But that failure is far more akin to the
negligence in GNLV than the fabrication of evidence in Young.

2. Prejudice to Plaintiff. This factor is critical: the Supreme Court has never upheld
a severe sanction in the absence of prejudice to the non-offending hpan:y. Here, Plaintiff has not
suffered any prejudice, let alone the “extreme and inappropriate” prejudice that was found in
cases such as Bahena. In sharp contrast to Clarlc, for example, Defendants disclosed the Subject
Transfers of ESI well before trial, while a stay on merits discovery was in place and the parties
were still in the roidst of jurisdictional discovery. LVSC will teview ESI for which Plaintiff was
the custodian and produce non-privileged documents that are responsive to Plaintiffs document
requests. Thus, the Subject Transfers from Macau to Nevada, and their representations and
disclosures concerning the PDPA and data transfers, have ﬁot impaired Plaintiff’s ability to
pursue his claims.

3. The severicj: of dismissal relative to the severity of the abusive conduct.
Defendants respectfully submit that their conduct, even if found to have fallen short of the
Coutt’s expectations, still does not rise to the level of “abusive conduct.” As Defendants have
explained, and as the Macau government’s recent actions and statements make absolutely cleat,
the PDPA is a real statute that presents real obstacles to the review and prdduction of the vast
amount of relevant data that remains in Macau subject to PDPA scrutiny. Indeed, Defendants’ |
Macau subsidiary is under investigation by the Macau authorities for Athe very transfer that »

prompted. this hearing. Imposing a severe sanctions on Defendants or their counsel under these

* As defined in Defendants’ Statement Regarding Hearing on Sanctions (Aug. 27, 2012)
at2n 1. : ‘

-6-
18548009. 1
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circumstances would be needlessly punitive and harsh.

4. Whether evidence has been irreparably lost. This factor is not applicable.
Although Plai-ntiff- has accused Defendants of losing relevant evidence, there is no spoliation
issue currently before the Court. Defendants note, however, that they made a ghost image of
Plaintiff’s hard drive three days after Plaintiff’s termination — employing essentially the same
technology that Plaintiff himself claims to have used to make a copy of the hard drive on his
personal laptop. There has also been testimony that in Novernber 2010, Michael Kostrinsky may
have removed a foil envelope from Macau, and that the foil envelope and its contents are
currently unaccounted for. That issue is also not before the Court. And in any event, there is no
evidence in the record that this foil envelope contained any data or documents that are relevant to
this case.

. 5. The feasibility and fairness of alternatife sanctions. This factor strongly weighs’
apainst imposing severe sanctions. First, this Court could impose an oral admonishment (private
or on the record) against the parties or their counsel. See, e.g., Williams v. State, 103 Nev. 106,
112, 734 P.2d 700, 704 (1987) (noting that “attoxneys who cannot conform to the proper norms
of professional behavior, whether inside or outside the courtroom, should recognize they are
assuming the risk of formal, public censure in our opinions™); Yates v. State, 103 Nev. 200, 206,
734 P.2d 1252, 1256 (1987) (noting that a frial court can impose a range of sanctions for attorney
misconduct, including “a reprimand, delivered on the spot or deferred until the jury has been
excused from the éom‘troom"). An oral admonishment is not a mere slep on the wrist. As the
Fifth Circuit has explained:

Judges are prone to forget the sting of public criticism delivered

from the bench. Such criticism, while potentially cofistructive, can

also damage a lawyer's reputation and career. The judge should

take care, therefore, that what is said is commensurate with the

violation. There is a distinction between bad practice and lack of

integrity. Being guilty of the former does not invariably justify a

charge of the lafter. At the same time, enforcing Rule 11 is the

judge's duty, albeit unpleasant. A judge would do a disservice by

shying away from administering citicism or reproval where called
for.

Thomas v. Capital Sec. Services, Inc., 836 F.2d 866, 878 (5th Cir. 1988) (internal quotation

7.
18548009. 1
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marks omitted). Given the publicity this case has garnered, any criticism by the Court is bound
to be widely-reported, amplifying the “sting” of thié sanction and possibly influencing jury
deliberations.

As an alternative or in addition to an admonishment, this Court might choose to impose a
monetaty penalty for litigation misconduct. In Thomas v. City of North Las Vegas, 122 Nev. 82,
96, 127 P.3d 1057 (2606), for example, an attorney falsely represented to the Supreme Court that
the appellant had “abandoned its appeal” rather than face Rule 11 sanctions. Id. at 1067. The
Supterne Court found that this was a “gross misrepresentation” that warranted sanctions. Id.
(noting that while “zealous advocacy is the corerstone of good lawyering and the bedrock of a
just legal system . . . zeal cannot give way to unprofessionalism, noncompliance with court rules,
or, most imporiantly, to violations of the ethical duties of candor to the courts and to opposing
counsel”). Accordingly, the Supreme Cowt sanctioned the lawyer $1,000 for his “egregious and
improper™ advocacy, while “cemind[ing] him of his duty to practice law in a professional and
honest manner.” Id.

Sirnilarly, in Sobol v. Capftal Management Consultants, Inc., 102 Nev. 444, 726 P.2d 335
{Nev. 1986), the Supréme Court found that appellee had “blatantly mistepresented” to the Court
the stipulated facts in the case and had also quoted language from a case as though it were the
holding of the case, when in fact the language came from the dissent. The Supreme Court found |

that appropriate sanction was for appellee to pay $5,000 to the Clark County Law Library

.VContribution Fund. See also Greene v. State, 113 Nev. 157, 170-171, 931 P.2d 54, 62 (1997),

overruled on other grounds by Byford v. State, 116 Nev. 215, 235-36, 994 P.2d 700, 713-14
(2000) (fining a prosecutor $250 as a sanction for repeatedly ignoring district court’s
admonitions regarding his opening statement); McGuire v. State, 100 i\Iev. 153, 159, 677 P.2d
1060, 1065 (1984) (fining a prosecutor $500 for “extreme and outrageous™ misconduct that .
requircd two new trials),

Nevada district courts have also imposed monetary fines for serious litigation
niisconduct. In Feldgreber v. Arbuckle Drive Homeowner Ass’n, Inc., 2011 WL 3556662
(Eighth Judicial Dist. Nev. July 27, 2011), for example, the president and owner of the defendant
18548009, 1 8-
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falsely testified at his deposition that certain subpoenaed documents had been destroyed in a fire
and that electronic copies were lost when defendant’s server crashed. The defendant’s closing
argumeni rcvcaled that it did have documents responsive to the subpoena. Plaintiff moved for a
new trial and sanctions, including striking defendant’s answer. After holding an evidentiary
hearing, the district court found that defendant’s president had “lied to the Court” and failed to
comply with discovery orders to produce documents. Applying the Young factors, the trial court
concluded that a fine, rather than striking the defendant’s answer, was an appropriate sanction,
emphasizing that the evidence withheld would not have a made a difference at trial.

Accordingly, the court ordered defendants and its president to both pay $500 to the Legal Aid

" Center of Nevada.

Here, the conduct of Defendants and their c'ounselAis far less culpable than that of the
sanctioned litigants in Thomas, Sobol, and Feldgreber.

6. The policy of adjudicating cases on the merits. This factors weighs decisively in
favor of a less severe sanction in this case. See GNLV, 900 P.2d at 326. As Defendants have
acknowledged; their statements could hé\re been clearer and more detailed. But their failure in
this regardl was at most an honest mistake, and it does not change the reality that Defendants’

statements and arguments concerning the PDPA and data transfers were fimdamentally well-

grounded in fact and law. The PDPA is a genuine and substantial issue in this case, one with

which the parties and the Court will have to grapple. Under these circumstances, it would be

unjust to impose sanctions that would impair Defendants’ ability to present a defense to

_ Plaintiff’s clairgs.

7. Whether sanctions unfairly operate to penalize a party for the misconduct of his
or her atforney. Defendants respectfully reserve the 1'igh’£ to address this factor at the conclusion
of the evidentiary hearing if appropriate.

8. The need to deter both the parties and future litigants from similar abuses. An
oral admonishment and/or fine would provide more than enough deterre_nce. In Feldgreber, with

respect 1o this factor, the district court noted that it would “impress upon [defendant and its

'prcsident] the importance of fully participating in the discovery process.” 2011 WL 3556662 at

.9.
18548009, 1
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*3. The Nevada Supreme Court, moreover, has implicitly found that a $1,000 to $5,000 fine is
sufficient deterrent against egregious breaches of the duty 6f candor. Here, Defendants
respectfully submit that their conduct and that of their counsel does not approach the culpability
of counsel in Thomas and Sobol. And they can assure the Court that they will endeavor to meet
the Court’s expectations, and adhere to the highest profeséipﬁal standards of conduct, going

forward in this case.

I ANALOGOUS CASES FROM OTHER JURISDICTIONS CONFIRM THAT AN

ADMONISHMENT OR FINE WOULD BE PROPORTIONATE

Case law from other jurisdictions, involving conduct analogous to that alleged here,
confirms that an oral admonishment or monetary fine would be “roughly proportionate” to any

litigation misconduct that the Cowt finds here. See Emerson, 263 P.3d at 230.

The federal district court decision in Travel Sentry, Inc. v. Trapp, 669 F. Supp. 2d 279

(ED.N.Y. 2009), is particularly instructive. There, plaintiff violated discovery obligations, and
its counsel breached the duty of candor, by failing to disclose that they had obtained relevant
documents from a former Transportation Security Administration (TSA) official. Jd. at 281.
Some of the documents contained sensitive security information (“SSI”), the unauthorized

disclosure of which is unlawful. Jd. Plaintiff failed to produce the documents in response to

Defendant’s document requests—and falsely represented that it had produced all responsive,

non-privileged documents. /d. at 281. At the same time, Plaintiff sought to obtain some of the
documents from the TSA (i.e., those helpful to its case), without disclosing that it already had the
documents it was requesting. Plaintiff obtained several discovery extensions by representing that
it needed more time to obtain these documents from the TSA. Ultimately, “[c]ornered by its own
deception,” plaintiff had to disclose that it already had the documents it was purportedly seeking.
Id. at 282, | |

The district comt affirmed a magistrate judge’s imposition of a $10,000 fine, finding that
Plaintiff and its counsel' had committed “flagrant and willful” violations of its discovery
obligations and misled ﬂxe court. Jd. at 287 (plaintiff’s attorneys “knew that they were
misleading the court (as well as [defendant] and TSA), and made no aftempt to correct the false
18548009. 1 10- .
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impressions that their statement 16ft”).° While Plaintiff sought to excuse its conduct by claiming
that it had been trying to reconcile the conflict between its discovery obligations and national.
security, the court emphasized the Plaintiff “never alefted TSA that agency security had been
breached . . .. Nor did it seek assistance of the Court.” I at 285. At the sane time, the court
concluded that more serious sanction, such as evidentiary preclusion, was not warranted. Id. at
283,

Travel Sentry bears some similarity to this case—more so than any other case that
Defendants have found. Yet the differences between the conduct of Plaintiff and its counsel in
Travel Sentry, and the conduct of Defendants here, is marked. First, plaintiff’s counse] in Travel
Sentry misled opposing counsel by falsely asserting that it had produced all non-privileged,
responsive documents, despite the fact that it was withholding the TSA documents. Defendants
never made any such representation to Plaintiff; the Supreme Court imposed a stay on non-
jurisdictional discovery before Defendants’ Rule 16.1 disclosures were complete, and
jurisdictional discovery is ongoing. Nor did Defendants seek an extension of discovery or any
other relief from the Court based on the representation that LVSC did not have possession of ESI
for which Plaintiff was the custodian. On the contrary, Defendants disclosed the Subject
Transfers while merits discovery was stayed and while the parties were still in jurisdictional
discovery.

Second, unlike the plaintifl’ in Travel Sentry (who never approached the court with its
concerns about documents containing SSI), Defendants did apprise the Court and opposing
counsel early in the case about the PDPA and its potential application to documents in Nevada.
See SRHS at. 21. When LVSC expressly raised this point at the June 9, 2011, the Court
responded that the issue was not ripe. See 6/9/11 Hr’g Tr. at 55:5-19. In light of the stay, which

remains in place, and absent any inquiry by Plaintiff as to the nature-of the Macau documents in .

* The court also ordered plaintiff and plaintiff's counsel to pay defendants’ attorney fees
and expenses incurred in connection with additional merits discovery and the defendant’s
sanctions motion, Travel Sentry, 669 F. Supp. 2d at 283. Here, Defendants’ conduct has not
necessitated additional discovery and it would be imappropriate for the Court to award Plaintiff
any attorney’s fees. - ‘

-11-
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LVSC’s possession, Defendants had a reasonable basis for believing that they did not have an
obligation to specifically identify the Subject Transfers earlier than they di(i. While this decision
may be questioned, it is certainly less blameworthy than the calculated misconduct at issue in
Travel Sentry.

Third, Defendants’ contemporaneous actions corroborate, rather than undercut, its stated
concerns with disclosure of the Subject Transfers . While the Travel Sentry plaintiff never raised
any purported national security concerns with the TSA (calling into question whether those
concerns were truly legitimate), Defendants reached out to the Macau agency responsible for
enforcing the PDPA, OPDP, to discuss how LVSC and SCL could comply with their obligation
to respond to the SEC subpoena and discovery in this action without running afoul of Macau
law. Indecd, far from trying to hide behind the PDPA. as a barrier to discovery, Defendants have
devoted more than a year attempting to persuade the OPDP to allow them to transfer documents
out of Macau to comply with discovery in this case. As reflected in the OPDP's August 8, 2012
letter, the OPDP rejected Defendants’ arguments and advised that they could not even review
documents in Macau in connection with this case. In short, Defendants’ conduct in this case was
far less e gregiou;s than the conduct that warranted a fine of $10,000 in Travel Sentry.

Other coutts have imposed monetary and non-monctary sanctions of equivalent severity
for conduct that was more cxﬂpable than Defendants in this case. In Merkle v. Guaf'dianship of .
Jacoby, 912 So0.2d 595 (Fla. App. 2 Dist. 2005), appe'l-lant, an attorney, failed to inform the
appellate court that he had settled the case, rendering the appeal moot. Jd. The attorney admitted
that the reason he failed to disclose the setilement “was to gain a perceived tactical advantage in
matters unrelated to the” case on appeal. Jd. at 599. The court found that the attorney’s “selfish
desire to pursue a purely personal agenda in disregard of his duty of candor to this court required
us to put aside our work on the cases of litigants with genuine controversiés——many of whom are .
serving lengthy prison sentences—and spend our limited time and resources to review, rescarch
and prepare an opinion in a case that should have been dismissed.” Id. at 601-2. The court
further emphasized that the attorney had “failed to make any expression of regret or to apologize
for his actions.” Jd. at 602 (noting that Merkle had chosen “to adopt a posture of defiance rather
18548009, 1 12-
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 than contrition™). As a sanction, the court imposed a $500 fine, required the attorney to pay the -

costs of proceedings to determine whether the case was moot, and ordered the aftorney to obtain
“a minimum of fifieen continuing legal education hours in appellate practice and pfocedure in
addition to the continuing legal education” he would otherwise be required to undertake.

As Merkle illustrates, in assessing an appropriate sanction, courts often take into account
the response of a party or counsel after the issue of sanctions is raised. See, e.g., Resolution
Trust Corp. v. Williams, 162 F.R.D. 654, 658-660 (D. Kan. 1995) (holding that reprimand was
the “least severe sanction” the court could impose as deterrencé where plaintiff and its counsel
knowingly withheld documents and their r:esponse to sanctions motion was “inadequate,
inappropriate and unprofessional”). Here, Defendants and their counsel have expressed their
regret for failing to meet the Cowrt’s expectations. SRHS at 2-3. And after the Court expressed
its concerns, Defendants immediately began investigating the circumstances surrounding the

transfer of ESI for which Plaintiff was the custedian and other data transfers from Macau to the

“United States. Defendants filed a report of their initial findings, which they later supplemented.

See Defendants’ Joint Staterent on Data Transfers; SRHS. If an oral admonishment or fine is a
proportionate sanction for unrepentant litigants who deliberately mislead ot conceal information
from a court, any greater sanction here would be disproportionaie for what amounts to an honest

mistake driven by legitimate and reasonable concerns over the implications of Macau law.

IV.  THE COURT SHOULD NOT AWARD PLAINTIFF ATTORNEY’S FEES

Plaintiff’s Brief erroneously asserts that the Court should award attorney’s fees “in
addressing the production of his hard drive and related information (including all fees and costs
charged by Advanced Discovely)”_as well as fees “for filings, hearings and related advocacy
about the fraudulently asserted Macau Privacy Data Protection Act [sic].” Brief at 7:7-10. This

‘request should be denied.

First, Plaintif{f does not demonstrate that the Court has the authority to award attorney’s
fees as a sanction in this situation. Plaintiff has not filed a motion for sanctions. Instead, this

Court has made clear that it has set the sanctions hearing pursuant to EDCR 7.60—a provision

-13.
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that, as Defendants have explained, “must be construed as coextensive with Rule 11 because
Nev. R, [Civ.] P. 83 permits district courts to adopt local rules only if such rules are ‘not
inconsistent” with the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure.” DSHS at 8 (citing Nevada Power Co.
v. Fluor llinois, 108 Nev. 638, 837 P.3d 1354, 1359 n.4 (1992)).

Rule 11 provides, in relevant part, that a sanction may consist of “an order to pay a
penalty into court, or, i imposed on a motion and warranted for effective deterrence, an order
directing payment to the movant of some or all of the reasonable attorney’s fees and other
expenses incurred as a direct result of the violation.” Nev. R. Civ. P. 11{c)(2) (emphasis added).
The italicized language indicates that Rule 11 authorizes the award of attorney’s fees only where
a party moves for sanctions, not where, as here, the Court bas ordered a sanctions hearing sua
sponte. Federal courts have uniformly adopted this reading of Rule 11 of the Federal Rules of
Civil Procedure for this reason. See Marlin v. Moody Nat. Bank, N.A., 533 ¥.3d 374, 379 (5th
Cir. 2008) (noting that “[s]anctions imposed on the district court’s initiative, as in this instance,
are limited to nonmonetary sanctions or a monetary penalty payable to the court”); Northwest
Bypass Group v. US. Army Corps of Engineers, 2008 WL 2679630, at *2 (D. N.H. 2008)
(agreeing with “the unanimity of circuit authority” in concluding that “absent a Rule 11{(c)(2)
motion,” an’ order awarding attorney’s fees as a sanction was “issued in error”), Thus, awarding
atlorney’s fees as a sanction would be inconsisfent with the plain language of Rule 11.°

Second, if the Court were to consirue Plaintiff's Brief as tantamount to a motion for
sanctions, Plaintiff has not met his burden of demonstrating an entitlement to fees. In Fluor, the
Supreme Court made clear that attorney’s fees and costs imposed as a sanction must relate
specifically to ﬁle misconduct. See Fluor, 837 P.3d at 1360-61 (holding that a district court erred
in imposing as a sanction all attorney’s fees incurred by the other party rather than those fees and

costs associated with the violation of the discovery order).

§ EDCR 7.60(b} states that the “court may, after notice and an opportunity to be heard,
unpose upon an atiorney or a party any and all sanctions which may, under the facts of the case,
be reasonable, including the imposition of fines, costs or attorney’s fees...” (emphasis added).
Because EDCR 7.60(b) cannot go beyond Rule 11, EDCR 7.60(b) should be construed to permit
the imposition of atiomey’s fees only uponnotion by the opposing party.

-14.
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Plaintiff has not shown that either category of work for which he seeks feés was caused

i)y Defendanis’ conduct at issue. The fecs associated with the appointment of Advanced
Discovery were caused by the Court"s concerns with respect to the integrity of the data in
Plaintiff’s possession: Plaintiff has an obligation to preserve data in his possession regardless of
what data Defendants possess. Even if Defendants had specifically identified the Subject
Transfers earlier, Plaintiff would still have been required to deliver the data in his control to
Advanced Discovery. Moreover, Plaintiff has not s_hown that the data in his possession is
entirely duplicative of the Subject Transfers, as he suggests. See Br. at 6:25-26. Based on the
volume of data Plaintiff deposited with Advanced Discovery, it appears that the data in his
possession is not limited to his own emails.

| Nor has Plaintiff shox;vn an entitlement to the fees incurred for advocacy related to the
PDPA. The PDPA is a real statute, and its application to documents in Macau was, is and will be
an issue that must be addressed in this case. Plaintiff certainly has not withdrawn his demands
that Defendants search the {last quantity of data that remains in Macan and produce any
responsiw.;e documents. The PDPA was not “fraudulently asserted,” Br, at 7:10,” and the time
spent by Plaintiff on this issue would have been incurred regardless of whether Defendants had
specifically identified the Subject Transfers earlier.

- For these reasons, an award of atlorney’s fees or costs would be inappropriate.

V. CONCLUSION

Defendants respectfully submit that any sanction imposed against them in this case
should be in the nature of an oral reprimand and/or a monetary fine payable to the Court or to an

appropriate charify. - -

7 Defendants question how Plaintif’s counsel can assert that the PDPA is fraudulent,
given that the same counsel represent Wynn Resorts, which has been investigated by OPDP for
violations of the PDPA, and which likely will face PDPA issues in connection with the Okada
litigation.
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DATE: September /1, 2012

© LIONE ER X@ZLLI
. d
By: {Ltaéﬂ...
Samuel S, Lionel (SBN #1766)
Charles H. McCrea, Jr. (SBN #104)
1700 Bank of America Plaza

- 300 South Fourth Street
Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Attorneys for Defendants/Counterclaimants
(limited appearance)
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nevada Rule of Civil Procedure 5(b), I hereby certify that I am an employee

of LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS and that on this jf_ﬁﬁay of September, 2012, 1 causéd

Adocuments entitled DEFENDANTS LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP.’S AND SANDS CHINA

LIMITED’S STATEMENT ON POTENTIAL SANCTIONS to be served as follows:

[X] by depositing same for nﬂailing in the United States Mail, in a sealed envelope

addressed to:

Jaines J. Pisanelli, Esq. 1. Stephen Peek, Esq.

Debra L. Spinelli, Esq. Robert J, Cassity, Esq.

Todd L. Bice, Esq, HOLLAND & HART
PISANELLI & BICE 9555 Hillwood Drive, 2™ Floor
3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800 Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 :

Facsimile No. 702.669.4650
Facsimile No. 702.214.2101

Brad D. Brian, Esq.

Henry Weissmann, Esq.

John B. Owens, Esq.

MUNGER TOLLES & QLSONLLP
355 8. Grand Avenue

Los Angeles, California 90071

Facsimile No. 213.683.5180

[X]  pursuant to Nev. R. Civ. P. 5(b)2)D) to be sent to the facsimile numbers
indicated above.. '

[ 1 tobehand delivered to:

and/or

[X] by the Court's ECF System through Wiznet,

An employeéof
LIONEL SAWYER & COLLINS
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Seplember 5, 2012, 1:34 PM ET
Study Says Data Privacy #1 Obstacle in
- Multinational Probes

ByC.M. Matthews

Data privacy is the biggest challenge for lawyers and accountants condueting multinational investigations or
cross-border litigation, according to a study released Wednesday.

The study found that 54% of those questioned said that data privacy was the greatest obstacle when handling
these types of investigations or engagements.

The study, published by business advisory firm FTI Consulting Inc., surveyed 114 legal and accounting
professionals who have handled e-discovety matters for either mutinational investigations or cross-border
litigation.

The findings come amid an uptick in investigations under the U.S, Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and the U.K.
Bribery Act, both of which prohibit bribery abroad to win business.

“‘Muitinational Investigations such as FCPA matters present complex challenges for legal teams, including data
privacy laws, time pressures and language barriers,” Craig Earnshaw, a managing director In the Technology
practice at FT1 Consulting in Its London office, said in a news release,

Nearly half of the respondents said they had conducted investigations requiring data collection in Chma which
presents a litany of challenges because of its complicated data privacy laws.

Respondents also said that multinational investigations were costly enterprises with 48% reporting they had
spent more than $500,000 on such matters, and, most thought things would only get tougher with 76% predicting
an increase in data pnvacy requirements in the coming years.

Copyright 2008 Dow Jones & Company, Inc. Al Rights Reserved
This copy is for your personal, non-commercial use only. Distibution and use of this material are governed by our Subscriber Agreement and by
copyright law. For non-parsonal use or to arder multiple coples, please contact Dow Jones Reprints at 1-800-843-0008 or visit
WWW, djreprmts com
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Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region

Office for Personal Data Protection

COI\(l;l:)IgENCIAL To: Responsible Sir or Madam
The Venetian Macao, Venetian Cotai Limited
The Venetian ® Macao-Resort-Hotel
Estrada da Baia de N. Senhora da
Esperanca, s/n
Taipa, Macao
Rec’d Letter Number Rec’d Letter Date Sent Letter Number Macau Postal Number
N.Ref.:LD0903-2012 6/27/2012 0957/GPDP/2012 08/08/2012

Re: The Venetian Macau Venetian Cotai Limited’s Intent to Transfer Personal Data to a Designation
Other Than Macao Special Administrative Region

Responsible Sir or Madam:

The above mentioned letter was received.

In regards to your company's {“The Venetian Macau Venetian Cotai Limited, VML") letter, it
indicated that in order to respond to the requests from “United States Securities and Exchange
Commission” (hereinafter referred to as “SEC”) and “United States Department of Justice”
{hereinafter referred to as “DOJ"), your company has an intent to transfer your company’s and /or
Sands China Limited’s (hereinafter referred to as “SCL”) current and former employees’ personal
data and transaction records in the storage forms of emails, electronic records, and paper forms to
“lLas Vegas Sands Corporation” {hereinafter referred to as LVSC) in the United States and SCL to be
convenient to further submit to SEC, DOJ, and one or more United States Courts. This office has

mailed letter numbered 1090/GPDP/2011 to your company on October 28, 2011 to state the

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered Interpreter
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Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #: 2

Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #; 0957/GPDP/2012

CONFIDENCIAL

Date: 08/08/2012
GPDP

position of this office held. Therefore, on June 27, 2012, this office again received your company

letter. After our analysis, our responses are as follows.

1. Applicability of “Personal Data Protection Act”

In accordance with your company’s provided data, the intended data to be
transferred to the United State include (1) your company’s current and former employees
and directors’ names, company addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses; (2)
names, company addresses, telephone numbers, and email addresses for those employees
of the entities that had business relations with your company and/or SCL; (3) associated
emails and data (Metadata) of the individuals mentioned at (1) and {2) above; (4] Copies of
the documents that were produced, transferred, or received by your company's current and
former employees and directors when they executed in their positions held. Because the
above mentioned information related to data that are readily identified or identifiable to a
natural person, in accordance with the definition of Macau’s Law number 8/2005, the

“Personal Data Protection Act” Article 4 item 1.1, they are personal data.

In accordance with the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 4 and item 1.3,
processing of personal data shall mean “any operation or set of operations which is
performed upon personal data, whether or not by automatic means, such as collection,
recording, organization, storage, adaptation or alteration, retrieval, consultation, use,

disclosure by transmission, dissemination or otherwise making available, alignment or

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered interpreter
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Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #:3

Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #: 0957/GPDP/2012

CONFIDENCIAL

Date: 08/08/2012
GPDP ate: 08/08/

combination, blocking, erasure or destruction.” (Underline is added for this letter). Your
company is considered an entity that is responsible for processing personal data. Referring
to above mentioned processing of personal data, your entity is not a natural person, which
Is defined at “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 3 ttem 2, in the course of a purely
personal or household activity. Therefore, in accordance with the same Act Article 3 item 1,
the “Personal Data Protection Act” is applicable.

In addition, this office is a public bureau defined by “the Macau Civil Code” Article 79
Item 3 and the “Personal Data Protection Act”. It exerclses the duties authorized by Laws of
8/2005, 83/2007, and 6/2010 that were designated by the Chief Executive. its
responsibilities are to monitor and coordinate the compliances and executions of the
“Personal Data Protection Act”. Therefore, this office has the authority and legal
fundamental basis to determine whether the “Personal Protection Act” is applicable to this
case.

2. The Personal Data Processing Entity and the Date Recipient

In accordance with the “Personal Protection Act” Article 4 Item 1 and Item 8, the
personal data proces%ing entity means “the natural or legal person, public entity, agency or
any other body which alone or jointly with others determines the purposes and means of the
processing of personal data”; data recipient means “a natural or legal person, public entity,

agency or any other body to whom duta are disclosed, whether a third party or not; however,

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered Interpreter
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Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #: 4

Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #: 0957/GPDP/2012

CONFIDENCIAL

Date: 08/08/2012
GPDP ate: 08/08/

authorities which may receive data in the framework of a law or a statutory regulation with
organizational nature shall not be regarded as recipients”.

In this case, because your company has the rights to control and the rights to decide
the above mentioned data, which includes the decisions to transfer data to other
companies, this is a responsible personal data processing entity. Then, LVSC and SCL, which
are told about such data, are merely data recipients. Additionally, because your company
does not directly submit the above mentioned data to SEC, DOJ, and one or more United
States Courts, these agencies are not date recipients in this case.

3. Legitimacy of Processing Personal Data

The “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 6 through Article 8 defined the legitimacy
of processing personal data. Except for those personal data considered as sensitive data
defined at the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 7 and those personal data considered
as suspicion of illegal activities, criminal and administrative o_ffenses defined at the
“Personal Data Protection Act” Article 8, all other personal data should be processed in the
criteria for making data processing legitimate defined at “Personal Data Protection Act”
Article 6.

Even though your company indicated that the personal data that are intended to
transfer do not include sensitive data, your company listed fo.ur kinds of data and they were
merely types of documents, which did not specify data’s types and contents. This office

cannot rule out the inclusions of sensitive data or data considered as suspicion of illegal

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered interpreter
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Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #: 5

Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #: 0957/GPDP/2012

CONFIDENCIAL

Date: 08/08/2012
GPDP ate: 08/08/

activities, criminal and administrative offenses. Therefore, just as those stated at the letter
numbered 1090/GPDP/2011, which was sent to you on October 28, 2011 by this office, your
company should separate different types of data and then obtain the legitimacy of the data
for each different type in accordance with the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 6
through Article 8. Then you could process_the data accordingly. Hereby, this office reiterates
the following:
{i) Legitimacy of Ordinary Data
In accordance with the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 6, “Personal data
may be processed only If the data subject has unambiguously given his
consent or if processing is necessary: (1) for the performance of a contract or
contracts to which the data subject is party or in order to take steps at the
request of the data subject prior to entering into a contract or a deciaration of his
will to negotiate; (2} for compliance with a legal obligation‘to which the
controller is subject; (3) In order to protect the vital interests of the data subject if
the latter is physically or legaily incapable of giving his consent; (4) for ihe
performance of a task carried out in the public interest or in the exercise of
official authority vested in the controller or in a third party to whom the data are
disclosed; {(5) for purs'uing the legitimate interests of the controller or the third

party to whom the data are disclosed, except where such interests should be

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered Interpreter
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Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #: 6

Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #: 0957/GPDP/2012

Date: 08/08/2012

overridden by the interests for fundamental rights, freedoms and guarontees of
the data subject.”

In this case, your company’s goal is to assist LVSC and SCL to respond to the
requests made by SEC and DOJ. When processing the data other than sensitive
data and data considered as suspicion of illegal activities, criminal and
administrative offenses (ordinary data}, your company Is only possible to obtain
the consents from the data subjects or meet the legitimacies defined at Article 6
items 1,2 or 5.

in regards to the consents from the data subject, it will be analyzed at
number 4 below.

Because your company did not provide this office the employees’
employment contracts or contracts between your company and your customers,
currently there are no informa;ion that demonstrate your company’s meeting
legitimacy defined at Article 6 ltem 1.

Additionally, the legal obligation defined at Article 6 ltem 2, in general, does
not include the responsible processing entity to fulfill its legal obligation to
process personal data outside the Macau Special Administrative Region. Also, in

accordance with the “Macau Special Administrative Region Casino Gambling or

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered Interpreter
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GPDP

Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #. 7

ce f .
Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #: 0957/GPDP/2012

Date: 08/08/2012

Other Gambling Operation Designated Contract”? (hereinafter referred as
“Designated Contract”) that was signed by the Galaxy Casino, S.A. and the Macau
Special Administrative Region, in Article 3 and 4, “This Designated Contract is
onl'y subject to the laws of the Macau Special Administrative Region.” “The
contracted company must obey the applied laws of the Macau Special
Administrative Region and give up and release the compelled obligations and
activities that were quoted by the laws of the jurisdictions other than the Macau
Special Administrative Region.” Therefore, based on the above mentioned the
goal to process related personal data, your company does not qualify the
legitimacy of the Article 6 Item 2. Also, this must be emphasized that for the
same reason when collecting personal dats, no one is able to foresee your
company’s goal to process personal data is to “fulfill the legal obligations of the
laws outside the Macau Special Administrative Region.” The practice of you
company qualified as “the use of personal data for purposes not giving rise to
their collection.” In accordance with the same Law Article 22 Item 1, it must be
monitored in advance by this office.

To qualify the legitimacy defined by Article 6 ltem 5, your company must

prove that the interests for fundamental rights, freedom and guarantees of the

t According to 207/2004 signed by the Chief Executive, the Galaxy Casino S.A. assigned the above mentioned contract
to its sub-concession the Venation Macau Venetian Cotal Limited.

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered Interpreter
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Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #: 8

i .
Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #: 0957/GPDP/2012

Date: 08/08/2012

data subject are not overridden by your company’s interests and the related
process is necessary. Currently there is no data that could demonstrate the
interests for fundamental rights, freedom and guarantees of the data subject are
not overridden by your company’s interests. Therefore, you company again does
not qualify the legitimacy defined by Article 6 item 5.

(i) Legitimacy of the Processing of Sensitive Data

In regards to the related processing of sensitive data, your company may
qualify the legitimacy defined by Article 7 item 2.3 and 3.4. In regards to the
explicit consent referred by Article 7 Item 2.3, it will be analyzed at number 4
below.

If the processing of date was due to the legal claims referred by Article 7 and
Item 3.4, the processing of the related data then met the “necessary” condition.
Also, in general, it also refers to the legal claims inside the Macau Special
Administrative Region. For the legal claims outside the Macau Special
Administrative Reglon, it is viewed as case by case and it is analyzed in detail in
connection with other existent applicable laws of the Macau Special
Administrative Region, especially to analyze the essentiality of the related
process. Therefore, in this case, your company and the related data subject are

not the parties in the legal claims, it has no essentiality to disclose the related
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the processing of data. As a result, your company does not qualify for the
legitimacy defined by Article 7 item 3.4.
(i} Legitimacy of Processing Data that Contain Suspicion of illegal Activities,

Criminal and Administrative Offenses

In regards to the “Persanal Data Protection Act” Article 8 suspicion of illegal
activities, criminal and administratlve offenses, the Article states, “1. Central
registers relating to persons suspected of lllegal activities, criminal and
administrative offences and (;’ecisions applying penaities, security measures, fines
and additional penalties may only be created and kept by public services vested
with that specific responsibility by a legal provision or a statutory regulation with
organizational nature, subject to observance of procedural and data protection
rules in force. 2. The processing of personal dota relating to persons suspected of
iflegal activities, criminal and administrative offences and decisions applying
penulties, security measures, fines and additional penalties may be carried cut,
subject to abservance of the rules for the protection of data and the security of
information, when such processing is necessary for pursuing the legitimote
purposes of the controller, provided the fundamental rights and freedoms of the
data subject are not overriding. 3. The processing of personal data for the
purposes of police investigations shall be restricted to the processing necessary to

prevent a specific danger or to prosecute o particular offence and to exercise the
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responsibilities provided for in a legal provision, in a statutory regulotion with
organizational nature, or in the terms of instruments of international law or
inter-regional agreements applicable in the MSAR.”

Because your company is not a public service agency as mentioned at ltem 1
above and Is also not a police investigation agency as mentioned at item 3 above,
in this case, your company is only possible to qualify the guidelines defined at
item 2 above. However, again, your company must prove that the interests for
fundamental rights, freedom and guarantees of the data subject are not
overridden by your company’s interests and the related process is necessary.
Currently there is no data that could demaonstrate the interests for fundamental
rights, freedom and guarantees of the data subject are not overridden by your
company’s interests, Therefore, you company again does not qualify the

legitimacy defined by Article 8 ltem 2.

3. The Data Subject’s Consent

In regards to the legitimate condition of the data subject’s consent, in accordance
with the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 4 item 1.9, the data subject’s consent
shall mean any “freely” “given specific” and “informed” indication of his or her
wishes by which the data subject signifies his or her agreement to personal data
relating to him or her being processed. The importance of “freely” refers that the

data subject is able to make choices on his or her own. Even refusal to consent,
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there will be no adverse consequences. For example, in the employment relation, it
is particularly important to pay special attentions to whether the data subject is
influenced by his or her employer and might not freely make choices. On the other
hand, the consent could be withdrawn freely. Once the date subject withdrew his or
her consent, the responsible entity then does not qualify for the legitimate condition
and cannot further process the data. “Specific” shall mean relevant consent, which
means that the process of personal data was specifically designated for one specific
purpose. In this case, the consent was specifically designated for the specific
purpose of your company’s assistance with LVSC and SCL to respond to SEC and DO}
in the United States. If the consent articulated beyond this purpose, it then cannot
be considered as a “Specific” consent.

In regards to processing of the sensitive data, it requires the davta subject's
“explicit consent”, |

Additionally, the data subject could only express consents to his or her own
personal data. Another word, the data subject’s consent could only apply to the
processing of his or her own data and cannot represent others to address consents
unless this individual cbtained a valid and legit power of attorney for others or met
other existent legal conditions.

Therefore, only if you company obtainad data subject’s valid consents, the

data then could be processed.
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4. Transferring Data Qutside of Macau

The "Personal Data Protection Act” Article 19 and Article 20 have provided
guidelines in regards to transfer of personal data to a destination outside the Macau
Special Administrative Region. However, your company’s letter stated that
transferring above mentioned personal data from Macau to the United States is in
compliance with the guidelines defined at the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article
19 and Article 20.

However, in accordance with this office’s letter numbered 1090/GPDP/2011
dated October 28, 2011 and part 2 and part 3 of the letter, if your company obtained
the data subject’s consent or explicit permit, according to the “Personal Data
Protection Act” Article 20 tem 1, the related personal data could be transferred to a
destination outside Macau. It is necessary to notify this office so. Additionally, if the
transfer of personal data is under the condition defined ét the “Personal Data
frotection Act” Article 20 Item 3, which states a transfer of personal data that is
necessary for the protection of defense, public security and public heal, and for the
prevention, investigation and prosecution of criminal offences, should be governed
by special legal provisions or by the international conventions and regiona‘l
agreements to which the Macau Special Administrative Region is the named party.

Other than the two conditions stated above, in this case, because your company
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does not have the legitimacies to process personal data, it is not even applicable to

mention transferring personal data to a destination outside Macau.

You company does not gualify for the legitimate conditions stated at the

@

‘Personal Data Protection Act” Article 6 through Article 8 to process personal data.
However, your last letter cansidered your transferring personal data from Macau to
the United States to be incompiiance with the guidelines defined at “Personal Data

Protection Act” Article 19 and Article 20. Your company’s claim lacks legal basis.

Even so, in order to assist your company to further understands this office’s
decision, this office provides the following analysis in regards to your references of
the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 19 and Article 20 as your related basis.

The “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 19 states that the transfer of
personal data to a destination outside the Macau Special Administrative Region may
only take place subject to compliance with this Act and provided the legal system in
the destination to which they are transferred ensures an adequate level of
protection.

Your company believed that even though your company did not directly
respond to the subpoena from SEC or did not have the legal obligations pertaining to
Jacob’s case. However, you company's parent company has such legal obligations.
Because these two are closely associated, the United States then asked the parent

company to provide all company data of its subsidiaries. Therefore, you company’s
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transferring related data is suitable to the guidelines defined at the "Personéi Data
Protection Act” Article 6 Item 2. Additionally, as a data processing entity, your
company should have your appropriate interests not to bear any legal liabilities that
might be resuited in harmful consequences in the events that 5CL and/or LVSC fail to

provide information related to Jacob’s case. Also, the third party data recipients

~{the first is SCL and LVSC, the second is SEC, DOJ, and defendant, then thereafter

might be one or more courts) have the same appropriate interests in their civil and
criminal investigations, in SEC and DOJ cases, in civil litigations, and in the
defendant’s case. They could obtain the related information in the hearing of Jacob's
court case. Under the circumstance, also based on point 11 in your letter pertaining
to the protection of the confidential data, the interests to the protected data under
the “Personal Data Protection Act” do not take precedence over the legitimate
interests stated above. Therefore, you company transferring the related data is
suitable with the guidelines defined at the “Personal Data Protection Act” tem 5.
And the intended recipient destination is the United States, which has suitable
protection and legal system. Therefore, in this case, the intent to transfer related v
data to the United States is suitable with the guidelines defined at the "Personal

Data Protection Act” Article 19 Item 1.
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At first, it is necessary to point out that as an authorized public bureau, as of
today, this office has never declared the legal systems of any counties or regions to
be suitable for personal data protection.

Additionally, as they have been clearly stated at Part 2 and Part 3, your
company's transferring personal data to the United States does not qualify for the
legitimate conditions defined at the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 6 item 2
and Item 5. Hereby, it is unnecessary to reiterate. But, it has to be emphasized that
the provision stated at the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 19 item 1 as “only
take place subject to compliance with this Act” is not only referring to the legitimate
conditions defined at Article 6 but also to compliance with regulations of data
processing, data subjects’ interests, and safety and confidentiality of the process, etc.
If processing sensitive data or data that contain suspicion of illegal activities, criminal
and administrative offenses, your company should obtain the legitimacies defined at
Article 7 or Article 8 separately in accordance with the different types of the data.
Then you could process.

Therefore, you company’s claim is invalid by stating your intent to transfer
related data to the United States being in compliance with the guidelines defined at
“Personal Data Protection Act” Article 19 item 1.

On the other hand, the law also states that a transfer of personal data to a

destination in which the legal system does not ensure an adequate level of
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protection may be allowed on the condition that this office is notified by the
personal data processing entity or obtained the permission from this office. The
conditions include:

{1) Compliance with the guidelines defined at Item 1, which states that the
data subject has given unambiguous consent or Is necessary for the
performance of a contract, is necessary or legally required on important
public interest grounds, or for the establishment, exercise of defense of
legal claims, or is necessary in order to protect the vital interests of the
data subjects. Then in accordance with Article 23, notifying this office,

{2) Compliance with the guidelines defined at ltemn 2, which states that the
controlling entity adduces adequate safeguards with respect to the
protection of the privacy and fundamental rights and freedoms of
individuals and has already obtained this office’s permission,

(3) Compliance with the guidelines defined at item 3, which states that a
transfer of personal data which is necessary for the protection of defense,
public security and public health, and for the prevention, investigation
and prosecution of criminal offenses, shall be governed by special legal
pravisions or by the international convehtions and regional agreements

which the Special Administrative Region is the named party.
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After a comprehensive review of the guidelines defined at Article 20 item 1,
in this case, your company intends to transfer personal data to the United States in
order to assist LVSC and SCL to respond the requests made by SEC and DQJ in the
United States. Because of the failure to obtain the explicit consents of the data
subjects and the lack of basls for the essentiality to execute a contract or to protect
the vital interests of the data subjects, your company is only possible to be in
compliance to the guidelines defined at Item 1.3 to transfer the related data.

Your company's letter indicated that even though the legal systems in the
L;nited States are not equipped to an adequate level of personal data protection, the
related data are transferred to the United States and are under the investigations of
SEC and DQJ. 1t is necessary to protect the interests in the Jacob’s case. Therefore, it
is in compliance with the “Personal Data Frotection Act” Article 20 ltem 1. Even
though your company did not specify in detail on which sub étem under Article 20
Item 1, based on the demonstrated information, it is believed that the sub item is
Article 20 ftem 1.3, which states that it is necessary or legally required on important
public interest grounds, or for the establishment, exercise of defense of legal claims.
Also after notifying this office, the personal data could be transferred to a
destination without adequate level of personal data protection.

Please pay attention to the "Personal Data Protection Act” Article 20 ltem 1.

The main concern is the interests of the data subjects, not the responsible personal

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered Interpreter

APP4B1

PA1520



Government of the Macao Special Administrative Region
Page #: 18

ffice for p i
Office for Personal Data Protection Letter #: 0957/GPDP/2012

g A Date: 08/08/2012
data processing controlling entity, especially not the interests of the data recipients.
Furthermore, your company is not the one of the parties in the litigation and has no
obligation to provide evidential documents and it is not affirmative that it is legally
required to transfer the data, Therefore, your company's claim that it is legally
required to protect the rights and to transfer the related data to the United States in
the investigation conducted by SEC and DOJ in related Jacob’s ligation is actually not
in compliance with the guidelines defined by the said Artide said item sub item 3.

Your company mentioned in your letter number 11 for the procedures of
confidentially that included the requirements of Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA")
in the United States. Also mentioned, the “Protective Order” in the related Jacob'’s
litigation is sufficiently protected in compliance with the guidelines defined by the
"Personal Data Protection Act” Article 20 item 2.

For this claim, it is necessary to point out that in Article 20 item 2 the
legislature designated this office to issue permits. The purpose is to allow this
office’s required involvements and to monitor in advance. it is not difficult to
understand that the condition for this office to issue “permit” is the process of the
personal data processing controlling entity to be in compliance with the “Personal
Data Protection Act”. However, just what have mentioned éarlier in this letter,
unless your company obtained the data subjects’ consents or explicit permissions to

transfer the related personal data outside Macau or the related data transfers met
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the conditions defined at the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 20 Item 3.
Otherwise, your company is not considered properly processing the personal data.
This office is impossible to permit these personal data to be transferred to a
destination outside Macau.

Additionally, if your related data transfer met the conditions defined at
“Personal Data Protection Act” Article 20 Item 3, which states that a transfer of
personal data which is necessary for the protection of defense, public security and
public health, and for the prevention, investigation and prosecution of criminal
offenses, shall be governed by special legal provisions or by the international
conventions and regional agreements which the Special Administrative Region is the
party.

Hereby, to remind your company again, in the case of the responsible personal
data; processing controlling entity’s failure to comply with the obligations in the
“Personal Data Protection Act” Article 6 through 9, 19 and 20, in accordance with
the same Act Article 33 Item 2, it is punishable with ‘a fine of MQP8,000 to
MOPB80,000. Also, if data are improperly transferred, it might be a violation of
professional secrecy defined at the “Personal Data Protection Act” Article 18. in
accordance with the Article 41, it might be a crime. If the data misappropriates ar
uses personal data for other purposes, in accordance with Article 37 item 1.3, it

might be a crime. In the meantime, regardless it is either an administrative offense
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or a crime, it may be ordered in additional penalty according to Article 43, which
includes temporary or permanent prohibition of processing data, publication of the

judgments, and public warning, etc,
At last, this office believes that the transfer of those related to the juridical

litigation documents in this case should be resolved by the means of international

Juridical assistance,

The contact person for this office; Mr. Lio or Mr. Ho, Telephone: 28716066

Sincerely

Director

Chan Hoi Fan

Translated by Joseph Shah, Nevada Supreme Court Registered interpreter
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Exma. Senhora Coordenadora do
Gabinete de Protecgio de Dados Pessoais
Avenida da Praia Grande, n, 8§04

Edif. China Plaza, 13

Andar, A-F, Macau

Assunto: Notificagio sobre revisio de documentos com dados pessoais na
RAEM
N/ Ref.: LD1671-2012

Exmo. Senhora Coordenadora:

“Venetian Macau S.A.”, em Chinés “g B EF AP ERAE” ¢ em Ingiés
“Venetian Macay, Limited”, sociedade comercial com sede em Macau, na Estrada da Baia de
Nossa Senhora da Esperanga, The Venetian Macao Resort Hotel, Executive Offices ~ L2, Taipa,
registada na Conservatoria do Registos Comercial e de Bens Méveis de Macau sob o mimero 30
15702, na sequéncia do V/ oficio com a referéncia 0957/GPDP/2012 de 8 de Agosto p.p. e da

reuniio de 6 de Novembro p.p., vem, neste acto representada por David Fleming, expor a V. Exa,
o0 seguinte:

1. Conforme foi referido na nossa carta de 27 de Junho p-p. com a ref. No. D093~
2012 e na reunifio de 6 de Novembro p.p., a Sands China Limited (“SCL") ¢ Ré num processo
civel pendente no District Court of Clark County, em Nevada (o “Tribunal™) sob o nome Steven
C. Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp.; Sands China Lid: Sheldon G. Adelson, et al., processo no.

Eoivads de Bute de M,
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AG27691-B (o0 “Processo Jacobs™. A Venetian Macau S.A. ("VML™) é uma sociedade
constitufda emy Macau, subconcessiondria de jogos de fortuna e azar, detida indirectas ¢
maioritariamente pela SCL.

2. A VML acredita que pode ter em sua posse, em Macau, documentos que podem
ser relevantes para a preparagio da defesa da SCL no Processo Jacobs. No entanto, para
confirmar a existéncia ou inexistdneia de tais documentos, a VML neccessita de rever certa

documentagfio que estéd na sua sede.

3 A presente carta serve para notificar o V/ Gabinete das circunstincias que
envolvem a revisfo de documentos necesséria para determinar se a VML tem em sua posse
documentos relevantes para a defesa da SCL no Processo Jacobs e explicar as raz8es pelas quais
acreditamos que a mesma ¢ consistente com o disposto na Lei de Proteecio de Dados Pessoais, a
Lei 8/2005. Caso assim n#io se entenda — o que nio se concede mas se admite por mera cautela —
a presente carta sempre servird para, alternativamente, requerer a V. Exa, autorizagdio para
proceder a0 processamento de dados pessoais necessariamente envolvido no processo de revisdo
de documentos que aqui serd descrito,

4, Neste momento, no dmbito do Processo Jacobs, o Tribunal estd em fase de
determinar se tem competéncia pessoal (Jurisdiction) sobre a SCL. Brevemente, em data que
ainda ndo foi formalmente decidida, o Tribunal conduzirs uma audiéncia probatéria (evidentiary
hearing) durante a qual serdo submetidas por ambas as partes provas para o Tribunal avaliar ¢
decidir 2 questdo da competéncia pessoal (jurisdiction) do Tribunal sobre a SCL. Se o Tribunal
determinar que tem competéncia pessoal sobre a SCL no Processo Jacobs, os antos prosseguirio
08 seus termos contra a SCL. Se o Tribunal determinar que ndo tem competéncia pessoal sobre a
SCL, a SCL ser4 absolvida do processo ¢ a acgéio prosseguird os seus termos apenas contra a Las
Vegas Sands Corporation (“LVSC™).

Eervody i finiy de M. Seabore do Enpeturge, /. Tuipo . Mucee SAR, B0, Chinn
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S E neste contexto, que o Tribunal ordenou que a SCL apresentdsse determinada
informagfio relevante para aferir se o Tribunal tem competéncia pessoal sobre a SCL.
Genericamente, o que se pede ¢ informago que demonstre a relagfo entre a SCL e a LVSC, ver
Anexo 1 (Court Order de 8 de Margo p.p.). Para determinar a sua competéneia, o Tribunal nfo
pretende analisar documentos que possam ser relevantes para o mérito da acefio ou relativos a
pessoas determinadas. A obrigagio da SCL neste momento ¢ apenas de determinar se existem
documentos adicionais em Macau relevantes — tinica e exclusivamente — para a questdo da

competéneia do Tribunal,

6. Na medida em que, nesta fase, o Tribunal cstd interessado na relagfo entre a SCL
¢ a LVSC apenas, estamos em crer que a maioria dos documentos, se nio todos, que possam ser
relevantcs para a questio da competéncia estejam ji nos Estados Unidos, e como tal tenham ja
sido apresentados em juizo pela LVSC, mas tal apenas poderd confirmar-se depois de a VML ter
feito a revisdo dos documentos em sua posse em Macau,

7. Se a SCL ndo cumprir com a ordem do Tribunal, poder-lhe-do ser impostas
sanges, nomeadamente, o Tyibunal pode decidir ter competéncia pessoal sobre a SCL.

8. Ora, como s¢ expds supra, & VML ¢ uma subsididria indirecta detida
maioritariamente pela SCL. Como tal, tem todo o interesse em que a SCL seja absolvida neste
Processo Jacobs, Afigura-se também claro que o interesse da VML em prevenir consequéncias
adversas para a SCL, que podem verificar-se caso a SCL ndio cumpra com a ordem do Tribunal,

¢ um interesse legitimo,

9, Neste contexto, a VML pretende contratar advogados de Macay, inscritos na
Associagio de Advogados de Macay, e uma firma de advogados de Hong Kong, para

- trabatharem juntos e reverem os documentos que estfio em posse da VML, em Macau, para que
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possam determinar se existem documentos em Macau relevantes para a questiio da competéneia
do Tribunal sobre a SCL. Para o efeito, a firma de advogados de Hong Kong deverd celehrar
com a VML um contrato de prestagdo de servigos de consultadoria em termos semelhantes aos
termos constantes do documento que ora se junta como Anexo 2.

10, A'VML n#io descura o facto de que se fosse parte num litigio em Macau, a revisio
de documentos para efeitos de prepragfio da sua defesa em Tribunal, nfio careceria de notificagio
ou de pedido de autorizago para o processamento dos dados pessoais constantes dos respectivos
documentos. No entanto, atendendo 2 natureza especial do presente caso, e A circunstincia de a
VML n#o ser parte no processo e o litigio estar a correr termos fora de Macan, e ainda na
sequéncia dos contactos que foram anteriormente estabelecidos pela VML com o V/ Gabinete,
consideramos apropriado notificar o V/ Gabinete antes de iniciar & revisio de documentos aqui
descrita,

Em face de todo o exposto, consideramos que, nos termos do disposto na alines 3) do
artigo 6.°% da Lei de Protecgfio de Dados Pessoais (Lei 8/2005), ¢ exercicio de revisio de
documentos aqui descrito, levado a cabo por advogados de Macau conjuntamente com a firma de
advogados de Hong Kong, ¢ o processamento de dados pessoais possivelmente constantes dos
documentos em causa, corresponde exercicio de ireito_legitimo por parte da VML.
pecessdrio, na medida em que apenas se o mesmo for levado a cabo se podera determinar se-
existem documentos relevantes para a defesa da SCL em Macau, e que no presente caso os

intergsses ou os direitos, liberdades e garantias dos titulares dos dadog nfio sairfio comprometidos

pela simples revisdo e catalogacio da informac#o por advogados e, como 1al. tais interesses ou
direitos, liberdades e garantias nfio devern prevalecer sobre o interesse da VML

Latsndda e Daly ddo M. Senhoen e Buperaign, ofn, Taign, Maco SAR, PLU, Chine .
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Assim, vemn a VML, nos termos do disposto no artigo 21.°, n.° 1 da Lei 8/2003, notificar
V. Exa. da sua intengfo de conduzir o exercicio de processamento de dados supra descrito.

No entanto, caso assim nfo se considere — o que ndo se concede mas se admite por mera
cautela — requere-se, mui respeitosaments, V, Exa. se digne autorizar o exercicio de

processamento de dados supra descrito, nos termos do disposto na alinea 4) do artigo 22.° da Lej
8/2005.

Requer-se ainda a V. Exa. Se digne conferir cardcter de urgéneia ao presente pedido na

medida em que a audiéncia probatéria sers agendada para breve e atendendo a0 potencial volume
de documentagio da VML que necessida de ser revista.

Junta: 2 documentos

Protesta junta: tradug¥o para Portuguds dos 2 documentos ora juntos
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(Translation from Portuguese to English,for reference only)

Dear Coordinator of the

Qfffice for Personal Data Protection
Avenida da Praia Grande, n. 804

Edif. China Plaza, level 13, A-F, Macau

Re: Netification about review of documents with personal data in Macau SAR
Our Ref:. 1LD1671-2012

Dear Coordinator,

“Venetian Macau S.A.”, in Chinese “ZL/ERFA SBFIRMGETIRANE]" and in English
"Venetian Macay, Limited”, a limited liability company, with its head office in Macau, Estrada
da Baia de Nossa Senhora da Esperanca, The Venetian Macao Resort Hotel, Executive Qffices —
L2, Taipa, registered with the Macau Commercial Registration Office under the number SO
15702, following your letter ref. 0957/GPDP/2012 of 8 August p.p. and the meeting of 6
November p.p., hereby represented by David Fleming, informs as follows:

1 As we have referred io In our leiter daved 27 June p.p. ref. no. LD0903-2012 and
during the meeting held on the 6 November 2012, Sands China Lid, (“SCL") is a named
defendant in a civil lawsuit pending in the District Court of Clark County, Nevada (the “Court”)
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captioned Steven C. Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp.; Sands China Ltd; Sheldon G. Adelson, et
al, case No. A627691-B (the “Jacobs Lawsuit”). Venetian Macau Limited ("VML") is a

company incorporated in Macau, sub-concessiondire for the operation of games of fortune and
chance, indirectly owned by SCL,

2, VML believes it may have in its possession, in Macau, documents that might be
relevant for the preparation of the defense of SCL in the Jacobs Lawsuil, However, to confirm
whether or vot these documents exist, in Macau, VML needs to review information located in its
headguarters.

3. This letter serves to notify OPDP of the circumstances that involve VML’s review
of its documents to determine whether VML has in its possession documents relevant to the
defense of SCL in the Jacobs Lawsuit, and to explain the reasons why VML believes that this
document review is consistent with the Personal Data Protection Act ("PDPA4"), approved by
Law 8/2005. in case the OPDP has a different understanding of the PDPA — with which we do
not agree but concede — this letters serves — alternatively - to request quthorization from OPDP
Jor VML to process the personal data which may be contained in the information that will be
reviewed, as herein below described.

4. The Court in the Jacobs lawsuit is in the process of determining whether it has
Jurisdiction in that case over SCL. In the near future, at a date that has not yet been formally
determined, the Court will conduct an evidentiary hearing during which the parties wil submit
evidence relevant to the gquestion of the Court’s jurisdiction over SCL. If the Court determines
that it has jurisdiction over SCL in the Jacobs lawsuit, the proceedings will continue against
SCL. If the Court determines that it does not have jurisdiction over SCL, SCL will be dismissed

from the lawsuit and the lawsuit will proceed against only the Las Vegas Sands Corporation

(“LVSC”).
7
Sreradu d¢ Bais de W. Senhors da Esparanga, /o, Thips, Macao SAR, .R. China
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada
corporation, and SANDS CHINA LTD., a

Electronically Filed

Cayman Islands corporation

Petitioners,

Case Nunthwr8 2013 09:13 a.m.
Tracie K. Lindeman

District CHENC Y SHRIGBECourt

A627691-B

Vs.
CLARK COUNTY DISTRICT COURT, THE APPENDIX TO PETITION
HONORABLE ELIZABETH GONZALEZ, FOR WRIT OF
DISTRICT JUDGE, DEPT. 11, PROHIBITION OR

Respondents, MANDAMUS
and RE M%I}{CDI-;IZ{Z 2013
STEVEN C. JACOBS,

Real Party in Interest. Volume IX of XIII

(PA1416 - 1662)

MORRIS LAW GROUP KEMP, JONES & COULTHARD, LLP

Steve Morris, Bar No. 1543
Rosa Solis-Rainey, Bar No. 7921
900 Bank of America PPlaza

300 South Fourth Street

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

J. Randall Jones, Bar No. 1927

Mark M. Jones, Esq., Bar No. 267
3800 Howard Hughes Pkwy, 17" Flr.
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

HOLLAND & HARTLLP

J. Stephen Peek, Esq., Bar No. 1759
Robert J. Cassity, Esq., Bar No. 9779
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

Attorneys for Petitioners

Docket 62944 Document 2013-10095



APPENDIX TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR WRIT OF
PROHIBITION OR MANDAMUS RE MARCH 27, 2013 ORDER
CHRONOLOGICAL INDEX

Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

12/22/2010

Sands China Ltd's Motion to
Dismiss including Salt Affidavit
and Exs. E, F, and G

I

PA1-75

3/16/2011

First Amended Complaint

PA76 - 93

4/1/2011

Order Denying Defendants'
Motions to Dismiss

PA94 - 95

5/6/2011

Petition for Writ of Mandamus,
or in the Alternative, Writ of
Prohibition (without exhibits)

PA96 - 140

5/17/2011

Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s
Motion to Stay Proceedings
Pending Writ Petition on
OST(without exhibits)

PA141 -57

7/14/2011

Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s
Motion to Stay Proceedings
Pending Writ Petition on OST
including Fleming Declaration

PA158 - 77

7/26/2011

Answer of Real Party in Interest
Steven C. Jacobs to Petition for
Writ of Mandamus, or in the
Alternative, Writ of Prohibition
(without exhibits)

PA178 - 209

8/10/2011

Petitioner's Reply in Support of
Petition for Writ of Mandamus,
or in the Alternative, Writ of
Prohibition (without exhibits)

PA210-33

8/26/2011

Order Granting Petition for Writ
of Mandamus

PA234 - 37

9/21/2011

Plaintiff's Motion to Conduct
Jurisdictional Discovery

PA238 - 46




Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

9/26/2011

Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion
to Conduct Jurisdictional
Discovery on OST(without
exhibits)

PA247 - 60

9/27/2011

Transcript: Hearing on
Plaintiff's Motion to Conduct
Jurisdictional Discovery

PA261 - 313

9/28/2011

Sands China Ltd.'s Motion in
Limine to Exclude Documents
Stolen by Jacobs in Connection
with the November 21, 2011
Evidentiary Hearing re Personal
Jurisdiction on OST(without
exhibits)

PA314 - 52

10/6/2011

Sands China Ltd.'s Motion for
Clarification of Jurisdictional
Discovery Order on OST
(without exhibits)

PA353 - 412

10/12/2011

Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs'
Opposition to Sands China Ltd.'s
Motion for Clarification of
Jurisdictional Discovery Order
on OST(without exhibits)

PA413 -23

10/13/2011

Transcript: Hearing on Sands
China's Motion in Limine and
Motion for Clarification of Order

PA424 - 531

12/9/2011

Notice of Entry of Order re
November 22 Status Conference
and related Order

I

PA532 - 38

3/8/2012

Order Regarding Plaintiff Steven
C. Jacobs' Motion to Conduct
Jurisdictional Discovery and
Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s
Motion for Clarification

PA539 - 44

3/22/2012

Stipulated Confidentiality
Agreement and Protective Order

PA545 - 60




Date Description Vol. # | Page Nos.

5/24/2012 | Transcript: Status Check I PA561 - 82

6/27/2012 | Defendants' Joint Status I PA583 - 92
Conference Statement

6/27/2012 | Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' Status PA592A -
Memorandum on Jurisdictional oI | 592S
Discovery

6/28/2012 | Transcript: Hearing to Set Time I PA593 - 633
for Evidentiary Hearing

7/6/2012 Defendants' Statement Regarding I PA634 - 42
Data Transfers

8/7/2012 Defendants' Statement Regarding PA643 - 52
Investigation by Macau Office of I
Personal Data Protection

8/27/2012 | Defendant's Statement Regarding |, |PA653-84
Hearing on Sanctions

8/27/2012 | Appendix to Defendants' PA685 - 99
Statement Regarding Hearing on IV
Sanctions and Ex. HH

8/29/2012 | Transcript: Telephone v |PA700-20
Conference

8/29/2012 | Transcript: Hearing on PA721-52
Defendants' Motion to Quash \Y%
Subpoenas

9/10/2012 | Transcript: Court's Sanction PA753 - 915
Hearing — Day 1 — Monday, VI
September 10, 2012

9/11/2012 | Transcript: Court's Sanction PA916 - 87
Hearing — Day 2 — Volume I VI
Tuesday, September 11, 2012

9/11/2012 | Transcript: Court's Sanction PA98S8 - 1157
Hearing — Day 2 — Volume Il VI
Tuesday, September 11, 2012

9/11/2012 Defendants Las Vegas Sands PA1158 - 77
Corp.'s and Sands China VII

Limited's Statement on Potential
Sanctions




Date Description Vol. # | Page Nos.

9/12/2012 | Transcript: Court's Sanctions PA1178 -
Hearing — Day 3 — Wednesday, VIII | 1358
September 12, 2012

9/14/2012 | Decision and Order VIII | PA1359 - 67

10/16/2012 | Notice of Compliance with PA1368 -
Decision and Order Entered vl | 1373
9-14-12

11/21/2012 | Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' Motion VIII PA1374-91
for NRCP 37 Sanctions

11/27/2012 | Defendants' Motion for a PA1392 -
Protective Order on Order VI 1415
Shortening Time (without
exhibits)

12/4/2012 | Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s PA1416 - 42
Motion for a Protective order on IX
OST

12/4/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits to PA1443 -
Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s 1568
Motion for a Protective order on IX
OSTand Exs.F,G,M,W, Y, Z,
AA

12/6/2012 Transcript: Hearing on Motion IX PA1569 -
for Protective Order 1627

12/12/2012 | Defendants' Opposition to PA1628 - 62
Plaintiff's Motion for Sanctions IX
(without exhibits)

12/18/2012 | Transcript: Hearing on Motions PA1663 -
for Protective Order and X 1700
Sanctions

1/8/2013 Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s PA1701 - 61
Report on Its Compliance with X
the Court's Ruling of December
18,2012

1/17/2013 | Notice of Entry of Order re: PA1762 -
Sands China Ltd.'s Motion for X 68

Protective Order and related
Order




Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2/08/2013

Plaintiff's Renewed Motion for
NRCP 37 Sanctions on Order
Shortening Time

PA1769 - 917

2/25/2013

Defendants' Opposition to
Plaintiff's Renewed Motion for
NRCP 37 Sanctions

PA1918 - 48

2/25/2013

Appendix to Defendants'
Opposition to Plaintiff's
Renewed Motion for NRCP 37
Sanctions NOTE: EXHIBITS O
AND P FILED UNDER SEAL
(Bates PA2119-2159A Submitted
Under Seal)

XII

PA1949 -
2159A

2/28/2013

Transcript: Hearing on Plaintiff's
Renewed Motion for NRCP 37

Sanctions

PA2160 - 228

3/6/2013

Reply In Support of Plaintiff's
Renewed Motion for NRCP 37
Sanctions

PA2229 - 56

3/27/2013

Order re Renewed Motion for
Sanctions

PA2257 - 60




APPENDIX TO EMERGENCY PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION OR
MANDAMUS TO PROTECT PRIVILEGED DOCUMENTS
ALPHABETICAL INDEX

Date Description Vol.# | Page Nos.

7/26/2011 | Answer of Real Party in Interest PA178 - 209
Steven C. Jacobs to Petition for
Writ of Mandamus, or in the I
Alternative, Writ of Prohibition
(without exhibits)

12/4/2012 | Appendix of Exhibits to PA1443 -
Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s 1568
Motion for a Protective order on IX
OSTand Exs.F,G,M, W, Y, Z,
AA

2/25/2013 | Appendix to Defendants' PA1949 -
Opposition to Plaintiff's 2159A
Renewed Motion for NRCP 37
Sanctions (Excerpt) XTI
NOTE: EXHIBITS O AND P
FILED UNDER SEAL (Bates
PA2119-2159A Submitted Under
Seal)

8/27/2012 | Appendix to Defendants' PA685 - 99
Statement Regarding Hearing on A%
Sanctions and Ex. HH
9/14/2012 | Decision and Order VIII | PA1359 - 67
12/4/2012 | Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s PA1416 - 42
Motion for a Protective order on IX
OST
5/17/2011 | Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s PA141 -57
Motion to Stay Proceedings I
Pending Writ Petition on
OST(without exhibits)
7/14/2011 | Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s PA158 - 77
Motion to Stay Proceedings I
Pending Writ Petition on OST
including Fleming Declaration
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

9/26/2011

Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s
Opposition to Plaintiff's Motion
to Conduct Jurisdictional
Discovery on OST(without
exhibits)

PA247 - 60

1/8/2013

Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s
Report on Its Compliance with
the Court's Ruling of December
18,2012

PA1701 - 61

6/27/2012

Defendants' Joint Status
Conference Statement

PA583 - 92

9/11/2012

Defendants Las Vegas Sands
Corp.'s and Sands China
Limited's Statement on Potential
Sanctions

VII

PA1158 - 77

11/27/2012

Defendants' Motion for a
Protective Order on Order
Shortening Time

PA1392 -
1415

12/12/2012

Defendants' Opposition to
Plaintiff's Motion for Sanctions
(without exhibits)

=

PA1628 - 62

2/25/2013

Defendants' Opposition to
Plaintiff's Renewed Motion for
NRCP 37 Sanctions

PA1918 - 48

7/6/2012

Defendants' Statement Regarding
Data Transfers

PA634 - 42

8/27/2012

Defendant's Statement Regarding
Hearing on Sanctions

PA653 - 84

8/7/2012

Defendants' Statement Regarding
Investigation by Macau Office of
Personal Data Protection

5 |2 E| B

PA643 - 52

3/16/2011

First Amended Complaint

PA76-93

10/16/2012

Notice of Compliance with
Decision and Order Entered

9-14-12

PA1368 -
1373




Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

12/9/2011

Notice of Entry of Order re
November 22 Status Conference
and related Order

PA532 - 38

1/17/2013

Notice of Entry of Order re:
Sands China Ltd.'s Motion for
Protective Order and related
Order

PA1762 - 68

4/1/2011

Order Denying Defendants'
Motions to Dismiss

PA94 - 95

8/26/2011

Order Granting Petition for Writ
of Mandamus

PA234 -37

3/8/2012

Order Regarding Plaintiff Steven
C. Jacobs' Motion to Conduct
Jurisdictional Discovery and
Defendant Sands China Ltd.'s
Motion for Clarification

PA539 - 44

3/27/2013

Order re Renewed Motion for
Sanctions

PA2257 - 60

5/6/2011

Petition for Writ of Mandamus,
or in the Alternative, Writ of
Prohibition (without exhibits)

PA96 - 140

8/10/2011

Petitioner's Reply in Support of
Petition for Writ of Mandamus,
or in the Alternative, Writ of
Prohibition (without exhibits)

PA210- 33

11/21/2012

Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' Motion
for NRCP 37 Sanctions

PA1374-91

10/12/2011

Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs'
Opposition to Sands China Ltd.'s
Motion for Clarification of
Jurisdictional Discovery Order
on OST

PA413-23

6/27/2012

Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs' Status
Memorandum on Jurisdictional
Discovery

PAS592A -
5925

9/21/2011

Plaintiff's Motion to Conduct
Jurisdictional Discovery

PA238 - 46
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Date

Description

Vol. #

Page Nos.

2/08/2013

Plaintiff's Renewed Motion for
NRCP 37 Sanctions on Order
Shortening Time

XI

PA1769 - 917

3/6/2013

Reply In Support of Plaintiff's
Renewed Motion for NRCP 37
Sanctions

XIII

PA2229 - 56

10/6/2011

Sands China Ltd.'s Motion for
Clarification of Jurisdictional
Discovery Order on OST
(without exhibits)

PA353 - 412

9/28/2011

Sands China Ltd.'s Motion in
Limine to Exclude Documents
Stolen by Jacobs in Connection
with the November 21, 2011
Evidentiary Hearing re Personal
Jurisdiction on OST (without
exhibits)

PA314-52

12/22/2010

Sands China Ltd's Motion to
Dismiss including Salt Affidavit
and Exs.E,F,and G

PA1-75

3/22/2012

Stipulated Confidentiality
Agreement and Protective Order

PA545 - 60

9/10/2012

Transcript: Court's Sanction
Hearing — Day 1 — Monday,
September 10, 2012

PA753 - 915

9/11/2012

Transcript: Court's Sanction
Hearing — Day 2 — Volume I
Tuesday, September 11, 2012

PA916 - 87

9/11/2012

Transcript: Court's Sanction
Hearing — Day 2 — Volume II
Tuesday, September 11, 2012

PA988 - 1157

9/12/2012

Transcript: Court's Sanctions
Hearing — Day 3 — Wednesday,
September 12, 2012

PA1178 -
1358




Date Description Vol.# | Page Nos.

8/29/2012 | Transcript: Hearing on PA721 - 52
Defendants' Motion to Quash Vv
Subpoenas

12/6/2012 | Transcript: Hearing on Motion x | PA1569 -
for Protective Order 1627

12/18/2012 | Transcript: Hearing on Motions PA1663 -
for Protective Order and X 1700
Sanctions

9/27/2011 Transcript: Hearing on PA261 - 313
Plaintiff's Motion to Conduct II
Jurisdictional Discovery

2/28/2013 | Transcript: Hearing on PA2160 - 228
Plaintiff's Renewed Motion or XIII
NRCP 37 Sanctions

10/13/2011 | Transcript: Hearing on Sands PA424 - 531
China's Motion in Limine and III
Motion for Clarification of Order

6/28/2012 | Transcript: Hearing to Set Time m | PA593-633
for Evidentiary Hearing

5/24/2012 | Transcript: Status Check m | PA561-82

8/29/2012 Transcript: Telephone v PA700 - 20
Conference

10




CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Pursuant to Nev. R. App. P. 25, I certify that I am an employee
of MORRIS LAW GROUP; that, in accordance therewith, I caused a copy of
the APPENDIX TO PETITION FOR WRIT OF PROHIBITION OR
MANDAMUS RE MARCH 27, 2013 ORDER to be served as indicated

below, on the date and to the addressee(s) shown below:

VIA HAND DELIVERY

Judge Elizabeth Gonzalez
Eighth Judicial District Court of
Clark County, Nevada
Regional Justice Center

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155

Respondent

VIA ELECTRONIC AND U.S. MAIL
James J. Pisanelli

Todd L. Bice

Debra Spinelli

Pisanelli Bice

3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

Attorneys for Steven C. Jacobs, Real Party in Interest

DATED this 5th day of April, 2013.

By: _/s/ PATRICIA FERRUGIA
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Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

[\
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10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28

MOTN

J. Stephen Peek, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 1759
Robert J. Cassity, Esq.
Nevada Bar No. 9779
HOLLAND & HART LLp
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
(702) 669-4600

(702) 669-4650 — fax
speek@hollandhart.com
beassity@hollandhart.com

Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp.
and Sands China, LTD.

J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 1927

Mark M. Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 000267

Kemp Jones & Coulthard, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

(702) 385-6000

(702) 385-6001 ~ fax
n.jones@kempjones.com

Attorneys for Sands China, LTD.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

STEVEN C. JACOBS,

Plaintiff,
V.

LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP,, aNevada
corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a Cayman
Islands corporation; SHELDON G. ADELSON,
in his individual and representative capacity;
DOES I-X; and ROE CORPORATIONS I-X,

Defendants.

AND ALL RELATED MATTERS.

Defendant Sands China Ltd. (“SCL” and/or “Defendant”) moves this Court pursuant to
Rule 26(c), this Court’s March 8, 2012 Order, and the Nevada Supreme Court’s Order Granting

SCL’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus, for a protective order with respect to the scope of its

Page 1 of 27

5875083_1.D0OC

Electronically Filed
12/04/2012 06:51:44 PM

Q%J.W

CLERK OF THE COURT

CASENO.: A627691-B
DEPTNO.: XI

Date: n/a D‘,Lv-wv‘\’*’” é,‘Z.O\Z._,
Time: n/a %b@ ——

DEFENDANT SANDS CHINA LTD.’S
MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER
ON ORDER SHORTENING TIME

12-04-12P04:52 RCVD

PAl416
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o

obligation to search electronically stored information (“ESI”) that is located in Macau.

tep pen PeekéEsq
bgl‘t J. Cassity, Esq,
/ olland & Hart LLP
"~ 9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

DATED December 4, 2012.

Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp. and Sands
China Ltd,

and

AR S - S ¥ O - N S I o

J. Randall Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 1927

Mark M. Jones, Esq.

Nevada Bar No. 000267

Kemp Jones & Coulthard, LLP

3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169

—_— = =
W N = O

Attorneys for Sands China, Ltd.
EX PARTE APPLICATION FOR ORDER SHORTENING TIME

—
~

As set forth in the Affidavit of J. Stephen Peek, Esq. below, good cause exists to hear

—_
L

Defendant Sands China Ltd.’s Motion for a Protective Order on an order shortening time. Plaintiff

[,
~1

Steven C. Jacobs (“Plaintiff” and/or “Jacobs™) has brought a Motion for Sanctions pursuant to

NRCP 37 against SCL on the theory that SCL is violating its ongoing discovery obligations,

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
o 2}

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

19 |l including a supposed obligation to extensively search ESI in Macau. A hearing on Plaintiff’s
20 || Motion for Sanctions is scheduled for December 27, 2012. However, Plaintiff’s Motion for
21 | Sanctions jumps the gun. As explained below, the parties have a significant dispute about the
22 | scope of SCL’s obligation to search ESI in Macau, in light of the limited nature of the
23 |l jurisdictional discovery the Cowurt has allowed and the extensive document production that has
24 || already been completed based on searches of ESI on LVSC’s servers (including ESI for which
25 || Messrs. Adelson and Leven or their secretaries are the custodians) and of the Jacobs ESI that was
26 || transferred from Macau to the United States in 2010. Unless and until that dispute is resolved
27 || and unless and until SCL violates whatever order this Court might enter, Plaintiff’s Motion for
28 || Sanctions is hopelessly premature.

Page 2 of 27
5875083_1.DOC

PA1417
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1 On November 30, 2012, Plaintiff moved, on an order shortening time, for both discovery
2 || and an evidentiary hearing on his Motion for Sanctions. That motion has been set for Thursday,
3 || December 6, 2012 at 8:30 am. The Court should not rule on that Motion until it has an
opportunity to consider SCL’s Motion for a Protective Order, which SCL believes should obviate
the need to hold any hearing at all on Plaintiff’s Motion for Sanctions.

SCL’s request for an order shortening time is made in good faith and is not made for any
improper purpose, and accordingly SCL requests that this Motion be heard on an order shortening

time.

O 0 N S b

DATED December 4, 2012.
10

1 R /»([ﬁf /z(;é’z/ /Qf///

’J Stef)henP k, Esq.
12 /

obert J. Cassuy, Esq,
Holland & Hart LLP

= 13 | /9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
,§ < " Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
. e 14
38 A Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp. and Sands
S sa 15 , China Ltd.
ERs
TR B 16 and
== %
g 8 8 17 J. Randall Jones, Esq.
= _.5 £ Nevada Bar No. 1927
o e 18 Mark M. Jones, Esq.
w5 Nevada Bar No. 000267
§ 19 Kemp Jones & Coulthard, LLP
3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
20 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
21 Attorneys for Sands China, Ltd.
22
23 DECLARATION OF J. STEPHEN PEEK, ESQ.
24 I,J. STEPHEN PEEK, ESQ., being duly sworn, state as follows:
25 1. I am one of the attorneys for Sands China Ltd. (“SCL”) in this action. I make this

26 | Declaration in support of Defendant Sands China Ltd.’s Motion for a Protective Order in
27 || accordance with EDCR 2.34 and in support of its Ex Parte Application for an Order Shortening
28 || Time. I have personal knowledge of the facts stated herein, except those facts stated upon

Page 3 of 27
5875083_1.DOC
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1 | information and belief, and as to those facts, I believe them to be true. I am competent to testify
2 || to the matters stated herein.
3 2. Plaintiff has taken the position, in correspondence and in a number of meet-and-
4 || confer sessions, that SCL and its indirect parent corporation, Las Vegas Sands Corporation
5 || (“LVSC”) each has an independent obligation to produce any and all documents in its possession,
6 || custody or control that are responsive to the Requests for Production of Documents (“RFPs”) that
7 |l Plaintiff served on each Defendant. In addition, Plaintiff has interpreted those RFPs in an
8 || extremely broad manner, as requiring each Defendant to produce every document necessary to
9 || show every detail of every contact SCL had with the State of Nevada during the period from
10 || January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010, whether directly or indirectly through LVSC. To date,
11 || Defendants have together produced over 168,000 pages of documents in response to Plaintiff’s
12 || jurisdictional discovery at a cost we estimate to exceed $ 2.3 million.! Nevertheless, Plaintiff still
o 13 | claims that the production is deficient because certain “electronic records” (including ESI in
5 % g:: 14 || Macau) have not been searched. See P1. Motion for Sanctions at 6.
"g ‘:n:.é 15 3. In meet-and-confer sessions and letters sent to Plaintiffs’ counsel in May and June
g % % 16 || 2012, prior counsel for SCL made SCL’s position clear that the production efforts of both
g § §; 17 | Defendants must be viewed collectively and that, in light of the extensive production LVSC has
E E % 18 || provided, the documents SCL has already produced, and SCL’s commitment to produce
?\ - 19 || documents from the Jacobs ESI in the United States, SCL has no obligation to search ESI in
20 || Macau for purposes of jurisdictional discovery. Nevertheless, as a precautionary measure, SCL
21 | agreed to search ESI in Macau for which Jacobs was the custodian to ensure that there are no
22 || responsive documents that were not captured by the search of the Jacobs ESI in the United States.
23 | SCL also offered, as late as October 30, 2012, when new counsel appeared for SCL, to meet and
24 || confer with Plaintiff about ESI production in Macau.
25 4, Plaintiff ignored SCL’s offer to meet and confer about that issue, but has also not
26 || brought a motion to compel, as SCL suggested it should do more than four months ago. Instead,
27
! This is a rough (but conservative) estimate that represents our current best guess of how much has
28 |l peen spent on searching, reviewing and producing documents and the associated privilege logs.
5875083_1.DOC Page 4 of 27
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1 || Plaintiff has brought a Motion for Sanctions, in which he argues that SCL’s failure to search its

2 || ESI in Macau (as opposed to the Jacobs ESI in the United States, which has been searched and

[#%)

from which over 15,000 pages of documents have been produced) was sanctionable. Indeed,

Plaintiff cited the efforts of SCL’s new counsel to meet and confer on the issue of ESI in Macau

N

as evidence of SCL’s supposed bad faith discovery conduct. P1. Motion for Sanctions at 4.
5. In light of Plaintiff’s Motion for Sanctions, it is clear that the parties are at an
impasse and that additional efforts to meet and confer concerning the scope of SCL’s remaining

discovery obligations would not be fruitful. Accordingly, SCL has brought this Motion for a

N N O i

Protective Order to obtain a ruling from the Court that it is not required to search ESI in Macau
10 || except ESI for which Jacobs was the custodian.

11 6. SCL’s request for an order shortening time is made in good faith and is not made
12 || for any improper purpose, and SCL specifically requests that the Court hear this Motion on an

13 || order shortening time.

[ =]
(=]
=2
A % § 14 7. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct.
282 g» o / ) /
g < /177 AA 5 17
;55‘. é -§ 16 R A &/f ) l{»Z”/ (I e // {/'
&5z e Sftéphen P}éek, Esq.
g § §D 17 / /'/’J
= =2 0 ORDER SHORTENING TIME
2]
ﬁ S 19 The Court having reviewed the Ex Parte Application for Order Shortening Time, and good
N
20 || cause appearing,
21 IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that the foregoing DEFENDANT SANDS CHINA {:TD.’S
o
2 MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER shall be heard on shortened time on theéz_ day of
23 E 2¢ ¢« ,2012, at the hour of _é : 30 .m. in Department XI of the Eighth Judicial
24 District Court.
25 DATED this day of g 261/ 2012,
26
27 DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
28 /h/)f_.
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1 MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES IN SUPPORT OF
DEFENDANT SANDS CHINA LTD.’S

2 MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER

3 L.

4 INTRODUCTION

5 In his recently-filed Motion for Sanctions (at 6), Plaintiff accuses Defendants of failing to

6 || follow through on the promises Defendants made to the Court on June 28, 2012, to re-double their

7 || efforts to fully comply with their discovery obligations. In fact, Defendants have done exactly

8 || what they told the Court they would do — and much more. As explained in greater detail below,

9 || Defendants have, as promised, produced responsive documents (i) from the Jacobs ESI that was

10 || transferred in 2010 to the United States from Macau and (ii) based on a new search of emails on
11 || LVSC’s server between a long list of LVSC custodians and Jacobs. In addition, although
12 || Defendants do not believe they were required to do so, LVSC searched new custodians and
13 || applied expanded search terms to custodians whose ESI it had already searched in an effort to
14 || address Jacobs’ assertions that there were inadequacies in the existing document production. Asa
15 || result of all of these efforts, Defendants have produced approximately 148,000 additional pages of
16 | documents to Plaintiff since the June 28 status hearing, at an estimated cost in excess of $2
17 || million.? The only discovery task that Defendants promised to do that they have yet to complete

18 || is a search of ESI in Macau for which Jacobs was the custodian to determine whether there are

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 | any additional responsive documents still in Macau that for some reason were not in the Jacobs
20 || ESI that was transferred to the U.S. SCL always made clear that searching ESI in Macau for
21 || which Jacobs was the custodian would be the last task it undertook, and it is that task to which
22 )| SCL has now turned.

23 In his Motion for Sanctions, Plaintiff simply ignores Defendants’ extensive document
24 || production over the course of the last several months and tries to twist the one piece that remains

25

z Defendants estimated that it would take untii Labor Day to review and produce the documents in
26 || the Jacobs ESI in the United States and to conduct the further Jacobs-related email review on the LVSC
servers using Defendants® original search terms. 6/28/12 H’mg Tr., attached hereto as Ex. A, at 13.
27 }| Defendants made that deadline. Production continued thereafter because Defendants expanded their search
terms after meet-and-confer sessions with Plaintiff and applied those terms over all custodians whose ESI
28 || had previously been reviewed.

Page 6 of 27
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1 || to be completed (the Macau search of the Jacobs ESI) into a total failure to comply with SCL’s
2 || discovery obligations. But as Jacobs well knows, that is not true. For months, the parties have
3 || had a dispute — which Plaintiff does not even acknowledge in his Motion for Sanctions — about
4 || whether SCL has an obligation to search its ESI for documents beyond those for which Jacobs
5 || was the custodian. SCL has consistently argued that it does not. SCL’s position is based on a
6 || variety of factors, including the nature of Plaintiff’s requests, which focus on interactions between
7 || LVSC and SCL and the activities of Messrs. Adelson and Leven (whose ESI resides on LVSC
8 Il servers); the fact that LVSC has engaged in extensive production efforts that, in Defendants’
9 || view, go far beyond its obligations; and the enormous burden of conducting a review of ESI in
10 || Macau that is likely to be entirely duplicative and unnecessary to Jacobs’ efforts to prove his case
11 || on jurisdiction. To give a simple example, for purposes of the limited jurisdictional discovery the
12 || Court ordered, SCL should not be required to search its ESI in order to identify and produce
& 13 || emails to or from LVSC employees when LVSC has already produced those very same emails.
o é é 14 | Yet Plaintiff has taken the position that each Defendant must produce all documents in its
g ‘i :‘5 15 || possession, custody or control that are responsive to Plaintiff’s incredibly broad interpretation of
i 5: E 16 || his document requests and that SCL is, accordingly, required to duplicate all of the efforts LVSC
g é §; 17 || has already undertaken in Las Vegas in Macau.
E '—é i 18 Plaintiff has refused to talk about any lesser proposal, despite SCL’s stated willingness to
§ = 19 || do so. Indeed, Plaintiff’s counsel simply ignored attempts by SCL’s new counsel to meet and
20 || confer about ESI in Macau. Although SCL has suggested on more than one occasion that Plaintiff
21 || should bring a motion to compel if he disagrees with SCL’s understanding of the scope of its
22 || discovery obligations, Plaintiff failed to file such a motion. It was not until Plaintiff filed his
23 || Motion for Sanctions that it became apparent that the parties are at an impasse on this issue.
24 || Accordingly, SCL now brings this Motion for a Protective Order, seeking a determination that it
25 || has no obligation to conduct any ESI searches in Macau — apart from running the precautionary
26 || Jacobs ESI comparison it has already promised to perform — on the off-chance that it might find
27 || a document that could be deemed responsive to one or more of Plaintiff’s requests that has not
28 | already been produced.
5875083_1.D0C Page7 of27
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1 As demonstrated in greater detail below, the Court should grant SCL’s motion pursuant to
2 | NRCP 26(c) because Defendants have together fully responded to all of the jurisdictional

3 || discovery the Court allowed and because requiring SCL to conduct further searches of ESI in

4 || Macau (apart from searches of the Jacobs ESI) would likely yield only duplicative and cumulative
5 || documents that Jacobs does not need and that, in any event, could not as a matter of law support
6 || his claim that this Court has general jurisdiction over SCL.
7 I
8 BACKGROUND FACTS AND PROCEDURAL HISTORY
9 A, The Court’s Order on Jurisdictional Discovery

10 In September 2011, shortly after the Nevada Supreme Court issued its Order on SCL’s

11 || Petition for Mandamus, Jacobs’ counsel moved for leave to conduct jurisdictional discovery.
12 || Plaintiff’s counsel asked the Court to allow them to take depositions of four individuals who
13 || reside in Nevada (Messrs. Adelson, Leven, Goldstein and Kay) and to seek fifteen categories of
14 || documents. In the hearing on Plaintif’s motion, Jacobs’ counsel stated that he had “fried to
15 || narrowly confine what it is that we want to do” with respect to jurisdictional discovery. 9/27/11
16 || H’mg Tr., attached hereto as Ex. B, at 20 (emphasis added). One purpose of the discovery,
17 || Plaintiff’s counsel said, was to determine whether SCL’s “primary officers [whom he identified

18 || as Mr. Adelson and Mr. Leven] are directing the management and control of that company from

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 | the offices [of LVSC] here on Las Vegas Boulevard.” Id. at 21. In support of that theory,
20 || Plaintiff sought documents that would enable him to determine whether two or more directors
21 | attended SCL Board meetings while located in Las Vegas, id. (Request #6%) and when and how
22 |i often the deponents and other LVSC employees traveled to China on SCL-related business
23 Il (Request #7). Plaintiff also sought documents related to Michael Leven’s service as acting CEO
24 || of Sands China and/or Executive Director of the SCL Board (Request #9).

25 Plaintiff’s counsel argued that he also needed discovery to “see what Sands China is doing

26 || in Nevada.” Id. at 24. He emphasized that Jacobs was not pursuing an alter ego theory under

27 || » References herein to Plaintiff’s Requests are to the numbered paragraphs in the Court’s March 8

. . q . . p g p . .
Order, attached hereto as Ex. C, in which the Court granted Plaintiff’s request to take discovery with
28 respect to eleven categories of documents.
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1 {| which LVSC’s contacts with the forum would be attributed to SCL. /d. at 23-24. Instead,
Plaintiff’s counsel said he was trying to determine what SCL did “on its own” in Nevada, whether
through its own officers, directors or employees, or through LVSC, supposedly acting as SCL’s
agent. Id. at 26. In support of these theories, Plaintiff asked for contracts that SCL had entered
into with entities based in or doing business in Nevada, including shared services and other

agreements between SCL and LVSC, as well as documents reflecting work performed by or on

N N e B W N

behalf of SCL in Nevada. See Requests # 10, 11, 13, and 16. Plaintiff also sought documents
8 || reflecting services performed by LVSC or its executives on behalf of SCL, as well as documents
9 || reflecting amounts (if any) that SCL paid to LVSC executives to reimburse them for work
10 || performed for SCL. See Requests # 12, 15, and 18.
11 The Court granted all of these requests, which were limited to the time period of January
12 || 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010, while denying four other requests.* When SCL subsequently sought
13 || clarification of the Court’s ruling, the Court imposed as an “overriding limitation” on all
14 || discovery that “[t]he parties are permitted to conduct discovery related to activities that were done
15 || for or on behalf of Sands China.” See March 8, 2012 Order at 6.> As SCL understands this
16 || limitation, Plaintiff is not entitled to discovery into activities that LVSC executives or employees
17 || engaged in on behalf of LVSC itself, which would include LVSC’s supervisory activities as

18 || SCL’s parent; instead, Plaintiff can only seek discovery into the actions of individuals acting

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 || directly for SCL (such as Messrs. Adelson or Leven, when they were wearing their SCL “hats”)
20 || or LVSC executives or employees who were acting for or on behalf of SCL, pursuant to (for
21 || example) a shared services agreement.6

22

23 | 4 The Court also allowed Plaintiff to seek documents that SCL provided to the Nevada Gaming
Commission during the period from January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010. This category is not at issue
74 || because SCL has never conducted a gaming business in Nevada and thus does not provide documents to
the Gaming Commission. See Sands China Ltd.’s Response to Plaintiff’s First Request for Production,
25 | attached hereto as Ex. D, at 29.

i Although the Court’s Order was not entered until March 8, 2012, it provided this clarification in a
26 || hearing held on October 13, 2011.

27 | ¢ Plaintiff’s theory appears to be that LVSC acted as SCL’s agent when it provided products and
services pursuant to the Shared Services Agreement between LVSC and SCL. Defendants disagree. That
98 || Agreement did not purport to create an agency relationship, nor did it give SCL the right to control the
manner in which LVSC performed the services in question. Without control, there is no principal-agent

Page 9 of 27
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1 B. Plaintiff’s Discovery Requests

2 The Court’s Order granting in part Plaintiff’s Motion for Jurisdictional Discovery was not
3 || self-executing. See 10/13/11 H’ring Tr., attached hereto as Ex. E, at 65 (“You’re going to have to
4 || do formal discovery requests. . . let’s not assume that just because I said you can do these things .

. . . that that means that [Defendants] have to immediately respond. They don’t”). Although
Plaintiff knew in mid-October that he would have to serve discovery requests on Defendants, it
was not until more than two months later that Plaintiff finally propounded Requests for

Production of Documents (“RFPs™) separately to SCL and LVSC, on December 23 and 27, 2011.

v oo 3 &N u

Those RFPs (attached hereto as Exs. F and G) were broader in a number of respects than the
10 || Court’s Order granting discovery.

11 SCL and LVSC served timely objections and responses to the RFPs on January 23 and 30,
12 || 2012 respectively, See Exs. H and I hereto. Plaintiff responded by attacking Defendants’
13 || objections, demanding an immediate meet-and-confer, and threatening a prompt motion to
14 | compel. See Exs. J and K hereto. Among many other things, Plaintiff’s counsel took the position
15 || that LVSC and SCL each had an independent obligation to produce all documents in its
16 || possession, custody or control that were responsive to the requests, even if those documents were
17 || completely duplicative. See 2/1/12 Letter from D. Spinelli to S. Peek, Ex. K hereto, at 1 (LVSC’s

18 || response that the information sought by certain Requests could be derived from documents that

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 || SCL would produce, such as SCL Board minutes, was “insufficient” because LVSC supposedly

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

20 || had an independent duty to produce those documents). Notwithstanding the statements made in
21 || Plaintiff’s initial letters, Plaintiff chose not to file a motion to compel. Instead, the parties did
22 | what they are supposed to do under the Nevada rules — they met and conferred repeatedly about
23 || their differences in an attempt to resolve them without seeking the Court’s assistance.

24 On March 7, 2012, Munger Tolles sent a letter to Plaintiff’s counsel offering detailed

25 || stipulations about the facts sought by Plaintiff in his RFPs as an alternative to the lengthy (and

(continued)

26 relationship. See Hunter Mining Labs., Inc. v. Management Assistance, Inc., 763 P.2d 350, 352 (Nev.
1988) (“In an agency relationship, the principal possesses the right to control the agent’s conduet™).
27 However, for discovery purposes Defendants have assumed that any services LVSC provided to SCL in
Nevada pursuant to the Shared Services Agreement would be deemed to have been provided “for or on
28 || behalf of SCL.”

Page 10 of 27
5875083_1.D0C

PA1425



(Page 11 of 27)

1 | likely contentious) discovery process that appeared to be in the offing. See Ex. L hereto.” Three
weeks later, Plaintiff turned down SCL’s offer to stipulate, stating that, although he “appreciated”
the effort to streamline the proceedings, he wanted to proceed with discovery on each and every
one of his RFPs. See Ex. O hereto. Thus, for example, Plaintiff was not content with a
stipulation that Messrs. Leven and Adelson attended all telephonic Board meetings during the
period in question from Las Vegas or with a stipulation as to how many trips Messrs. Adelson or
Leven had made to China on SCL business during the relevant period. Plaintiff stated that the

proposed stipulations were insufficient because he wanted to know not only the date, time and

(o TN SR B =) S U, SR - N U S -

location of SCL Board meetings, but also what was on the agenda and what was being discussed
10 || at SCL Board meetings. Similarly, Plaintiff declined to stipulate to the seemingly simple RFP
11 || seeking information about the trips that Messrs. Adelson, Leven, Goldstein and others made to
12 || China during the period in question, on the ground that he was entitled to “amy document

13 || referencing the travel, which will likely include information as to what they were doing and why.”

5
By EZ? 14 || T. Bice 3/28/12 Letter to J. Owens, Ex. O hereto, at 2 (emphasis added). Munger Tolles
g <:x§ 3 15 || responded a week later by withdrawing the proposed stipulations, but noting that SCL would be
g é é 16 || producing documents during the week of April 9 (following the Court’s entry of a negotiated
g é g) 17 || protective order) and that SCL hoped to revisit the possibility of short-cutting discovery through
E E %; 18 || stipulations after document production began. See Ex. P hereto.
§ = 19 C. Defendants’ Document Production in April and May
20 SCL did in fact produce documents in April. Those documents related to the location and

21 | attendees at Board meetings (#6 of the March 8 Order), to Mr. Leven’s appointments by the SCL
22 || Board (#9) and included contracts SCL had entered into directly with entities that are located or

23 || do business in Nevada (#11), contracts between SCL and LVSC (#13), and documents relating to

24 7 Munger Tolles’ March 7, 2012 Letter took another request the Court had allowed (#18) out of

play. The Court permitted Plaintiff to seek documents reflecting reimbursements made to any LVSC
25 || executive for work performed or services provided related to SCL, during the relevant time period. SCL
explained that “LVSC reimburses its employees for business-related travel relating to providing services
26 | for SCL,” but that “LVSC does not otherwise reimburse its employees for any services performed for
SCL.” See March 7 Letter at 9. SCL subsequently produced “connected transaction reports,” which
27 || disclose all the accounting entries for services LVSC provided to SCL under their shared services
agreement, See July 17, 2012 Munger Tolles Letter, Ex. M hereto, at 2; Index to SCL Doc. Production,
28 | Ex. N hereto.
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1 || services performed by LVSC executives on behalf of SCL (#15). See SCL’s First Supplemental
2 || Response to Plaintiff’s RFPs, attached hereto as Ex. D. LVSC also produced documents, on a
3 || rolling basis. A letter from Munger Tolles dated July 17, 2012, attached hereto as Ex. M, at 1-2,
4 || explains in detail the process LVSC initially used to electronically search the LVSC database for
5 || responsive documents prior to the May 24, 2012 status check.
6 At meet-and-confer sessions held during the spring, Defendants’ counsel took the position
7 | that their document production efforts should be evaluated on a collective basis. Many of the
'8 | categories of documents the Court allowed were aimed at LVSC or at communications between
9 I LVSC and SCL; SCL took the position that it was not required to conduct duplicative searches in
10 || order to locate and produce (for example) the SCL end of an email that had been sent to someone
11 || at SCL by an LVSC executive (or vice versa).? See, e.g., Letter dated May 18, 2012, attached
12 || hereto as Ex. Q, at 1-2. Similarly, SCL’s view was that it was not required to produce agreements
5 13 || between SCL and LVSC that LVSC had already produced. Plaintiff disagreed, consistently
2
o _% zw 14 || arguing that SCL and LVSC had independent obligations to search and produce the very same
- gD
"g ‘;}:’é 15 || universe of documents. While continuing to argue the point, Plaintiff never filed a motion to
=
g 5 E 16 || compel asking the Court to resolve this dispute.
=P
g § g 17 D. Jacobs’ Electronic Media
= =0
',:x°:,‘ E E 18 While LVSC and SCL were producing documents on a rolling basis, the parties were also
vy
E‘?\ 19 |l still negotiating over the deposit with the Court-appointed ESI vendor, Advanced Discovery, of
20 || the electronic media Jacobs had taken with him when he left Macau. In December 2011, the
21 || Court ordered Jacobs to produce to Advanced Discovery by December 9, 2011, a full mirror
22 || image of all electronic storage devices that were in his possession, custody or control when he
23 || was terminated. See Order Regarding November 22, 2011 Status Conference, attached as Ex. R
24 || hereto. Nevertheless, it was not until more than five months later, shortly before the May 24,
25
8 For example, LVSC was best situated to produce documents reflecting work Mr. Goldstein
26 performed for SCL as an employee, officer or director of LVSC (#12), as well as documents reflecting
work performed by LVSC on behalf of SCL (#15). That was also true with respect to Plaintiff’s request for
27 |l documents relating to Mr. Leven’s service as acting CEO or Executive Director of SCL (#9). Mr. Leven
did not have a Macau (“mo.com™) email address, but instead used his Las Vegas Sands email address for
28 || both LVSC and SCL business. Mr. Adelson ESI was also located on the LVSC server.
Page 12 of 27
5875083_1.DOC

PA1427



(Page 13 of 27)

1 || 2012 status check, that Jacobs submitted any of his electronic media (the “Jacobs Collection™) to
2 §| Advanced Discovery to be imaged.
3 E. The May 24, 2012 Status Check
4 When the parties appeared at the May 24 status check, LVSC’s counsel reported that
5 || LVSC was still producing documents but that it was close to completing its production efforts.
6 || Munger Tolles reported that all SCL had left to produce was responsive documents for which
7 |l Jacobs was the custodian. Mr. Weissmann acknowledged that SCL had not yet searched the
8 || Jacobs ESI, stating that the search would involve an elaborate process and that SCL was waiting
9 || to conduct its own search until the Jacobs Collection held by Advanced Discovery could be
10 || searched. 5/24/12 H’ring Tr., attached hereto as Ex. S, at 12-14. The Court responded that this
11 || kind of “staggered” approach to discovery was improper, expressed her disappointment that
12 || discovery was proceeding so slowly and that the parties had not yet reached the deposition stage,
& 13 || and vacated the June hearing date. Id. at 14-15. The Court then instructed the parties to return for
o é § 14 || another status on June 28 and asked for status reports to be filed before that hearing. Id. at 20.
:'g (ié 15 F. The June 28, 2012 Status Check
g E :q;, 16 In their June 27 Joint Status Conference Statement, attached hereto as Ex. T, Defendants
g é g} 17 || explained that they believed they had substantially completed their document production, with the
;:.‘g E i 18 || exception of documents for which Jacobs was the custodian. Defendants stated that they had
§ - 19 || produced close to 20,000 pages of documents at a cost of well over $300,000. Id. at 2, 4.
20 || Defendants also described their plan to review the Jacobs ESI. The first step was to review the
21 || Jacobs ESI in the United States. Defendants disclosed that Jacobs’ emails and other ESI had been
22 || transferred from Macau to the United States in 2010; Defendants promised to search and produce
23 || responsive documents from this collection. Id. at 5 (f 1). They also promised to search the
24 || emails of a large number of LVSC custodians who either received email from Jacobs or sent
25 || email to him during the relevant period with search terms designed to yield potentially relevant
26 || documents. Id.(]2). Finally, as a precautionary measure, SCL said that it would take the results
27 || of this production and run searches on its subsidiary’s (VML’s) servers in Macau to see if there
28 || was any ESI for which Jacobs was the custodian in Macau that was not also in the United States.
5875083_1.DOC Page 13 of27
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1| 1. at 6 (] 4). If so, SCL’s proposal was to attempt to obtain permission from the Macau
2 || authorities (the Office for Personal Data Protection or “OPDP™), to the extent it was necessary to
3 || do so, to transfer that data to the United States for production to Jacobs. Id.at 6-7 (f 5).
4 In his Status Memorandum on Jurisdictional Discovery, also filed on June 27, attached as
5 {| Ex. U hereto, Plaintiff reported on the status of the Jacobs Collection, noting that he was
6 | scheduled to provide his search terms to cull out his own privileged/private materials by July 2.
7 || Plaintiff then discussed at length Defendants’ disclosure that the Jacobs ESI had been transferred
8 || to the United States in 2010. Id. at 3. Plaintiff asked the Court to establish a “prompt time period”
9 || for Defendants to review and produce documents from the Jacobs ESI in the United States and
10 || then to set a date for the evidentiary hearing — without any suggestion that Plaintiff thought that
11 || SCL was required to undertake additional searches of ESI in Macau. /d. at 2. The final portion of
12 || Plaintiff’s Memorandum was devoted to an attack on the completeness of Defendants’ document
K 13 || production. That portion of Plaintiff’s status report was supported by a Declaration from Jacobs
oy % é 14 || claiming that there were many categories of documents relating to LVSC’s contacts with SCL
‘g ‘;, 3 15 || that should have been produced, but had not been. Although it was clear that Jacobs’ Declaration
g é § 16 || had been drafted to support a motion to compel, Plaintiff chose not to file a motion to compel,
g § bi@; 17 || either then or later.’
;é E i 18 At the June 28 status hearing, SCL’s counsel noted that until Plaintiff filed his status
é . 19 réport, SCL had “never heard about” any of Jacobs’ specific complaints about documents that
20 || were supposedly “missing” from Defendants’ production. 6/28/12 H’rg Tr., attached hereto as
21 || Ex. A, at 10. He noted that the appropriate way to deal with such issues was through the meet-
22 || and-confer process and, if the issues could not be resolved, by filing a motion to compel. Id. at
23 || 12. The Court agreed, stating “[i]t is the appropriate way, you’re absolutely right.” Id.; see also
24 || id at 12-13 (noting that the Court had marked as a court exhibit a table Defendants had prepared
25 || with respect to their production to quickly respond to Jacobs’ Declaration, “but I anticipate
26 || always that issues related to compelling documents will be handled by a motion™).
27
’ When it was served, Jacobs’ Declaration was captioned as being in support of a motion to compel.
28 || When it was filed, it became simply a Declaration.
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1 SCL’s counsel also explained its plan for producing the Jacobs ESI going forward. He
2 || started by explaining that on May 29, 2012, the OPDP had informed SCL that it could produce

3 || documents from the Jacobs ESI that had been transferred to the United States without violating

4 || the Macau Personal Data Protection Act (the “MPDPA”) — although it might still face penalties
5 || for the original transfer of those documents from Macau to the United States in 201 0. Id. at 4-5.
6 {| Inlight of the OPDP’s letter, SCL’s counsel promised that “[w]e are going to double and redouble
7 (| our efforts to move this thing along and review the Jacobs documents that are in the United States
8 || and get those documents that are responsive to jurisdiction produced as quickly as we can.” /d. at
9 || 12."! He then noted that SCL had authorized counsel to
10 increase staffing, increase the expense, and get it done. And we think that we can get
all of the documents, other than documents in Macau — and we have to decide what
11 the Court is going to do with that, because documents in Macau are a whole different
situation and involve legal issues that may or may not have to be resolved on the
12 jurisdictional issue. But we think we can get through all of the Jacobs documents and
all of the other documents in the United States by Labor Day and get those produced
S 13 so that if, Your Honor — if there’s no discovery disputes and discovery motions, we
L o think we’d be in a position to have a hearing in October. That’s our best bet.
Heen 14
HE
§d§15 Id. at 13-14.
=
g 5 :25 16 G. Defendants’ Post-June 28 Document Production
= .
E § o%o 17 Although the Court knows what happened thereafter with respect to the sanctions hearing,
=] )
=
;:?:g> = 2 18 || it has yet to hear the full story of what happened with discovery after June 28 — because until
pag
§ 19 || recently neither side asked for the Court’s assistance with respect to any discovery disputes. After

20 || the June 28 hearing, Defendants’ counsel engaged in numerous meet-and-confer sessions with
21 || Plaintiff’s counsel in an effort to agree on a set of expanded search terms that LVSC could use to
22 | search the custodians whose documents had already been searched and a long list of custodians

23

2 | " As the Court knows, the OPDP has initiated an investigation into the original transfer. See
Defendants’ Statement Regarding Investigation by Macau Office of Personal Data Protection, filed on
25 1| 8/7/12 and attached hereto as Ex. V.

it

At page 6 of his recently-filed Motion for Sanctions, Plaintiff quotes SCL’s counsel as saying that
26 || SCL was going to “double and re-double its efforts” and then claims that counsel was promising to review
documents in Macau. But, as the full quotation shows, the promise was to review and produce documents
27 | from the Jacobs ESI that was in the United States. SCL made no promises at all with respect to Macau
and in fact reiterated the difficulties of producing documents that were located in Macau. See 6/28/12
28 H’rng Tr., Ex. A hereto, at 13.
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1 || who traded emails with Jacobs during the relevant period. Eventually, Plaintiff’s counsel simply
2 || refused to discuss search terms further, taking the position (as they do in Plaintiff’s Motion for
3 || Sanctions) that Defendants should choose their own search terms and run their searches.

4 | Eventually, LVSC did just that.

5 LVSC unilaterally expanded its original search by adding four additional custodians and
6 || increasing the scope of the search terms used to identify potentially relevant information. LVSC
7 || also used the expanded search terms it generated to (i) identify responsive documents in the
8 || Jacobs ESI that had been transferred to the United States in 2010 and (ii) to identify emails on the
9 || LVSC server that were sent to or from a large number of LVSC custodians. See also Munger

10 || Tolles July 17, 2012 Letter, Ex. M hereto (explaining in detail the process Defendants intended to
11 || follow). This process has recently been completed, with documents produced to Plaintiff and
12 || privilege logs submitted. In total, Defendants have now produced more than almost 168,000
13 || pages of documents in response to Plaintiff’s jurisdictional discovery requests — an enormous
14 || undertaking that has cost more than 32.3 million. 12

15 In his Motion for Sanctions (at 6), Plaintiff claims that “LVSC and Sands China have still
16 || to this day conducted no search of numerous electronic files both in Macau and Las Vegas.” But
17 || Plaintiff offers no explanation of which electronic files he thinks should have been searched or

18 || what documents he believes are missing. More importantly, Plaintiff does not even try to explain

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 || in what way the massive document production he has received fails to provide him with the

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

20 |l evidence he needs in order to make whatever arguments he intends to make on the jurisdictional
21 || issue. As the Court noted in June, if Plaintiff has a complaint about the scope of Defendants’
22 || production, the appropriate way to handle it is by seeking a meet-and-confer and then, if an
23 || impasse is reached, bringing a motion to compel. Plaintiff cannot leap over those basic steps and

24 || seek sanctions simply because he claims that there are electronic files that have yet to be

25 || searched.
26 Although Plaintiff complains in his sanctions motion in a generalized way about SCL’s
27 || » In addition, Defendants had produced approximately 36,000 pages of documents to Plaintiff before

discovery was stayed in the summer of 2011; many of those documents are also responsive to Plaintiff’s
jurisdictional discovery requests.

28
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failure to review ESI in Macau, the fact is that Plaintiff has known for six months that SCL’s

—

position was and is that Jacobs is the only Macau custodian whose ESI SCL needed to search. Ina
July 30 letter, attached hereto as Ex. W, memorializing the parties’ discussions of this issue,
Munger Tolles explained that a broader review based on a larger group of custodians would be
unduly burdensome and would be unreasonable and unnecessary in light of (i) the extensive
review and production LVSC had done of documents showing the interaction between executives
at LVSC’s headquarters in Las Vegas (including Messrs. Adelson and Leven) and SCL and (ii)
Defendants® agreement to produce responsive documents from the Jacobs ESI, beginning with the

ESI that LVSC had transferred to the United States. SCL’s counsel noted that Plaintiff had

[= RN - Y N N S

—

suggested during meet-and-confer sessions that SCL should take the initiative to resolve the

—
—

dispute as to the scope of SCL’s remaining discovery obligations by seeking a protective order;

—
b

SCL responded that Plaintiff should file a motion to compel — a step Plaintiff never bothered to

take.

—
w

H. SCL Retains New Counsel Following the Court’s September 14 Order

—_
[

That was the state of play in October 2012, when the undersigned new counsel substituted

for Munger Tolles as counsel for SCL. Shortly thereafter, Mark Jones, along with Mr. Peek,

—
~]

attempted to meet and confer with Plaintiff’s counsel about discovery of ESI in Macau. As

Plaintiff admits, his counsel took the position that there was nothing to discuss. See P1. Motion

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
o o

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

19 || for Sanctions, at 4. Accordingly, SCL’s new counsel took steps to complete the discovery that
20 | SCL had promised of the Jacobs ESI in Macau — a process that SCL had always said would
21 || come after the review and production of the Jacobs ESI that LVSC transferred to the United
22 || States from Macau in 2010.

23 SCL recognizes that in its sanctions Order the Court told SCL that it could not rely on the
24 | MPDPA as a basis for objecting to the production of documents. Nor has SCL done so:
25 || Defendants have produced all responsive documents in the Jacobs ESI in the United States
26 [ without making any objections based on the MPDPA. However, we do not read the Court’s Order
27 || as prohibiting SCL from attempting to comply with the procedures the OPDP requires under the
28 || MPDPA before producing documents from Macau that raise data privacy issues. That is what
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1 | SCL’s new counsel have done.

2 As SCL has previously reported, in August 2012, SCL received the OPDP’s long-awaited
3 || response to its request to transfer data to the United States in order to respond to document
4 || requests in this case and other matters. See Defs. Statement on Potential Sanctions, filed 9/11/12,
5 || Ex. X hereto, at 12; see also the OPDP's August 8, 2012 letter attached as Ex. Y hereto. In that
6 || letter, the OPDP not only rejected SCL’s request, but stated that SCL’s own lawyers could not
7 | even review documents in Macau that are subject to the MPDPA to determine whether they are
8 || responsive to U.S. discovery requests or subpoenas. Id.

9 After the status check on October 30, 2012, Mark Jones and Michael Lackey of Mayer

10 || Brown LLP immediately flew to Macau to meet with the OPDP, along with in-house counsel for
11 | SCL and its operating subsidiary VML, in an attempt to convince the OPDP to allow counsel
12 || retained by VML to review documents so it can be determined (as SCL had said it would do all
13 || along) whether there are any unique responsive documents in Macau for which Jacobs was the
14 | custodian. See Ex. Z hereto, which is a copy of the written request SCL and VML submitted.
15 || On November 29, SCL received a response from the OPDP, a copy of which is attached hereto as
16 | Ex. AA, which gives SCL’s subsidiary (VML) permission to review documents containing
17 || personal data by automated means so long as that review is conducted by either VML’s in-house

18 || lawyers in Macau or by external Macau lawyers. Those lawyers would be responsible for

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 || identifying personal information and either obtaining the individual’s consent to transferring the

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

20 || data or redacting it before the documents identified through the electronic search could be
21 || provided to external SCL lawyers in Hong Kong, who would review them for responsiveness,
22 || privilege, and other allowable restriction. By following the procedure OPDP has prescribed, SCL
23 || hopes to be able to discharge both its obligations to this Court and to the government of its home
24 || jurisdiction.

25 For the reasons outlined below, SCL’s remaining obligations to search for responsive
26 || documents in Macau should be limited to what SCL has already agreed to do — search ESI for
27 || which Jacobs was the custodian to ensure that all responsive documents have in fact been
28 || produced from that collection.
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1 118
2 LEGAL ANALYSIS
3

NRCP 26(b)(2) provides that the Court “shall” limit discovery if it determines that

(i) the discovery sought is unreasonably cumulative or duplicative or is obtainable
from some other source that is more convenient, less burdensome, or less
expensive; (ii) the party seeking discovery has had ample opportunity by discovery
in the action to obtain the information sought; or (iii) the discovery is unduly
burdensome or expensive, taking into account the needs of the case, the amount in
controversy, limitations on the parties’ resources, and the importance of the issues
at stake in the litigation.

= R - " -

In this case, all three of these reasons combine to support SCL’s motion for a protective order
10 || against Plaintiff’s apparent demand for open-ended discovery of SCL’s ESI in Macau. First,
11 || Plaintiff has had “ample opportunity” to obtain the information he seeks in discovery; indeed,
12 || Defendants together have produced documents that fully responded to all of the discovery the
13 || Court permitted. Second, any additional ESI discovery in Macaﬁ would likely be “cumulative or
14 | duplicative” of the discovery Plaintiff has already received from LVSC. Finally, the burden and
15 || expense of requiring SCL to search its ESI in Macau beyond the ESI for which Jacobs was the
16 | custodian would be wholly unjustified not only because it would likely produce only duplication,
17 || but also because Plaintiff already has all of the evidence he needs (and more) to make whatever

18 || arguments he chooses to make on the limited issue of jurisdiction.

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 Plaintiff convinced the Court to grant him jurisdictional discovery by representing that he
20 || was seeking discovery that was “narrowly confine[d]” to particular jurisdictional theories and
21 || could be quickly completed. 9/27/11 H’tng Tr., attached hereto as Ex. B, at 20. Yet once the
22 || hearing date had been postponed and his discovery requests were finally served, Plaintiff took a
23 || remarkably expansive view of what he was entitled to seek, asking not only for documents that
24 || would enable him to identify SCL’s contacts with Nevada, but also all of the details concerning
25 || those contacts — details that have little or no relevance to the jurisdictional analysis.
26 || Notwithstanding their disagreement with Plaintiff’s view of the scope of discovery the Court
27 | permitted, Defendants expanded their searches and have now produced almost 168,000 pages of
28 || documents in response to Plaintiff’s requests for jurisdictional discovery at a cost we estimate to
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1 || exceed $2.3 million. In addition, in accordance with the Court’s March 8 Order, Defendants have

2 |l presented Messrs. Adelson, Goldstein and Leven for deposition (with Mr. Kay scheduled for

3 I December 18). Yet Plaintiff is still not satisfied, although he has refused to engage in any meet-

4 || and-confer process or to file a motion to compel seeking specific categories of documents that he

5 |l claims have yet to be produced. For the reasons outlined below, it is clearly time to call an end to

6 || further disputes over discovery — as well as sanctions motions — and to finally get to the hearing

7 || the Nevada Supreme Court ordered this Court to conduct.

8 I A. Plaintiff Has Obtained All Relevant Discovery

9 Defendants have produced all contracts between SCL and LVSC during the period in
10 || question, including a shared services agreement pursuant to which LVSC provided SCL with
11 || certain procurement and other services. These documents fully responded to Request #13 (for all
12 || agreements for shared services between SCL or its subsidiaries and LVSC). SCL also produced
13 || the handful of contracts it had during the period in question with Nevada entities other than

LVSC. See Request #11 (for contracts SCL entered into with Nevada entities). SCL told Plaintiff

—
S

that it had never filed any documents before the Nevada Gaming Commission (Request #19), had

—
W

not executed any contracts for financing in Nevada (Request #10) (although it acknowledged that

LVSC had been involved in certain of SCL’s funding efforts), and had never reimbursed LVSC

—
~

executives directly for their work for SCL (Request # 18) (although SCL produced documents

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
% o

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

19 || showing the compensation it had paid to LVSC for those services). In addition, Defendants
20 || produced travel records showing business travel by LVSC executives to Hong Kong, Macau or
21 || mainland China during the relevant period (Request #7). Defendants also produced documents
22 || showing where SCL’s in-person Board meetings were held and who attended telephonic meetings
23 || (Request #1); Defendants offered to stipulate that Messrs. Adelman and Leven attended all
24 | telephonic meetings from Las Vegas. Munger Tolles, March 7 Letter, Ex. L hereto, at 1.

25 Two other requests (#9 and #12) sought documents reflecting the activities of Michael
26 | Leven and Robert Goldstein for or on behalf of SCL. LVSC produced documents for which Mr.
27 || Leven and Mr. Goldstein were custodians and thus should have captured all of the responsive
28 || documents for these requests as well.
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1 That leaves only the two broadest (and largely overlapping) requests (#15 and #16), in
2 || which Plaintiff was allowed to seek documents reflecting (i) services performed by LVSC on
3 || behalf of SCL during the relevant period, including but not limited to services relating to five
specific activities and (ii) services performed on behalf of SCL in Nevada, including
communications with a number of non-LVSC entities based in Nevada. To answer these
requests, LVSC initially searched ESI for which Messts. Adelson, Leven, Goldstein, Kay, and
Chiu (also an LVSC executive) were custodians; in terms of Macau custodians, it has been clear

since June 2012 that SCL planned to search only the ESI for which Jacobs was the custodian.

O e g SN W A

This limitation of custodians was reasonable. Plaintiff himself argued in seeking jurisdictional
10 || discovery that “the three key witnesses in this entire debate I would argue are Mr. Jacobs and
11 || these two gentlemen [Messrs. Adelson and Leven].” 9/27/11 H'mg Tr., Ex. B hereto, at 19-20.
12 || Limiting ESI searches to the documents held by key individuals is widely accepted as an
13 || appropriate practice to enable the parties to “balanc[e] the cost, burden, and need for
14 | electronically stored information.” THE SEDONA CONFERENCE, SEDONA PRINCIPLES ADDRESSING
15 || ELBCTRONIC DOCUMENT PRODUCTION, Principle 2 (2d ed. 2007) (“SEDONA PRINCIPLES”). See
16 | SEDONA PRINCIPLES, Cmt. 6(b) (explaining that it is preferable to “collect[] electronically stored

17 || information from repositories used by key individuals rather than generally searching through an

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor

18 || entire organization’s electronic information system™).

Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 After Jacobs filed his Declaration on June 27, LVSC attempted to meet and confer with
20 || Plaintiff to agree on an expanded list of custodians and search terms for the ESI on LVSC’s server
21 || that would capture documents that Plaintiff claimed should have been produced. Ultimately,
22 | Plaintiff declined to continue efforts to reach an agreement and so Defendants applied their own
23 || list of expanded search terms, to an expanded list of custodians in the LVSC data base (including
24 | custodians who corresponded with Jacobs) and to the Jacobs ESI that had been transferred to the
25 || U.S.in 2010. That is precisely what courts have suggested parties should do when the other side
26 | refuses to agree on custodians and search terms. See, e.g., Treppel v. Biovail Corp., 233 FR.D.
27 || 363,374 (S.D.N.Y. 2006) (holding that defendant “should have proceeded unilaterally, producing
28 || all responsive documents located by its search” when plaintiff refused to stipulate to a search
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1 {| methodology). Having refused to participate in efforts to craft appropriate search terms, Plaintiff
should not be heard to claim now that any search using those terms was inadequate.

In any event, neither in his Motion for Sanctions nor in his communications with

A W N

Defendants has Plaintiff offered any specific complaints about the adequacy of Defendants’
discovery responses. Before the June 28 status, Jacobs provided this Court with a Declaration
listing a variety of documents that he claimed should have been produced in response to his RFPs,
but were “missing” from the production. By contrast, Plaintiff’s recently-filed Motion for

Sanctions is devoid of any specific complaint about documents or categories of documents that

O 00 N O W

have not been produced. That silence, in and of itself, confirms that Defendants have discharged
10 | their obligation to provide Plaintiff with the documents this Court allowed him to request.

11 || B. Searches Of Other Custodians’ ESI In Macau Would Produce Only Duplication

12 In his Motion for Sanctions (at 6), Plaintiff claims that Defendants “have still to this day
13 || conducted no search of numerous electronic files both in Macau and Las Vegas.” But what files?
14 ! And what custodians? Under the Sedona Principles, electronic discovery is supposed to be
15 || tailored to avoid “unreasonable overbreadth, burden, and cost” to the responding party, SEDONA
16 || PRINCIPLES, cmt. 6(b); see also So. Capitol Enters., Inc. v. Conseco Servs., LLC, No. 04-705,
17 || 2008 U.S. Dist. LEXIS 87618, at *7 (M.D. La. Oct. 24, 2008) (denying in part motion for further

18 [ discovery because “the likely benefit that could be obtained from [further discovery on the topic

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 I was] outweighed by the burden and expense of requiring defendants to renew their attempts to
20 | retrieve the electronic data.”). Thus, “[d]iscovery should not be permitted to continue indefinitely
21 || merely because a requesting party can point to undiscovered documents and electronically stored
22 | information when there is no indication that the documents or information are relevant to the case,
23 || or further discovery is disproportionate to the needs of the case.” SEDONA PRINCIPLES, cmt. 6(b);
24 || see also Rimkus Consulting Grp., Inc. v. Cammarata, 688 F. Supp. 2d 598, 613 (S.D. Tex. 2010)
25 | (“Whether . . . discovery conduct is acceptable in a case depends on what is reasonable, and that
26 | in turn depends on whether what was done—or not done—was proportional to that case and
27 || consistent with clearly established applicable standards™); Daugherty v. Murphy, No. 1:06-cv-
28 || 0878-SEB-DML, 2012 WL 4877720, at *7 (S.D. Ind. Nov. 23, 2010) (denying plaintiffs’ motion
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1 | to compel because the time and expense involved in additional discovery outweighed the benefits
2 i to be gained from the additional discovery and “its importance to the issues to be resolved™ in the
3 || case at bar). Here, there is no reason to believe that still more searches would turn up new
4 || documents or information that would be relevant to the narrow jurisdictional issue, which is the
5 | only issue that is now before the Court.
6 Specifically, there is no reason to believe that searching the ESI in Macau of custodians
7 || other than Jacobs would lead to the identification of additional, non-cumulative documents that
8 || would be relevant to the issue of jurisdiction. Certainly, it would make no sense to force SCL to
9 I go through the considerable expense of searching its emails so that it could produce the other half
10 || of emails to or from LVSC executives or emails to or from Messrs. Adelson or Leven. Plaintiff’s
11 || theory is that SCL was run by Messrs. Adelson and Leven from Las Vegas or that LVSC
12 || executives acted on behalf of SCL in Nevada to such an extent that SCL should be deemed to be
13 || “present” here. While we disagree with that theory as a matter of law; the fact that Plaintiff

himself focuses on SCL’s interactions with LVSC and on Messrs. Adelson and Leven, whose ESI

—_ =
[ L T N

resides on the LVSC server, means that virtually all of what Jacobs himself claims he needs to

support his jurisdictional arguments should already have been produced as a result of LVSC’s

—
~

extensive production efforts. In addition, Plaintiff has the contracts and other information

—
[>-]

outlined above from SCL, as well as the documents Defendants have produced from the Jacobs

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
o

19 || ESI that was transferred to the U.S. in 2010 and by searching emails between Jacobs and a long
20 || list of LVSC custodians. Finally, as a result of the Court’s September 14, 2012 Order, Jacobs is
21 || also free to use anything (other than the documents as to which Defendants have claimed
22 || privilege) that he brought back with him from Macau to support his jurisdictional arguments.
23 || There is no reason to believe, nor does Plaintiff even argue, that a search of ESI in Macau would
24 || yield any previously unproduced documents that would not be merely cumulative of the
25 || documents Jacobs already has.

26 | C. Even If There Were Unique Documents Yet To Be Found In Macau, The Cost

- Of Searching For Them Far Outweighs Any Need Plaintiff Could Claim.

28 We do not know what kind of search Plaintiff thinks SCL is required to conduct of ESI in
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1 || Macau because Plaintiff’s counsel refused to discuss that issue with SCL’s new counsel.
Accordingly, it is extremely difficult to estimate how much it would cost to conduct a broader
search in Macau than the search SCL has agreed to undertake (ESI for which Jacobs was the
custodian). But it is a good guess that conducting a broad search of even a few additional
custodians’ ESI in Macau would be extremely costly. In deciding whether SCL should be
required to bear that expense, in addition to the more than $2.3 million Defendants estimate they
have already spent on jurisdictional discovery, the Court should consider what, if any, benefit the

additional discovery would yield in terms of improving Plaintiff’s ability to present his case on

D0 NN W B W N

jurisdiction.”> The answer to that question is “none.”

10 Plaintiff’s theory is that SCL was doing business in Nevada at the time he brought this
11 | lawsuit and thus could be sued by any plaintiff based on events that occurred anywhere in the
12 || world. As explained in Defendants” Motion for a Protective Order filed on November 26, 2012,
13 || the standard for general jurisdiction is high: a company is not deemed to be “present” in a State
14 | unless it has a high level of systematic and continuous contacts with the forum. As Wright &
15 || Miller notes, “the defendant must be engaged in longstanding business in the forum state, such as
16 || marketing or shipping products, or performing services or maintaining one or more offices there;
17 || activities that are less extensive than that will not qualify for general in personam jurisdiction.” 4

18 || Federal Practice and Procedure § 1067.5, at 507. Given this standard, whatever non-duplicative

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 || emails are in Macau could not possibly make any difference to the jurisdictional analysis. After
20 | all, it is activity in Nevada that counts toward the jurisdictional analysis — nof what SCL was
21 | doing in Macau. And Plaintiff already has all of the evidence he needs concerning SCL’s contacts
22 || with Nevada,

23

24 I v See Chen-Oster v. Goldman Sachs, No. 10 Civ. 6950 (LBS) (JCF), 2012 WL 3964742, at *14
(S.DN.Y. Sept. 10, 2012) (holding that defendant was not required to search an older database because
25 “the burden of extracting the requested information from the older PeopleSoft database at this time
outweighs the benefit™); Daugherty, 2012 WL 4877720, at *7 (granting motion for a protective order and
26 holding that additional discovery was not warranted after weighing the “heavy time and expense to create”
the sought-after information against “the benefits of that discovery and its importance to the issues to be
27 |l resolved” in the case); U.S. ex rel McBride v. Halliburton Co., 272 ERD. 235241 (D.D.C. 2011)

(denying plaintiff’s motion to compel further discovery because the utility of further discovery was
28 outweighed by its cost).
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1 That is particularly true since the U.S. Supreme Court has held that purchases from the

(]

forum of goods and services to be used elsewhere do not provide a basis for general jurisdiction.
In Helicopteros Nacionales de Colombia, S.A. v. Hall, 466 U.S. 408, 415 (1984), the plaintiff
tried to sue a helicopter company in Texas for an accident that occurred in South America on the
ground that the defendant purchased 80% of its helicopters in Texas and had sent its employees
there for training and thus should be deemed to have been “doing business” in Texas. The
Supreme Court rejected that argument, holding that “mere purchases [made in the forum state],

even if occurring at regular intervals, are not enough to warrant a State’s assertion of [general]

N0 N N i B W

jurisdiction over a nonresident corporation in a cause of action not related to those purchase
10 § transactions.” Id. at 418. So too, in this case, no matter how many goods and services SCL may
11 || have been purchasing from LVSC or other Nevada-based entities for use in Macau, those
12 | activities would not provide a basis for a finding general jurisdiction over SCL in Nevada.

13 Plaintiff does not complain in his Motion for Sanctions that he lacks the evidence
14 || necessary to support his jurisdictional theories. That in and of itself demonstrates that the
15 § additional expense SCL would be forced to incur if it were required to search the ESI of
16 || additional custodians would yield no benefit. So too does the way in which Plaintiff has
17 || conducted the depositions he has taken so far. The Court may recall that in May 2012 Plaintiff

18 || complained that he should not be forced to take those depositions because he did not yet have all

Holland & Hart LLP
9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134

19 || of the ESI for each witness. By the time Plaintiff took Mr. Adelson’s deposition on September 6,
20 | 2012, he had all of Mr. Adelson’s ESI. Yet he showed Mr. Adelson only fwe documents — the
21 || shared services agreement between SCL and LVSC and the letter Mr. Adelson signed terminating
22 || Jacobs as SCL’s CEO. Similarly, when Mr. Goldstein was deposed on November 6, 2012,
23 || Plaintiff’s counsel used only nineteen of the documents that had been produced. In each case,
24 || Plaintiff’s counsel seemed far more eager to explore the merits of Jacob’s claims with the
25 || witnesses than his jurisdictional theories.

26 Basic principles of proportionality dictate that discovery should come to an end once it is
27 | clear that the cost of conducting more searches far outweighs any conceivable benefit those
28 || searches might create. See U.S. ex rel McBride, 272 F.R.D. at 240-41 (denying further discovery
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1 || after “consider[ing] whether (1) the discovery sought is unreasonably cumulative or

2 || duplicative...; (2) the party seeking the discovery has had ample opportunity to obtain the sought
3 | information by earlier discovery; or (3) the burden of the discovery outweighs its utility.”). We
4 | are long past that point in this case.

5 v,

6 CONCLUSION

7 For the foregoing reasons, SCL urges the Court to enter an order providing that SCL has
8 || no obligation to search the ESI in Macau of custodians other than Jacobs or to use any more
9 || expansive search terms on the Jacobs ESI in Macau than was used to search the Jacobs ESI that

10 || was transferred to the United States in 2010.

11 DATED December 4, 2012, /A & |
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H January 23, 2012, Defendant Sands China Ltd.’s Responses to APP0249-0279
12 Plaintiff’s First Request for Production of Documents (Nos. 1-
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21 2011 Order Regarding November 22, 2011 Status Conference
S May 29, 2012 Transcript of Proceedings of Status Check on APP0375-0395
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23 U June 27, 2012 Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs’ Status Memorandum APP0409-0428
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1 Exhibit Descrintion Page Number
X September 11, 2012 Defendants Las Vegas Sands Corp.’s and APP(0443-0463
2 Sands China Limiied’s Statement on Potential Sanctions
Y August 8, 2012 Response from OPDP APP0464-0484
3 Z November 14. 2012 VML and SCL written reguest to OPDP APP0485-0518
AA November 29. 2012 OPDP response to SCL APP0519-0529
4 .
5 DATED December 4, 2012, W—‘
6
J7Stephen Peek, Esq. ¢/
7 Robert J. Cassity, Esq,
Holland & Hart LLP
8 9555 Hillwood Drive, 2nd Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89134
9 Attorneys for Las Vegas Sands Corp. and Sands
China Ltd,
10 -and-
J. Randall Jones, Esq.
11 Mark M. Jones, Esq.
Kemp Jones & Coulthard, LLP
12 3800 Howard Hughes Parkway, 17th Floor
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
5 13 Attorneys for Sands China, LTD.
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1 RECEIPT OF COPY
2 Réceipt of APPENDIX OF EXHIBITS TO DEFENDANT SANDS CHINALTD'S | —
3 {|| MOTION FOR A PROTECTIVE ORDER is hereby acknowledged this 4th day of December,
4 || 2012:
5
6
N
7 James J. Pisanelli, Esq.
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq.
8 Todd L. Bice, Esq.
Pisanelli & Bice
9 3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
10 214-2100
214-2101 ~ fax
11 jip@pisanellibice.com
dlsi@pisanellibice.com
12 tib@pisanellibice.com
kap(@pisanellibice.com — staff
§ 13 see(@pisanellibice.com — staff
o E & 14 Attorney for Plaintiff
-l &
o
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1 ||RPD ‘
James J, Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No, 4027 '
2 || JIP@pisanellibice.com .
Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. #4534
3 || TLB@pisanellibice.com
Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
4 || DLS@pisanellibice.com
ISANELLI BICE PLLC
5 113883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las Vegas, Nevada 89169 '
6_{| Telephone; (702) 214-2100
Facsimile: (702)214-2101
7
Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs .
8. .
"DISTRICT COURT
9 .
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
g . 10
2 STEVEN C. JACOBRS, Case No.:  A-10-627691
E 11 _ Dept. No.: X1
ey Plaintiff,
qax 12 || v
5E% ‘
& %é 13 || LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP., a Nevada PLAINTIFF'S FIRST REQUEST FOR
BA . carporation; SANDS CHINA LTD:, a PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO
HEz 14 || Cayman Islands cotporation, DOEST - LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP. (Nos. 1-24)
S
24 through X; and ROE CORPORATIONS
%b‘-‘z 2 15 || IthroughX,
2] %>
a g?, 16 Defendants.
3
i 17
& AND RELATED CLAIMS
18 . .
19 ||[TO: DEFENDANT LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP,; and
20 jjTO: I Stephen Peek, Esq. and Brian G. Anderson, Esq., HOLLAND & HART, its Attorneys
21 Pursuant to Rule 34 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
22 || ("Tacobs" and/or "Plaintiff") requests that Defendant Las Vegas Sands Corp, ("LVSC") produce
" 23 || for inspection. and copying the documeénts described in these papers. Production shall oceur
24 || within thirty (30) days of servicé hereof, at the offices of PISANELLI BICE PLLC, 3883 Howard
25 || Hughes Parkway, Suite 800, Las Vegas, Nevada, 89169, ‘
26
27
28
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1 DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS
2 [{A.  Definitions
3 1 Communication. The tetm "communication" means the transmittal of information
4 || (in the form of facts, ideas, inquiries or otherwise).
5 2. Document. The term "document" is defined to be synonymous in meaning and
6-{&qual in scope to the nsage of this term in Rule 34(a) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure
7 {| This term encompasses any written or paper material in LVSC's possession, under its control,
8 ||available at the request of any of its agents or attorneys and inclﬁdes without limitation any
9 || written or graphic ma’&er of every kind or description, however produced ot reproduced, whether
2 10 {lin draft, in final, original or reproduction, signed or Unsighed,_ and regardless of whether
) E 11 |/approved, sent, received, redrafted or executed, including but not limited to written
Uc%% 12 |[communications, letters, correspondence, memoranda, mnotes, records, business records,
ﬁ%é 13 || photographs, tape or sound recordings, confracts, agreements, notations of telephone
g%g 14 conyersétions‘ or personal conversations, diaries, desk calendars, reports, computer records, data
g%g 15 ||compilations of any type or kind, or materials similar to any of the foregoing, however
Egg 16 [|denominated and to whomever addressed. "Document" shall exclude exact duplicates when
§ 17 ||originals are available, but shall include all copies made different from originals by virtue of any
8 18 writix{gs, notations,- symbols, characters, impressions or any marks thereon,
19 3 Person. The term "person” is defined as any natural person or business, legal or
20 || governmental entity or association.
21 4, - The telmg "concerning,” "related to," and "relating to" include "refer to,"
22 || "summarize," "reflect," "cohstitute,"’ "contain," "embody," "mention,” "show," "compromise,"
23 || "evidence," "discuss,” "describe,” "pertaining to" or "comment upon."
24 5. All/Each. The terms "all" and "each" shall be construed as all and each.
25 6. And/Qr. The connectives "and/or" shall be construed either disjunctively or
26" |[conunctively-as ecessary to-bring within the-scopeof the-discovery requests-aliresponses-that
27 || might otherwise be construed to be outside of its scope.
28
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1 7. Number. The use of the singular form of any word includes the plural and vice
2 || versa. | .
3 8. You or Your. The terms "You" and/or "Your" are synonymous and mean
4 || "Las Vegas Sands Corp." and/or "LVSC," a defendant in this Action, and/or any of its subsidiary
5 ||entities and/or any other affiliated entities, as well as its owners, shareholders, officers,
6 emp].nyees, attorneys, accountants, agents, investigators, and/or anyone else acting on its behalf
7 || and/or its direction and instruction.
2 9. Sands China. The term "Sands China" means "Sands China, Ltd.," a defendant in
9 || this Action, and/or any of its pre-incorporation, pre—spin~off, pre-IPO identities (e.g., LISTCO, |
é 10 |{NEWCO), subsidiary entities and/or any other affiliated entities, as well as its owners,
OEO 11 || shareholders, officers, employees, attorneys, accountants, agents, investigators, and/or anyone
gg‘% 12 || else acting on its behalf and/or its direction and instruction, |
5 % é 13 10.  Action, The term "Action" refers to the above-captioned maiter entitled Steven C.
g%% 14 ||Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp., et al., commenced in the Eighth Judicial District Court, Clark
%Eﬁ 15 || County, Nevada, Case No. A-10-627691.
g gg 16 11.  Parcels S apd 6. The term "Parcels 5 and 6" refers to parcels of property owned by
g '17 Sands China located on the Cotai Strip.
@ . 18 || B. Instructions.
19 1. If T{pu contend that any document responsive to these requests is privileged or
20 || otherwise beyond the scope. of Rule 26 of the Ne.vada Rules of Civil Procedure, please identify
21 || the document with the following information:
22 a. The type 6f document (e, g., report, letter, notes, notice, contract, ete.);
23 b. The number of pages it comprises;
24 c. The name of the person(s) who prepared or authored the document;
25 d. The néme of the person(s) to whom the document was addressed,
76 ~distributed; and/or showr;
2 e. The date on the document purporting to reflect the date the document was
28 prepared or transmitted;

3
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1 f The general description of the subject matter of the document; and, if
) applicable,
3 g Tﬁe name of the person(s) who asked that the document be prepared.
4 2, If You contend that only a pottion of any document reSpbnsive to these requests is
5 || privileged or otherwise not subject to production, please produce a copy of the document
6-||redacting the privileged or objectionable portion. With respect to the redacted portion, to_the
7 || extent that the produced portion of the document does not do so, You should proﬁde the same
8 || information which would be provided if the entire document were withheld as privileged.
9| 3. These requests reach all documents that are within Your possessioﬁ, cugtody or
) 10 || control if You have the legal right to obtain it, whether or not You now have physical possession
E 11 {{of it. Thus, You must obtain and produce all documents within the possession or custody of
gg% 12 || people or entities over which You have control, such as attorneys, agents or others. If You have
5%5 13 || knowledge of the existence of documents responsive to these requests but contend that they are
g%%\ 14 ||not within Your possession, custody or control, please provide the following information:
g%é 15 a. A description of the documents, including in the description as much detail
= gg 16 as possible;
5 17 b. The identity of the person or entity, including his, her or its address,
“ 18 believed by You to have possession or custody of the document or any
19 copies of them at this time; and
20 c. A description of the efforts, if any, You haye made to obtain possession or
21 custody of the documents.
22 4, These requests. to produce shall be deemed to be. continuing, and any additional
23 |l documents relating in any way to these requests to produce or Your original responses fchat are
24 |{acquired subsequent to the date of responding to these requests, up to and including the time of
25 trial, sﬁall be furnished to Plaintiff promptly after such documents are écquired as supplemental
76 ([ responses tothese requeststo-produce:
27
28
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1 REQUESTS
2 {|REQUEST NO. 1:
3 Flease identify and produce all documents that reflect the date, time, and location of each
4 || Sands China Board meeting (including the meeting held‘on,April 14, 2010, at 9:00 a.m. Macau
5 ' Time/April 13, 2010, at 6:00 p.m. Las Vegas time), the location of each Board member who
6_|| participated in each and every meeting, and the manngﬁmgmoﬂ_bxﬂhich&achﬂmd member
7 || pariicipated in each and every meeting, during the period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010.
8 ||REQUEST NO. 2:
9 Pléase identify and produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from
g 10 || Macaw/China/Hong Kong by Sheldon G. Adelson for work performed on behalf of or directly for
E 11 || Sands China (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) during the time period of
éc%% 12 || January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,
5
g%é 13 || REQUEST NO. 3:
gg :2 14 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from
55 é 15 || Macau/China/Hong Kong by Michael A, Leven for work performed on behalf of or directly for
R gg 16 || Sands China (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) during the time period of
g 17 || Janvary 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010.
3
® 18 || REQUEST NO. 4: ,
19 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from
20 Mécau/China/Hong Kong by Robert G. Goldstein for work performed on behalf of or directly for
21 ||Sands China (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) during the time period of
22 || January 1, 2009, to Qctober 20, 2010.
23 ||REQUEST NO. 5: _
24 To the extent not produced in response to the preceding requests, please identify and
25 | produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from Macau/China/Hong Kong by any LVSC
26 Texecutive—andfor—employee—for—work—performed—on—behalf—of or—directly—for—Sands—Chin
27 || (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) during the time period of January 1,
28 112009, to October 20, 2010.
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1 {|REQUEST NO. 6.
2 Please identify and produce all documents and/or communications that reflect and/or are
3 ||related to Michael A. Leven's service as CEO of Sands China and/or the Bxecutive Director of |’
4 || Sands China Board of Directors, and/or the»Special Assistant to the Board during the time period
5 | of January. 1, 2009, to O(.:to.bcr éO, 2010,
6_|| REQUEST NO. 7 o
7 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the location of the negotiation
¢ || and/or execution of agreements related to the funding of Sands China, during the time petiod of
9 ||January 1, 2009, to Qctober 20, 2010, inciuding, but not limited to, the raising of pre-IPO funds,
=) 10 || the IPO, underwriting for sites 5 & 6, loan refinancing and/or covenant relieffterm modifications
é 11 || pre-IPO, the services of Bank of China to bring in high net worth investors/gamblers to buy the
g;‘% 12 || Four Seasons Serviced Apartments, and the written proposal of Leonel Alves to obtain strata-title
5 % é 13 |} for the Four Seasons Apartments involving Beijing government officials.
S8 14 ||RsoumsTNO.s: |
Eﬁé 15 * Please identify and produce all contracts/agreements that LVSC and/or any LVSC
= g:% 16 || employee, executive, and/or consultant (acting for or on behalf of Sands China) entered into with
§ 17 ||individuals and/or entities based in or doing business in Nevada, including, but not limited to, any
s 18 || agreements with BASE Entertainment and Bally Techhologies, In-c., construction, design,
19 || signage, retail mall operations, and/or banking during the time period of January 1, 2009, to
20 || October 20, 2010.
21 [|[REQUESTNO.9:
22 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect work Robert G. Goldstein
23 perforrned for or on behalf of Sands China, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to
24 |} October 20, 2010, mcludmg global gaming and/or international player development efforts, such
25 {las active recrultment of VIP players to share between and among LVSC and Sands China
26 [ properties;detailsconecerning-trips-with-Larry-Chwinto- China-to-recruit new-VIP-players;-dinners
27 || and/or meetings with Chung Chi Tai, Charles Heung Wah Keung, and/or other VIP promoters,
28
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1 ||player funding, the transfer of player funds, and the use of Venetian Marketing Services Limited
2 [|("VMSL") and/or other entities to secure players and facilitate money transfers,
3 [{REQUEST NO, 10:
4 Please identify and produce all agreements for shared services between and among LVSC
5 [|and Sands China or any of its subsidiaries, including, but not limited to, (1) procurement services
6-|| agreements; (2) agreements for the sharing of private jets owned or made available by LVSC; and
7 |1(3) trademark license agreements, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to Octobér 20, 2010, '
] REQUEST NO.11:
9 Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
g 10 || correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or
E' 11 |{employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for or on behalf of Sands China, related to and/or
g;‘% 12 || concerning site design and dcvclop@ent oversight of Parcels 5 and 6, during the time period of
5 § & 13 ||January 1,2009, to October 20, 2010,
g%; 14 {| REQUEST NO. 12: | |
%55 15 Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
Egg 16 || correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or
g 17 ||employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for or on behalf of Sands China, related to and/or
@ 18 || concerning recruitment and _i-ntei‘viewing of potential Sands China executives, during the time
19 || period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,
20 || REQUEST NO. 13:
21 Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
22 || correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or
23 1l employees and/or consultants and(oz' agents) for or on behalf of Sands China, relate,d__ to and/or
24 || concerning marketing of Sands China properties, including its frequency program, the issuance of
25 || "Chairman's Club" cards by Sheldon G Adelson to Cheung Chi Tai, Jack Lam and others, credit
26~ limits; floor tayouts; the removat of-Cheung Chi Tai; Chartes Heung-Wah Keung, and others from
27 || the Guarantor list of VIP promoters, nightclub operations and approval, including but not limited
28
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1 |[to Lotus Night Club, and/or the hiring of outside consultants, during the time period of January 1,
2 112009, to October 20, 2010, |
3 || REQUEST NO. 14:
4 Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
5 {| correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC o the involvement of LVSC executives
6_|} (including LVSC's executives and/or employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for or on béha.lf
7 |1 of Sands China, related to and/or concerning ncgoﬁaﬁon of a possible joint venture between
8 |l Sands China and Harrah's, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010.
9 || REQUEST NO. 15: .
= 10 Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
E 11 || correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC or the involvement of LVSC executives
&éé% 12 |} (including LVSC's executives and/or employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for or on behalf
Q égf 13 |} of Sands China, related to and/or concerning the negotiation of the sale of Sands China's interest
S%E’\ 14 ||in sites to Stanley Ho's company, SIM, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20,
g%é 15 ||2010.
i %g 16 || REQUEST NO., 16
g 17 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
e 18 LVSC (and/or an& individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China behalf) and BASE
19 || Entertainment during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010.
20 || REQUEST NO. 17:
21 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
22 || LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's behalf) and Cirque de
23 ‘ Soleil during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010, .
24 ||REQUEST NO. 18:
25 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
— 2611 EVSE-{andfor-any-individual-and/or-entity-acting—for-or-on—Sands-China's-behalf)-and Bally
27 || Technologies, Inc. during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010.
28
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1 |{REQUEST NQ. 19:

2| Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
3 || LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's behalf) and Harrah's
4 || during the time petiod of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010.

5 || REQUEST NO. 20:

P | Plea&ﬁﬂﬂ@m@g@.@mnﬁs@m@mmMmﬁnm by_and between
7 |ILVSC (and/or any individual and/or e;.ntity acting for or on Sands China's behalf) and any
8 || potential lenders for the underwriting of Parcels 5 and 6, during the time period of Janvary 1,
9 ||2009 to October 20, 2010.

8 10 ||REQUEST NO, 21:

E 11 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
%2% 12 ||LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's behalf) and site
@ %é 13 ||designers, developers, and specialists for Parcels 5 and 6, during the time period of Janugry 1,
g%% 14 |} 2009 to October 20, 2010,

%‘;ﬁg 15 || REQUEST NO. 22:

“gg 16 To the extent not produced in response to the preceding requests, please identify and
é 17 ||produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other correspondence that reflect services
3 18 ||petformed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives, employees, consultants, and/or agents) for 01;

’ .19 on behalf of Sands China, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,
20 [|including, but not limited to, Yvonne Mao, directions given to Mr. Yueng and/or Eric Chu
21 ||relating to Henggin Island, Chu Kong Shipping ("CKS"), the basvketba]i team, the Adelson Center
22 ||in Beijing, and investigations related to tﬁe same; negotiations with Fo.ur Seasons, Sheraton and
23 || Shangri-La; bonus and remuneration plans; outside counsel's review of Leonel Alves, For@ign
24 Corrupt Practices Act issues and his suitability to serve as counsel for Sands China Limited;
25 ||International Risk reports on Cheung Chi Tai, Charles Heung, and others commissioned in _
26 [response-to- the-Reuters' -article alteging -organized crinme; ~and—coltection activities Tetating to &
27 || patrons and junkets with large outstanding debts due Sands China and/or its subsidiaries.
28 |
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REQUEST NO. 23:

2 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect reimbursements made to any LVSC
3 || executive and/or employee and/or consultant for work performed or services provided for or on
4 || behalf of Sands China, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,
5 I REQUEST NO. 24:
6 Please identify and produce all documents that Sands China provided to Nevada gaming
7 || regulators, during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010.
8 DATED this 23rd day of December, 2011.
9 PISANELLI BICEPLLC
8 10 '
b By: __/s/ Debra L. Spinelli
S i1 James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No, 4027
N Todd L. Bice, Esq., Bar No. #4534
gl 12 Debra L. Spinelli, Esq., Bar No. 9695
ﬁ%i‘; 3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
kL 13 Las Vegas, Nevada 89169
it
E gz 14 Attorneys for Plaintiff Steven C. Jacobs
&8
2
E%é 15
M9 16
§.~1
o - 17
2
' 18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
20
27
28

10
APP0235

PA1457



(Page 240 of 533)

1 RECEIPT OF COPY
2 RECEIPT OF COPY of the above and foregoing PLAINTIFF'S FIRST REQUEST
3 1FOR PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO LAS YEGAS SANDS CORP. (Nos. 1- 24) is
4 {| hereby acknowledged this é 2 day of December, 2011, by:
5 i
GLASER, WEIL, FINK, JACOBS, i
6 HOWARD, AVCHEN-& SHAPIRO LLP '
7
By:
8 Patricia Glaser, Esq.
Stephen Ma, Esq
9 Craig Marcus Esq.
Andrew D, Sedlock Esq. ,
2 10 3763 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 300
E . Las Vegas, NV 89169
3 '
455 12
5%’2 HOLLAND & HART ‘2 /87///
g9 13
E%E
Z 14
§§2 By: (L %@%ﬁﬁk M/é’
LR 15 gStephen Peelf/ Esq.
= %g 6 rian G lAndcrson, Esq. i R
z 9555 Hillwood Drive, Secon Floor .
8 Las Vegas, NV 89134 0 /S
Q 17
&
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
11
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N

1 ||RPD
James J. Pisanelli, Esq., Bar No. 4027
2 || JJP@pisanellibice
Todd L. Bice, Esq Bar No #4534
3 || TLB@pisanellibi
Debra L, Spinelli, Bsq BarNo 9695
4 | DLS@pisanellibice.com
ISANELLI BICE PLLC
5 ||3883 Howard Hughes Parkway, Suite 800
Las-Vegas; Nevada 89169
6 || Telephone: 5702) 214-2100
;7 Facsimile: (702) 214-2101
" Attomeys for Plaintiff Steven C, Jacobs
o DISTRICT COURT
0 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
g STEVEN C. JACOBS, CaseNo.:  A-10-627691
E 11 Dept. No.: . XI
‘;_1% ‘ Plaintif,
%513 LAS VEGAS SANDS CORP, a Nevada | PLAINTIFF'S FIRST REQUEST FOR
n_af-‘g} & corporation; SANDS CHINA LTD., a PRODUCTION OF DOCUMENTS TO
ez 14 || Cayman Islands corporation; DOES I SANDS CHINA, LTD., (Nos. 1-24)
g9y through X; and ROE CORPORATIONS .
é:ﬁ‘g’ 15 || Ihrough X,
a gi’ 16 Defendants,
§ 17
& 18 AND RELATED CLAIMS
19 ||TO: DEFENDANT SANCS CHINA, LTD.; and
20 ||TO:  Patricia Glaser, Esq., Stephan Ma, Esq., Craig Marcus, Esq., Andrew D. Sedlock, Esq.;
21 GLASER WEIL, FINK, JACOBS HOWARD, AVCHEN & SHAPIRO, LLP, its
22 Attomeys
23 Pursuant to Rule 34 of the Nevada Rules of ‘Cii/il Procedure, Plaintiff Stevep C. Jacobs
24 ("Jacobs" and/or "Plaintiff") requests that Defendant Sands China Ltd. produce for inspection and
25 ||copying the documents descri_bed in these papers. Production shall occur within thirty (30) days
26 || of service hereof, at the offices Qfll&ANELLLBJCElLLCMLkMMJigg}ms.Baﬂg&ay
27 || Suite 800, Las Vegas, Ngvada, 89169,
28
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1 DEFINITIONS AND INSTRUCTIONS
2 1A, Definitions
3 1. Communication. The term "communication” means the transmittal of information
4 || (in the form of facts, ideas, inquiries or otherwise),
5 2 Document. The term "document” is defined to be synonymous in meaning and
6 |lequal in scope to the usage of this term in Rule 34(a) of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure,
7 || This term encompasses any written or paper material in Sands China Ltd.'s possession, uﬁder its
g || control, available at the request of any of its agents or attorneys and includes without limitation
9 ||any written or graphic matter of every kind or description, however produced or reproduced,
8 10 || whether in draft, in final, original or reproduction, signed or unsigned, and regardless of whether
E 11 ||approved, sent, received, redrafted or executed, including but not limited to written
Eg‘% 12 ||communications, letters, correspondence, memoranda, notes, rtecords, business records, (
g%‘g 13 [{ photographs, tape “or sound Tecordings, —contracts, agreements, notations —of —tetephonet— .
g 2 14 ||conversations ar personal conversations, diaries, desk calendars, reports, computer records, data
ggg 15 ||compilations of any type or kind, or materials similar to any of the foregoing, however
“'gs 16 ||denominated and to whomever addressed. "Document" shall exclude exact duplicates when
= 17 ||originals are available, but shall include all copies made different from originals by virtue of any
% 18 wﬁtings, notations, symbols, characters, impressions or any marks thereon,
19 3 Person. The term "person" is defined as any natural person or business, legal or
20 || governmental entity or association.
21 4, The terms “"concerning,” "related to," and "relating io“ include "refer to,"
22 ||"summarize,” "reflect,” “constitute,” "contain," "embody,” "mention," "show," "compromise,"
23 ||"evidence," "discuss,"” "describe," "pertaining to” or "comment upon.”
24 5. Al/Each, The terms "all" and "each” shall be construed as all and each,
25 6. And/Qr, The connectives "and/or" shall be construed either disjunctively or
26~} conjunctively as necessary to_bring within the scope of the discovery requests all responses that
27 rﬁight otherwise be construed to be outside of its scope.
28"
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1 7. Number, The use of the singular form of any word includes the plural and vice

2 || versa. -

3 3. You, Your, and/or Sands China. The terms "You," "Your,” and "Sands China" are

4 ||synonymous and mean "Sands China, Ltd.," a defendant in this Action, andfor any of its

5 {| pre-incorporation, pre-spin-off, pre-IPO identities (e.g., LISTCO, NEWCQ), subsidiary entities

6 ||and/or any other affiliated entities, as well as its owners, shareholders, officers, employees,

7 || attorneys, accountants, agents, investigators, and/or anyone else acting on its behalf and/or its

8 |} direction and instruction.

9 9. Action, The term "Action" refers to the above-captioned matter entitled Steven C.
§ 10 Jacobs v. Las Vegas Sands Corp., et al., co‘mmencgd in the Eighth Judicial District Cowt, Clark
E 11 || County, Nevada, Case No. A-10-627691,

Ezg 12 ' 10,  Parcels S and 6. The term "Parcels 5 and 6" refers to parcels of property owned by
§§§ 13| Sands China tocated omthe Catai-Strip:
gg% 14 ||B.  Instructions.
g% g 15 1. If You contend that any document responsive to these reqpests is privileged or
“"gg 16 |} otherwise beyond the scope of Rule 26 of the Nevada Rules of Civil Procedure, please identify
g 17 || the document with the following information: '
® 18 a. The type of document {e.g., report, letter, notes, notice, contract, etc.);
19 b. The number of pages it comprises;
20 c The name of the person(s) who prepared or authored the document;
21 d. The name of the person(s) to whom the document was addressed,
2 distributed, and/or shown;
23 e. The date on the document purporting to reflect the date the document was
24 prepared or transmitted; '
25 f. The general description of the subject matter of the document; and, if
26 applicable,
27 8 The name of the person(s) who asked that the document be prepared.
28
3
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1 2. If You contend that only a portion of any document responsive to these requests is
2 || privileged or otherwise not subject to production, please produce a copy of the document
3 || redacting the privileged or objectionable portion. With respact to the redacted portion, to the
4 f extent that the produced portion of the document does not do so, You should provide the same
5 || information which would be provided if the entire document were withheld as privileged.
6 3. These requests reach all documents that are within Your possession, custody ot
7 ||control if You have the legal right to obtain It, whether or not You now have physical possession
g |jof it. Thus, You must obtain and produce all doc_:mnents within the posseséion or custody of
9 |ipeople ot entities over which You have control, such as attorneys, agents or others. If You have
§ 10 || knowledge of the existence of documents responsive to these requests but contend that they are
E 11 |{mot within Your possession, custody or control, please provide the following information:
%uﬁg 12 4 & A description of the documents, including in the description as much detail
ﬁé 13 & possible; T
E@g 14 b. The identity of the person or entity, including his, her or its address, .
E@é 15 believed by You to have possession or custody of the document or any
B g 3 16 copies of them at this time; and
g 17 < A description of the efforts, if any, You have made to obtain possession or
3 18 custody of the documents.
19 4, These requests to produce shall be deemed to be continuing, and any additional
20 ||dosuments relating in any way to these requests to produce or Your original responses that are
21 || acquired subsequent to the date of responding to these requests, up to and including the time of
22 || trial, shall be furnished to Plaintiff promptly after such documents are scquired as supplemental
23 || responses to these requests to produce. |
24 'REQUESTS
25 || REQUEST NO. 1:
26 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the date, time, and location of each
27 || Sands China Board meeting (including the meeting held on April 14, 2010, at 9:00 a.m. Macau
28 || Time/April 13, 2010, at 6:00 p.m. Las Vegas time), the location of each Board member who
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1 |{participated in each and every meeting, and the manner/method by which each Board member
2 || participated in each and every meeting, during the period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,
3 || REQUEST NO. 2:
4 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from
3 || Macau/China/Hong Kong by Sheldon G. Adelson for work performed on behalf of or directly for
6 || Sands China (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) during the time period of
7 (| Jamuary 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010, |
8 ||REQUEST NO. 3:
9 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from
2 10 [|Macaw/China/Hong Kong by Michael A. Leven for work pérfonned on behalf of or directly for
E 11 || Sands China (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) during the time period of
gég 12 {|January 1, 2009; to Oétober 20, 201‘0. ‘
§§§ 13 {{REQUEST NO:
g EE 14 Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from
gm g 15 ||Macaw/China/Hong Kong by Robert G. Goldstein for work performed on behalf of or directly for
& gg 16 || Sands China (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) during the time petiod of
2 17 {|Janhuary I, 2009, to October 20, 2010.
% 18 || REQUEST NO. §:
19 To the extent not produced in response to the preceding requests, please identify and
20 ||produce all documents that reflect the travels to and from Macau/China/Hong Kong by any LVSC
2] ||executive and/or employee for work performed on behalf of or directly for Sands China
22 || (including, but not limited to, flight logs, travel itineraries) dun‘ng‘the time period of Janvary 1,
23 ]| 2009, to October 20, 2010,
24 || REQUEST NO. 6:
25 Please identify and produce all documents and/or communications that reflect and/or are
26 |irelated to Michael A. Leven's sexvice as CEO of Sands China_and/or the Executive Director of
27 || Sands China Board of Directors, and/or the Special Assistant to the Board during the time period ‘
28 || of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010.
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REQUEST NO. 7:

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect the location of the negotiation and
execution of agreements related to the funding of Sands China, during the time period of
January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010, including, but not limited to, the raising of pre-IPO funds,

the IPO, underwriting for sites 5 & 6, loan refinancing and/or covenant relief/term modifications

— . e
N~ o

L N - Y KT N R

pre-IPO, the services of Bank of China to bring in hi_gh net worth investors/gamblers to buy the
Four Seasons Serviced Apartments, and the writlen proposal of Leonel Alves to obtain strata-title
for the Four Seasons Apartments involving Beijing government officials.
REQUEST NO. 8:

Please identify and produce all contracts/agreements that Sands China (and/or any
individual and/or entity acting for or on behalf of Sands China) entered into with individuals

and/or entities based in or doing business in Nevada, including, but not limited to, any agreements

PISANELLIBICE pr1C

ARD HUGHES PARKWAY, SUITE 800

W,
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89169

3883 Ho

with-BASE-Entertainment-and-Bafty- Fechnologies; Inc-;-construction; design; signage; retaitmall-
operations, and/or banking during the time period of January 1, 2009, to Qctober 20, 2010.
REQUEST NO. 9:

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect work Robert G. Goldstein
perforimed for or on bghalf of Sands China, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October
20, 2010, including global gaming and/or international playér development efforts, such as active
recruitment of VIP players to shiare between and among LVSC and Sands China properties,
details concerning trips with Larry Chu inio China to recruit new VIP players, dinners and/or
meetings with Cheung Chi Tai, Charles Heung Wah Keung, and/or other VIP promoters, player
fﬁnding, the transfer of player funds, and the use of Venetian Marketing Services Limited

("VMSL") and/or other entities to secure players and facilitate money transfers.

REQUEST NO. 10: -

Please identify and produce all agreements for shared services between and among LVSC

and Sands China or any of its subsidiaries, including, but not limited to, (1) procurement services

agreements; (2) agreements for the sharing of private jets owned or made available by LVSC; and

(3) trademark license agreements, during the time petiod of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,

6
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REQUEST NO. 11;

Please -identify and produce all documents, memoranda, ecmails, and/or other
correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or
employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for or on behalf of Sands China, related to and/or

concerning site design and devélbpment oversight pf Parcels 5 and 6, during the time period of

Y, SUITE 800

W & W A wm B W N

—_
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January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,
REQUESTNO.12:

Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
cotrespondence that reﬂecf setvices performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or

employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for ot on behalf of Sands China, related to and/or

{ concemning recruitment and interviewing of potential Sands China executives, during the time

‘period of January 1, 2009, to October 20,2010,

PISANELLI BICE PL1C
HOwARD HUGHES PARKWA
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89169

3883

14
15
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25
26
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Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or
employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for or on behalf of Sands China, related to and/or

concerning marketing of Sands China properties, including its frequency program, the issuance of

{ "Chairman's Club" cards by Sheldon G Adelson to Cheung Chi Tai, Jack Lam and others, credit

limits, floor layouts, the removal of Cheung Chi Tai, Charles Heung Wah Keung, and others from

the Guatantor list of VIP promoters, nightclub operations and approval, including but not limited

to Lotus Night Club, and/or the hiting of outside consultants, during the time petiod of January 1,

2009, to October 20,2010,

REQUEST NO. 14: _
Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other

correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC or the involvement of LVSC executives

(including LVSC's executives and/or employees and/or consultants and/or agents) for or on behalf

27
28

of Sands China, related to and/or conceming negotiation of a possible joint venture between

Sands China and Harrah's, during the time period of Jamiary 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010.

7
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REQUEST NO, 15:

Please identify and produce all documents, memoranda, emails, and/or other
correspondence that reflect services performed by LVSC (including LVSC's executives and/or
employees and/or consultants andfor agcnis) for or on behalf of Sands China, related to and/or

concerning the negotiation of the sale of Sands Chine's interest in sites to Stanley Ho's company,

A
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SIM, during the time period of January 1, 2009, to October 20, 2010,
REQUEST NO. 16: '

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
Sands China and/or LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's
behalf) and BASE Entertainment during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010.
REQUEST NO. 17:

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between

Sands—China-and/or-EV8EC-(and/or-any-individual-and/or-entityacting for-or o Sards Ching's

PISANELLI BICE PLicC
3883 HOWARD HUGHES PARKWAY, SUITE 800
LAS VEGAS, NEVADA 89169

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
2
23

2

25
26

behalf) and Cirque de Soleil during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010,
REQUEST NO. 18:

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
Sands China and/or LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's
béhalt) and Bally Technologies, Inc, during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20,
2010.
REQUEST NO. 19:

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between
Sands China and/or LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's
behalf) and Harrah's during the time period of January 1, 2009 to October 20, 20.1 0.
REQUEST NO. 20:

Please identify and produce all documents that reflect communications by and between

Sands China and/or LVSC (and/or any individual and/or entity acting for or on Sands China's

27
28

behalf) and any potential lenders for the underwriting of Parcels 5 and 6, during the time period of
January 1, 2009 to October 20, 2010.
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